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Oldoffering]

With businesses facing increasing
pressure on many fronts to take

the issues of sustainability and

ESG seriously, they need access to
specialist advisors 1o prove o all their
stakeholders including customers
and investors that they have a plan
to achieve net-zero carbon and
improve their ESG impact,

Inspired PLC provides expect
insight and advisory services to help
businesses manage their journey

to net-zero Carbon and respond

1o the climate emergency whilst
controlling their costs.

Our solutions create a clear and
actionable long-term plan, making
investment easier to obtain and
carbon reductions quicker to realise.
Net-zero is a challenge but, with

the right support and advice, it can
present businesses with a range

of commercially and operationally
beneficial opportunities.

SRR
Inspired PUC:has four.areas of expertise:

T W

Assurance
Services

Qptimisation
Services

Software
Services
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Qur offering continued

Our four divisions work together

to help Corporate Businesses deliver
Net Zero and respond to climate
change whilst controlling their costs
by addressing each of the “4Cs”

How we help

No matter what a business’ purpose is,
energy is essential to achieving corporate
objectives. Whether it is manufacturing
goods, displaying them, storing therm or
providing services to businesses or consurmers,
businesses need energy, which now comes
with a responsibility too. Investors, clients,
employees and the supply chain are rightly
concerned with the Carbon impact of the
energy we all yse. Alf businesses also need to
understand how to control Cost and ensure
Compliance with their reporting requirements.
To improve on all those fronts reducing
Consumption becomes the natural priority.
These “4Cs" are the major chailenges that
our clients face and become the
cornerstones of the services that

Inspired deliver. )

P/ |

The 20272 price crisis meant that energy re-emerged as & Board
level risk for the foreseeable future. it was a timely reminder

for businesses to invest in professional energy procurernent
services as without such specialist expertise businesses
become exposed to high energy price risks.

Cost

With some suppliers exiting the market and other pausing
participation, securing supgly contracts has been a challenge.
it's not just about assessing supplier margin, but also the
mechanism for fixing commeoedity; the ransparency of the
non-commodity costs and the balance of fixed vs pass through
pricing along with customer service, billing accuracy and
administration of portfolio changes. There's also credit

terms ahd volurme tolerance to sort.

2 tnspired PLC ~
Annyai Report & Accounts 2023

Inspired's procurement specialists support over 3,500 ¢clients
through these challenges, offering detailed insight on all
elements of energy price management. Qualified and expert
risk managers work with clients to define and execute intelligent
Risk Management Strategies (RMS) that meet their objectives.
Adopting aflexible risk managed plan, using our collective circa
IOTWh market power, allows gur clients 1o navigate the volatile
commaodity markets more effectively, protecting against price
shiocks whilst taking advantage of any price drops.

Once procured, budgeting and understanding the billing

of energy is ancther challenge. The complexity of energy billing
has always been troublesome for suppliers with statistically one
in three invoices having errors on them. With the welcome
addition of the Energy Bill Relief Scherne (EBRS) validating
energy bills went frorm close ta impossible, 1o even harder for
clients. Our energy accounting anaiysts ¢hailenge and validate
every component of the bilt delivering payment files direct
into clients’ accounting systems. This ensures full allocation

in accordance with customer requirernents for accurate
payment to suppliers.

- g

@y

With prices increasing fivefoid, the call to action to reduce
consumption has never been louder. Whether its lighting,
controls systems, heating, cocling or something more
ruanced, technology is moving at a fast pace.

Consumption

It's a challenge 1o keep on top of all the new ideas; prepare
the investrment case; secure the capital expenditure; choose
the provider, oversee the work; validate the expected saving
and move onto the next site — all whilst continuing to monitor
the performance of an entire estate.

The Croup have been responding to this challenge working
with clients for over 15 years helping their investments reduce
carbon emissions and energy consumption. We are technology
agnostic and not tied to any manufacturer or service provider.
Waorking directly with the Boards of major UK brands as well

as smaller businesses, we identify areas of concern and deliver
turnkey solutions to reduce carbon emissions and energy
consurmption in all areas.
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OPTIMISATION

Melivers intervantions on cicnts i nses o reduce Carban emissions, energy and
water consumption to help Corporate Businesses meet Net Zero from ESC-focused

supply chains

4 —
ASSURANCE &
Delivers the assurance to Corporate
Businesses that uiilities are procured
well, invoiced and accounted for
correctly and data is effectively

managed to meet their Net Zero

. 720
ESG @
Speciahses in supporting Corporate .

Businesses making ESG disclosures

which are increasingly important

for maintaining revenues, attracting
investment and compliance

«t)

Increased Client
Life-Time Value (CLV)
One stop solution to meet
repeatable demand from
clients tnrteploy marging!
capitai to marginally
reduce carbon emissions

and consumption

Strong Macros
Non-discretionary

recurring call toaction

Sirnplify complexity
and provide subject
matter expertise

C-Suite relationships and

targets and obligations

- AN

frusted advisor status

/

t

SOFTWARE

Delivers technology and software solutions that underpin the
services provided by Inspired PLC and makes thern available to third parties

t
@o®®

technology enabled

Technology Enabled
Proprietary software
delivers competitive
advantage and drives down
operating costs

/

CO-

Carbon ‘

Although it is often said 'what gets measured can get
managed, it doesn’t always happer in a structured and
controlled manner. This is where Inspired’s Carbon Action
Prograrmme [CAP) can help Working with clients to set
clear and achievable objectives over the short, medium,
and long-terrm, we then set about taking the practical steps
to meet those goals.

Whether it is 100% green energy procurernent or carbon
offsetting to demonstrate commitrnent, or more long-term
answers through the feasibility, planning and installation

of onsite energy generation, we have sclutions suitable for
almost any business.

It's unlikely that the journey 1o net-zero and beyond will be
achieved overnight with a few simple measures. That's why
the Inspired pians are incremental and iterative. We offer the
drive, knowledge and experience to back up a custemer's
desire to teke good intentions and through our Cptimisation
Services can provide a full suite of deliverable solutions
making 8 difference now and for all our future.

2"

Compliance

The climate change emergency we are facing means
that accountability for energy use is growing. To secure
investrment and/or be a supplier to whole sectors of
the economy means businesses must go beyond the
basic mandated reporting obligations into the world of
understanding their full end-to-end impact on society.

Mapping scope 1,2, and 3 emissions is just the starting point.
A full carbon batance sheet and an action plan with specific
and measurable steps te achieving reduction geals in line
with science-based targets is becoming the norm. And

not just for Jarger consumers that are captured by TCFD
(Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures) but

for anyone invoived in a supply chain or wanting to secure
new investment this is becoming a revenue critical and
investrment critical itern.

If a business cannot disclose their credentials and direction
of travel to reduce their impact on the environment against
a growing list of reporting frameworks, they risk becoming
unattractive to investors and clients alike. Taking wnstructured
data and complex eco-systems to produce robust auditable
and meaningful disclosures is a difficult challenge that
Inspired’s team of experts help clients deliver. Investing in
understanding how to reduce impact on society is essential
10 business prospenty and a revenue protection mechanism
rather than just a simple cost and time to pay back equation.

Inspired’'s ESG market-leading service helps businesses

understand and take control of their disclosure requirements.

We deliver a data driven service that can be translated into
any numbper of reporting standards in a robust, auditable
and repeatable forrmat as the starting point on a Carbon
Action Programme (CAP).

Inspired PLC 3
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STRATEGIC REFORT
Group evolution
1

Inspired PLC

Inspired has continued its trajectory into a We present our clients with 2 seamiless integrated business
market Ieading technology enabled provider offering that addresses many different areas of need. As such,

. K - N we have segmented our reporting INto four divisions.
of energy advisory and sustainability services. ) )
The logical and demonstrable evolution of our client

We su pport bUSI!"\ESSGS with their drive to relationships, whether started through our Assurance
net-zero, controlling energy costs and Services of £5G Services Division, is Into a Carbon Action
managing their ESG impacts. Programme [CAPR). This is delivered by our newly segmented

Qpumisation Services Division. Qur Software Services
Bivision cffers the proprietary technology that underpins
our delivery across all divisions delivering the integrated
experience our customers seek.

]

Assurance Services Servises

Delivers services to enable corporate - Susmortvig) oueliFEseEs Go dalivdr an dhelr
businesses to better manage their reli-iEre skre sl GEIE Bl
enargy cost impacts. IConsUMptionEct Neublgie iy gy &g 6=¥

Inspired PLC
anom orL L ANCOUNLE 2027
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We help Corporate Businesses deliver net-zero and
respond to climate change whilst controlling their costs.”

ESGISERVICES]

Belbvars anekio-an seluiiors far inveasiers
sifrd) (anveifisrsss o FRele afiscilve

drarn ko affzeidive [ESIG rnpereis.

Software Services

Proprictary software that underpins
the services provided by the Croup.

Sold on a Saas basis to other service
providers and third parties

inspired PLC
Anngal Reperi & Accounis 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy

Our Group purpose can be summarised as:

NN

Help businesses manage their journey to net-zero
carbon and respond to the climate emergency

‘whilst controlling their costs.”

Economic

Assurance Services
Maintain position as the market leader in UK
and Ireland.

Deliver 0% to 3% organic growth,

Focus on custorner service to maximise client
retention rates and where market churn is high due
16 external factors maintain a net neuwtral position
with new sales.

= Deliver opportunistic M&A that helps consolidate
the market where capital is available and they are
earnings enhancing within one year.

» Deliver a market entry inte ¢.five new geographies
by December 2025, which are earnings enhancing
within three years.

Short Term
(Current FY to 2027}

Optimisation Services
Deliver 15% 10 25% organic growth.

« Focus on delivering Carben Action Progmammes
to deliver net-zero carbon strategies for clients,

« Deliver up to two acquisitions per year that provide

additional sclutions capability or consolidate the
market and are @arnings enhancing within two years,

ESG Services )

« Grow our taxonomy and ESG framework agnostic
solutions to help Corporate Businesses make their
ESG disclosures in UK and reland. Expand our
offering to support our clients' business operations
that are captured by the emerging EU and US
disclosure frameworks.

. Deliver the five-year organic growth plan set out in 2021.

+ Deliver the SDGme solution for 25% of Group clients by
December 2025

- Build ESG Impact services to enable solution provision
for each elerment of the ESG wheel.

Software Services

« Deliver 10% to 20% organic growth.

- Deploy Capex to deliver 68 new technology
solutions per year.

Deliver up to two acquisitions per year that provide
Saas services that underpin the Group's technology
enabled Services.

» Maintain a market leading position for each division
in UK and ireland maximising cash generation for
the benefit of all stakeholders.

ESG Disclosure Services (operating within

ESG Solutions Division)

» Leveraging our support for our UK and Ireland
based Corporate Clients whose business operations
are captured by EL) and US disclosure mandates to
deliver organic growth of our taxonomy and ESG
framework solutions in the EU and US markets.

Medium Term
(2028 to 2037)

« Leveraging our support for our UK and {reland based

Corporate Cilents whose supply chains we engage

1o help our clients decarbonise their supply chain to
deliver organic growth of our ESG disclosure framewark
solutions in various global markets.

= Maintain a market leading position for each division
in each country of operation, maximising cash

~N
| generation for the benefit of al stakehoiders.
& r; - Leveraging our support for our UK, ireland, EU and
g! 5 US Corporate Clients whose business operations
e are captured by EU and US disclosure mandates to
- o deliver organic growth of our taxonomy and ESG

framework solutions in the £U and US markets.

6 inspired bLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

- leveraging our support for our EU and US based

Corporate Clients whose supply chains we engage

to help our clients decarbonise their supply chain to
deliver organic growth of our ESC disclosure framework
solutions in various global markets.
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Delivering long-term sustained growth

In order to meet this purpose, we consider our strategy over three-time horizons

frem an economic, environmental and sccial perspective.

+ Prepare and impiement required actions for the
emerging ESC disclosuras mandates in the UK
and lretand.

Improve business processes (o allow betier management
of Supply Chain, Waste Managerent and Water
Management to allow an acceleration in delivering
net-zera carbon.

Review the office estate and rationalise to lecations that
have the potential 10 deliver absolute net-zero carbon on
a location basis.

Deliver carbon neutrality for our Scope 1and 2 emissions
and our consurmed Scope 3 emissions.

Deliver 2 25% reduction in water use by 2025,

Replace or remove single use plastic by 2025.
Reduce paper usage by 50% by 2025,
Recycle 90% of paper by 2025.

B0% of suppliers by spend making a TCFD disclosure
or equivalent by 2025.

Environmental Social

Prepare and implement required actions for the emerging
ESG disclosures mandates in the UK and Ireland.

Review learnings from the COVID-19 pandemic and
work collegiately with empioyees to implement "flexible
working practices”.

Invest in further [T infrastructure to create a best-in-class
remote working environment.

Implement the UN Sustainable Development Goals within
the business culture.

Develop a STEM Scholarship programme with a diversity
and inclusion focus.

Develop a training/apprenticeship programime o support
individuals frorm low-income households develop the required
technical skills to work in a low-carbon economy.

Launch the inspired Foundation that will receive donations
for products that we share with clients,

Create a prograrnme 1o scale charitable contributions from
the grganisation in properiion to business growth.

Increase supplier engagernent on ESG topics, including
reviewing Supplier Code of Conduct, taking into consideration
the Ethical Trading Initiative and |LO conventions.

Achieve net-zere through absolute Scope land 2
reduction on 3 location basis by 50% by 2030 versus 2019
and in total by 2035

Expand the reach of our STEM Schelarship programme with
a diversity and inclusion focus.

Expand the reach of our training/apprenticeship pragramme
to support individuals from low-incame households develop
the reguired technical skills towork in a low-carbon economy.

Expand the reach of the Inspired Foundation.

Maintain the charitable programme contributions from
the arganisation in proportion to business growth.

Continue supply chain engagement and develop an acticn
plan to support supply chain companies improve their
ESG performance.

» Net-zero for Scopel, 2 and 3 by 2050.

Expand the reach of our training/apprenticeship programme
1o support individuals from tow-income households develop
the required technical skills to work in a low-carbon economy.,
Expand the reach of the Ingpired Foundation.

Maintain the charitable programme contributions from

the organisation in proportion tc business growth.

Maintain supply chain action plan to support supply chain
companies improve their ESG performance.

inspired PLC 7
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STRATEGIC REFORT
Qur year In review

Q&A with CEO,

Q

a

EA)

8

What do you see as the biggest achievements for
the Group this year?

I think first and foremost it's how the team has
responded to the energy crisis; | can't emphasise
enough how serious this has been. Price wise, the
crisis has been up to five times worse than what

we saw during the Global Financial Crisis in 2008.
This has threatened many of our clients' continued
operations, leading to frustrated and often frantic
pleas for help that the team have admirably delivered
on. They continue to work tirelessly to support

our custorners through the challenges of these
unprecedented times.

Having survived that adversity, it's two key things:

a) Acceleration of the Optimisation Services
Division to make a physical difference 1o
those businesses in terms of reducing carbon
emissions and energy consumption.

b} Exponential evolution of the ESG Services
Division in terms of quality of offering and the
price point it can be delivered at giving me
confidence that we have a market leading
solution at the market leading price point.

The energy crisis has been a challenge for all
businesses, what are the key challenges Inspired
has supported clients on and has the crisis
changed how you engage with clients?

The chalienges clients have been facing can be
summarised as:

a)  Significant EBITDA shocks to one of their largest
indirect costs.

b) Suppliers who continuously change supply
contract offers or refuse to quote.

c) Suppliers who significantly increase their credit
reguirements to the client.

d)  Energy invoices where up te one in three can
have an error and when prices are three to five
times the long-term average, this error can be
significant.

To maintain our service levels in these challenging
times, we have had to incur more operating costs in
the Assurance Service Division. This is because cliants
need a greater intensity of service and supplier
inconsistency creates higher workloads.

However, these challenges have also created
opportunities to accelerate the value we add to
clients when reducing carbon emissions and energy
consumption. As such, we have and continue 1o focus
on the actions a client can control, independent of
energy prices.

Inspirec FLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2027

(-]

&

How have corporates been forced to react and
where have you seen the most innovation across
the business?

I think there has a been a wide range of responses
from consumers, We can summarise the best practice,
which in our opinion, should be adopted by all as:

a} Enter long-term flexible contracts where you
fix the suppliers margins, but not the price
of energy. This means you can separate the
supplier transaction process from the setting
of the price you will pay. If you are already on
a long-term flexible contract, meake sure you
keep your purchasing horizon open for at least
six seasons ahead. That means extension or
tendering decisions need to be made >3 years
ahead of contract end.

b) Develep arisk management strategy where you
can take price fixing and unfixing decisions that
are consistent with the needs of your business,

c) Develop a Carbon Action Programime, sayou can
use the crisis to make progress towards net-zero.

d) Implement optimisation projects to reguce
carbon emissions and energy consumption.

e) Produce effective ESG disclosures to allow you
to effectively cornmunicate with investors and the
clients whose supply chain they are active within.

ESG remains of significant importance to both
companies and stakeholders, what trends from
the year stocd out to you and where de companies
need the most help?

By far the biggest is ESG becoming a revenue critical
itern for clients. We see it in our business. If we want
1o be considered for a new piece of business, we
have to complete various hurdles tc even be inwith

a chance. Those hurdles now have a focus on ESG
matters. You must have a credible net-zero plan and a
social action programme. If you den't, you don't even
get to the starting line. It is the same in all sectors. If

a client wants to win a new sales contract or, more
increasingly, retain their existing clients, they need

to demonstrate their net-zero and social action plans.
Some businesses are captured by the ever-evolving
regulatery environment. But what all businesses
need to realise is that these reguiations require
compliance by their supply chain. As such the
increasing significance of ESG will be felt by all.

We find the key bit of help businesses needisa
practical delivered solution.

There are numerous companies that want to provide
strategic consultancy and run a materiality workshop
and when they leave the client has some suggestions
but no disclosure,

There are hundreds of companies promoting a
software solution, but the clients have no people
available to use the software or understand if the
answer it gives is correct.
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We are a full-service suite provider that is well positioned

in exciting macro themes, which are expected to be prevalent in
the market over the years to come.”

[
i
o
-
Vve find what clients want is an auditable, data driven Quir organic growth opportunity is the culmination g
disclosure which the client's Board of Directeors can use of the foundation work over the last five years, which n
to make decisions. This is the solution that the Group despite losing 18 months to COVID-19, has created ﬁ
provides to clients in what we believe to be a market a platform capable of creating a £40m EBITDA ]
leading service at a market leading price point. opportunity with only a modest execution of the e
-

@ Has the outlook for businesses changed because of full potential of the business.

more recent changing macroeconomic environment? & What are your key takeaways for investors?

@ We took the strategic decisions to owh our own O We are a robust business, extremely well placed to
proprietary software and develop Optimisation deliver growth. it has been tough 18 months lost
Services in 2018. This was followed by the decision to to COVID-19 and energy crisis pressures, and the
enter the ESG market on a bootstrap basis in 2021 business has still grown.

We are a full-service suite provider, which is well
positioneg in exciting macro themes, which are

! The increasing focus of society on net-zero has expected to be prevalent in the market over the

' created a long-term repeatable dermand for years to come.

Optimisation Services, where the object for clients is
to reduce the next marginat unit of carbon emissions

These choices have left us well positioned to benefit
' from the most exciting macrg themes in the market.

Our Software Services are becoming a market

|
. ! ' ; hich i
g or energy consumption. This growth is expected to leading platform w '.Ch s naw s,.upporte.d b:y over
f . &0 TPIs reflecting its increasing integration into the
i urther accelerate in absolute terms, as we see record fabric of the marketpla
pipelines for Optimisation Services for both large and place.

small clients. While there is still some short-term uncertainty
regarding Assurance Services as the Energy Crisis
evolves, this is more than offset by the opportunities
in Optimisation Services and E5G. This leads us te
expect to deliver double-digit EBITDA growth in 2023
and doubling EB!TDA by 2027.

Societies focus on £SG has driven the need for
effective ESG disclosures. These require the
processing and management of unstructured data,
which is a core competence of the business. This
demand has created a new stream of logos that join
the Group to manage ESG, develop a Carbon Action
Programme and deliver Optimisation Services.

Qur positioning within these themes is allowing the
Group to transform Client Life-time Value (CLV) for
our clients. Whereas many businesses use CLV to
extrapolate future potential, ours is empirically
observed with our largest cliants generating over £23
million CLV and repeatable demand in 10 of the last 13
years. Where we extrapolate out the life-time value of
oyr portfolio assuming a modest £3.1 million ten-year
CLv for large clients, our current client base provides a
potential CLV of £3.6 billion. This is exciting for the
growth of our business but more-so for the carbon
and cost reduction opportunity it provides

our clients.

@ Where do you see the biggest opportunities
for the Croup?

O Wearea double-digit growth machine. We have
delivered 8% CAGR from 2019 to 2022 which inciudes
a 25% reverse in 2020 due to COVID-19. Management
expects to deliver 12% 10 15% EBITDA growth in 2023
and have a credible organic growth plan to doubie
EBITDA over the next five years - repeating our
achievements over the last five years. We aim 1o
augment this strategy with acquisitions continuing
our raison d'etre of completing the right deal, 3t the

right time and the right price.

inspired PLC
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Qperational and strategic highlights

4 0b

Strong performance across all four business divisions, which are underpmned by
long-term structural growth drivers:

Services]
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Current trading and cutlook

» Trading in Q1 2023 started with considerable momentum
across the business which is consistent with management
expectations of circa double-digit EBITDA growth in year.
Despite the ongoing macroeconomic and geopolitical
uncertainties the Board is confident of the Group's
continued ability to deliver full year results in line

with expectations.

The Group has a subsiantial addressable market
underpinned by an extensive and blue-chip client base.
The ‘new normal, created by the energy crisis, has resulted

in increased demand for the Group's products and services

with optimisation ang £SG becoming a revenue centiic

itern for most businesses.

nue up

1 hine wi
Hted expec
post the Groun
witerim resuiis,

sigrificant o

£5G Serv

» For 2023, the Group intends to continue to refine lts
operating model in Assurance Services, whilst adapting
service levels to the new environment.

- Specific focus during the year will alsc be given to
increasing the 'life-time value' of clients by increasing
penetration across the Group's suite of services.

- The improved processes for managing working capital
within the Optimisation Services Division have continued
to operate well as we start the year providing confidence
that cash conversion for the year should operate in the 80%
to 90% range.

Inspired PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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ESG and sustainability
symbiotic market growth

AN

Mandatory climate risk and carbon emissions reporting will drive the
highest spend increase on consulting services and software in 2023."

Verdantix

$16bn

ESG and systainability consulting
forecasted to reach $16 billion by 2027

UK's 2030 target a

31%

reduction in emissions
to reach 2030 target

companies had approved emissions
reductions targets or commitments
with the SBTi at end of 2027

Over

investors are requesting
companies to make
CDP disclosures

Over
companies are required v\,
to make an annual /

TCFD disclosure . TS

50,000

companies will be covered by the
new CSRD obligations

Supporting over
5 o clients in making
various ESG disclosures.

ESG solutions

S e O
Qur plan

Growing our client base as ESG
disclosures become revenue

and investrment critical items for A
Corporate Businesses is :
underpinned by the continuing
introduction of new legistation.

Supporting cur clients to improve
their supply chain governance and
social impact putput to enhance
their ESC performance.

implerment Optimisation Services
and decarbonisation solutions to
improve their carbon balance
sheets and deliver net-zero.

Inspired PLC
Annal Report & Accounts 2022
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Carbon balance sheet

Demonstrable improvements in client's Carbon balance sheet helping them to

analyse their operations and drive reductions in their Carbon emissions

What is the emissians Understanding Understanding
inventory? operational emissions impact of
emissions sold products
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Delivering net-zero

Long-term programmes to decarbonise and deliver net-zero as businesses transition to a low carbon economy

Fucusing Areas of immediate attention that are Mediurm and long-term plans to identify bigger
attention cheaper and implemented quickly projects requiring more time and investment
i 7 v 7 . v
12020 2023 : ? Si. 0 i2080
* Establish emissions + Near term reduction o Long term reduction ¢ Achieve
baseline targets targets net-zero

-
® =~ ——s
.‘.? -y ‘

+ Develop a net-zero
strategy
B [ - # €.20% absoiute reduction.
Offset the residual
emissions

[ ]
. 7 . Ve o« 7
@ ( m ) @ . = Scope
— m Scope 2
People Froduct Lompany = S5copel

htesycie « Vehicies
L2 g 7~
PN RS &y

Waste Franchises Procurement

./ O |
Qﬁlecuicu; Packaging

Decarbonisation focus areas

Sres &
Buildings

. it is recammended to split decarbanisation action plan into focus areas. Each focus area will have specific targets linked to
Y the short and long-term targets. The leve! of detail and data required should be gradually built up.

Optimising efficiency : Decarbonisation

Supporting our clients to improve operational performance Enabling our clients to meet their net-zere targets.
while reducing their carbon emissions, to achieve their near

term targets

Solar PV can reduce energy
demand onsite by 21% an average.
The average £/kWh over 25 years of
sofar array is £0.0307 which can cut
costs by more than 80%.

@ LED solutions can deliver
savings in excess of 30%.

Circuit level monitoring,
can achieve up 1O 40%
energy efficiency gains.

Increase in demand for EV
workplace charging to suppaort.

&

Heat decarbonisation solutions
will provide cne of the biggest
challenges to the UK.

46.58% of water supply :
points in areas of serious : )
water stress.

_D\

detection improve water
efficiency up to 20%.

(%‘
/ I Water metering and ieak

Inspired PLC 13
Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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The power of
‘Repeatable Demand’

Sometimes stakeholders look at the recurring nature and higher margins of the
Assurance Services, ESG Services and Software Solutions divisions and they worry

that the Optimisation Services Division is simply a lower quality project-based business
unit. This misconception serves to fundamentally misunderstand the long-term nature
of the challenges that clients are facing and the critical role that the Group places in

helping clients meet this challenge.

Why does the Group have Optimisation Services?
The Group diversified into Optimisation Services in 2019 for
three key reasons:

1. Histerically, the Group had only managed half of the
client’s problemn, focusing on the ‘price side’ of their
energy cost equation. If you are going to serve a client
well, you need to support them on the whole preblem
they face.

When energy prices are rising, as we have seen during
the energy crisis, Assurance Services can only help a
client with ‘cost avoidance’, a client needs Optimisation
Services to reduce costs and protect the profitabitity

of the business.

When implementing carbon and energy reduction
through Optimisation Services, ¢lients have a
preference for an expedient, cost effective solution
from a service provider who has analysed aif of their
site data and prequalified that the project matches
their objectives already.

Timeline of projects completed and value generated

2010
O‘W“'ﬁ A

20m
e

2012
—

Why isn't it a low-quality project based business?
Clearly when the Group supports a client by intervening
with a building to recuce carbon or energy consumption,
that's a project and it doesn't repeat until there is a need
update or replace the solution. However, the problem

the Group sofves for the client is not:

“t need an LED solution or | need a solar solution.”

The problem the Group solves for clients is:
“I need to deliver o marginal reduction in carbon
ernissions to meet net-zero corbon or | need to deliver

a marginal reduction in energy consumytion; what
capital and interventions can | make to achieve this?”

When we solve this problem (the “Marginal Need"} we
benefit from ‘repeatable demand’.

2013

N

2014 2017
N N

A
LED
retrofit

6m  £2m

oy

LED
retrofit

LED
retrofit

f';:)
pls

€N

A

L

LED
retrofit

=1ER

N o

Controls Controls
installation installation

{Allign

0.8
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over; 500 spends ¢.£6m
stores on electricity,
gas anc! water

‘ ﬂ,ﬂ“ ] 3 ‘ .\.&g.;‘
By way of example, through our £23 7
subsidiary Ignite Energy LTD, we have . m +

worked with a leading retailer and FTSE Projects for multiple

250 constituent for the last 13 years and technologies
have delivered Optimisation Services

to that client in 10 out of 13 years. 3 0%

At a glance Energy and carbon consumption
reduction per year

w

A

whilst the annual fee for Asgurance Services has
remained at £135k for this client over the duration of

the relationship, we have delivered over £23.7 million in .
projects for muitiple technologies {and replacements £4 ’ m ‘
g |

as projects come 10 the end of their economic lives) to ]
reduce energy and carbon consumption at the relevant Further projects scheduled

stores by 30% per year, helping the client reduce costs
£1.7m

and their carbon footprint.
Average delivered

QOptimisation Projects

The client is currently spending c.£2.5 mitlion with

us annually on delivering energy initiatives to ensure
they become more sustainable, and this makes up a
significant propertion of their total procurement spend.

We expect to deliver a further £4.7 million of projects
delivering an annual saving on utility spend of 30%
across the portfolio.

On average we have delivered £1.7 million of
Cptimisation Projects by meeting the clients Marginal
Need, delivering value against that repeatable demand.

v -7

2018 2019 2020

L \:)l‘ —— & N e ) =R A k) *",:L--G_-"-
Controls Controls installation & LED LED &
installation chiller airflow optimisation upgrade BEMS upgrade

- EEECE
Annual Report&raccounis 20228
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Atrusted advisor to the UK manufacturing sector

A smarter appraach to the market

Many energy consultancies Lise single channel sales
strategies, often adopting cold-calling telesales tactics
when targeting businesses. This approach is expensive, time
consuming and results in lower quality, transactional client
engagements,

The Group takes a different route. Embracing an
omnichannel sales strategy, we use a range of digital, social,
content and networking hooks to engage businesses. This
includes partnering with trade and sector bodies, whereby
acting as a trusted advisor to the membership, we can
deploy a ‘one to many’ approach in terms of reaching our
target client profiles,

A perfect example of this is through our partnership

with Make UK, who represent over 20,000 manufacturers,
making thern the UK's leading voice for the sector. Starting
with our foundaticnal Assurance offerings, after gaining
sector and custorney trust we have expanded this into

our wider Optimisation and ESG Services. This has given
Make UK members gpportunity to not only control energy
costs more effectively, but build sustainability into their
operations, whilst continuing their journgy to net-zero.

From our work with the members and wider manufacturing
businesses, net-zero also helps themn create competitive

N

Q-Q4

2020

Service delivered
Assurance

Fixed and risk managed procurement, market analysis,
energy accounting, financial and consumption reporting.

Value generated
Delivered a series of webinars and thought leadership
pieces to members to support with controlling energy costs
in COVID-Y9,

Inspired PLC
Annual Report 8 Accounts 2022
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7
advantage in their market space. Being on the end of supply
chain pressure to disclose and reduce their carbon footprint,

manufacturers can differentiate themselves and add value
to their clients and supply chain.

Tackling the 4Cs for manufacturers

The COVID-19 pandemic and subsegquent energy price
crisis in 2022 put into sharp focus the challenges of cost
control and consumption reduction for energy-intensive
businesses. None more so than for the UK manufacturing
sector, where energy is often the highest indirect costto
these organisations. Along with this cost pressure, are the
strong drivers of charting a cost-effective route 1o net-zero
and complying with all carbon reporting legislation. it's a
huge burden on manufacturers who are aiready grappling
with tough econemic conditions.

Our partnership with Make UK goes beyond just service
provision —we have worked hard 1o develop our thought
leadership with Make UK over time 1o become a trusted
strategic advisor to the sector. We have actively led and
participated in a series of national and regional workshops,
steering groups, events, roadshows and campaigns guiding
the Make UK Executive and their members on how to
apply best practice in delivering effective energy and
sustainability strategies.

e

Q1-Q2

2021

Service delivered

Optimisation
introduced our net-zero and carbon reduction services
through our net-zero Toolkit.
Carbon disclosure services (ESOS and SECR}.
Carbon price optimisation {Green Gas and Power
Certificates, On-site Generation).

Levy exemption application and management
[CCA and EN).

value generated
- Delivered a programme of webinars, ‘Demystifying
net-zero', to build awareness around net-zero.

Designed and rolled out the net-zero Toolkit 1o SUPEOFT
the smaller-and-rmedium sized mzanufacturers in how to
develop and plan a net-zero roadmap.
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Service delivered i

Assurance and ESG :
Increased product offering with ESG disclosures, '
rmonitoring and targeting and renewables.

Renewed focus on energy price risk managernent i
and cost reduction to cornbat the energy crisis. !

Service delivered

Optimisation

+ Widened our net-zerc and carbon services to build
sub-sectorisation into service offerings.

Value generated

- Developed and delivered the 'UK Manufacturing Sectors’
roadmap 1o net-zero.

- Consuitation with wider manufacturing sector trade bodies
and adherence to a ciimate science pathway backed target.

- 5ponsored and judged 'Energy and Sustainability’

Value generated
in 2022, we delivered £750k of revenue, with 23 new
loges onboarded.

Focused on support to members navigating record high

category at National Awards. Celebrates the early adopters
or pro-active businesses making a real impact on their
journey to net-zero.

energy prices (energy crisis) through better purchasing,
energy optimisation and onsite generation.

Celebrates the early adopters or pro-active businesses
making a real impact on their journey to net-zero.

T BT —’L,f/
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EMaaS™ driving increases in Client Lifetime Va{bue

The Group has a track record of delivering significant carbon and energy reduction

solutions fur larger organisations. Through the acquisition of Businesswise Solutions R
we have been able to extend this capability across all of our client base through N
EMaaS™ (Energy Management as-a-Service), W
EMaas™ puts expert carbon and energy managéement EMaaS™ can be deployed o good effect by almaost m
into the hands of almost any size business by blending any business as a subscription service giving access to

hardware, software, and expertise to achieve strategic energy manager expertise on a ¢all-off basis. Circuit level

energy ohjectives. When deployed within an engaged monitoring and analysis tools identify apportunities for TR
organisation, it delivers exponential value to the client, efficiency, pinpointing energy usage and wastage at

and pravides the besis for them to improve their ESG a granular level.

disclosures which in turn opens up many more revenue

generating oppaortunities for the Croup increasing the

Client lifetime Value (CLV).

'W -

EMaaS™ is revenue generating as a service ac 3

of clients, but mcre importantly is one of the brldges betweor

a transactional Assurance relationship to the trusted advisor status.
This cpens the door for a2 better understanding of a client's energy

usage, leading to improved ESC disclosures and onte further
Optimisation Services under carbon action programimes.

Client 1 . Client 2

Retail Brewery

£0.8m ® £1.5m £0.5m © £0.8m

Assurance Services Assurance Services
£80k p.a. ES57K P.a.
EMaas™ added EMaasS™ added
£72K 0.8, 24K P.a.
Efficiency savings identifled Efficiency savings identified

6.5% >16%

]8 nspired PLC
Anmgal Qepar & Accunis 2002
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Client3 Client 4

Food distributor Manufacturer

£0.5m @ £0.8m  £0.J7m O £0.25m
50Kk p.a. £17% o3,
Ezéa;kagé;oao :E'Waak ag@oao

EABK under consideration
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Chairman’s statement

Richard Logan
Chairman

DA

We continue to
position the Group as
the leading provider
of services to help
businesses responds
to climate change
and meet their
net-zero targets.”

inspired PLC
Annual Reporl & Accounts 2022
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Delivered across all business
divisions and created a
strengthened platform
capable of generating long
term growth, against a very
challenging backdrop in UK

energy markets

- 022 was a year of significant
progress across all business

divisions, with a strengthened
platform created, capable of generating
long-term growth, against a very
challenging backdrop in UK energy
markets. As a Soard, we are incredibly
proud of what our tearm has achieved
during these unprecedented times. We
cortinue to overcome the challenges the
UK market faces, positioning the Group
as the leading provider of services to
help businesses to respond to climate
change and meet their net-zero targets

The year started with the impact of
the war in Ukraine causing significant
volatitity and uncertainty across
cormmodity and energy markets.

The crisis further highlighted energy
as an essentiat Board level pricrity
and the Group continues to take every
opportunity to help all clients mitigate the
cost of energy and manage their energy
consumption and carbon emissions
during these unprecedented times.

We are delighted with the resihent
revenue and margin performance of
the Assurance Services in 2022. The
iast three financial years have been

an especially challenging time for our
Assurance Services, with COVID-19
impecting both 2020 and 2021, and the
energy crisis impacting 2022. Our drive
10 continue 1o provide a first-class level of
service 1o our Assurance clients has led
to an increase in our overheads during
the year, an investrment in our cost base
which we believe is essential if we are to
continue 1o be the market leader.

Cur decision to diversify, firstly into
Cptimisation Services in 2019 and
subsequently into ESG Services in 2021,
has proven o be an excellent strategic
choice Optimisation has grown rapidly
and now represents the majority of
Group revenues whilst ESG, from a
standing start, is already experiencing
rapid growth. Both continue to provide
significant opportunities for long-term
growth. Inspired has the benefit of

a substantial client base deveioped
over the years through its Assurance
Division. The energy crisis has provided
the additional catalyst to potentially
accelerate that growth through
increasing levels of cross-seling

into our client base, supplementing
continued new business generation.

Together with the strong foundation
of the performance of the Assurance
operation, we have created the
platform for an exciting period of
opportunity for the business.

Envirorrmental, Social
& Governance [(ESG)

" As a service provider helping businesses

deliver market teading ESG disclosures,
it is important that the Group is at the
forefront of £5GC performance.

Puring 2022, the Croup made
the following progress towards its
ESG objectives:

1. Modelled our net-zero pathway.

2. Piloted half hourly monitoring
at our head office which will be
roiled out across our estate to
drive energy efficiency and reduce
our carbon emissions.

3. Introduced an Electric Vehicle
scheme to employees.
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4. lntroduced a new suite of
professional skilts development
courses for employees.

5. Prepared our third voluntary Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD).

6. Prepared our third voluntary ESG
report aligned with the Glokal
Reporting |nitiative {GRI).

7. Subrmnitted our first COP disclosure
and achieved a B score.

For 2023, the Group's planned ESGC
deliverables can be summarised as:

1. Submit our near-term and net-zero
targets for validation to the Science-
Based Targets Initiative (SBTi).

2. Engage with our top
suppliers on ESC.

3. Start conducting lifecycle
assessments (LCA) on top
selling products.

4, Develop our STEM
scholarship programme.

8. Prepare our first Task Force on
Nature-Related Financial Disciosure.

6. Prepare our fourth Task Force
on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD).

7. Prepare our fourth voluntary
ESGC Repoit aligned to the Global
Repeorting |nitiative [GR!).

Dividend

Since IPO, Inspired has established

a track record of delivering profitable
and cash-generative growth which has
facilitated a consistent and progressive
dividend policy.

Accordingly, the Board is pleased to
propose a finat dividend of 014 pence
(2021: 013 pence) suljject to shareholder
approval at the AGM in June, resulting
in a full year dividend of 0.27 pence
(2021 0.25 pence)]. The dividend aligns
with the Board's stated policy of a
dividend cover of at teast 3x earnings,
with the objective of delivering
progressive dividend growth over
tirme and reflects the Board's
canfidence in the business.

The dividend will be payable on

26 July 2023 to all shareholders on the
register on 16 June 2023 and the shares
will go ex-dividend on 15 June 2023.

Staff

On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank all our employees who continue
1o overcome the challenges of these
difficult times. We have continued,
throughout, to invest in our valued
team and the business. The Croup
takes every opportunity to help all
clients mitigate the cost of energy and
manage their energy consumption
and carban emissions during these
unprecedented times.

Board update

On 2 Mareh 2023, Sarah Flannigan
stepped down from the Board

and we welcorned Peter Tracey, as a
Non-Executive Director. | wish to thank
Sarah for her contribution 1o the Group's
achievernents since joining the Board in
June 20?20. Sarah has been a trusted and
valued member of the Board, providing
strong supgort and guidance throughout
the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent
unprecedented energy market volatility.
Peter adds significant capital markets
experience and brings with him a skill
set that complements those of the
existing Non-Executive Board members.
The Board looks forward to benefiting
from Peter's knowledge and experience
as we work towards another year of
significant growth and development

The Board will continue to consist of
three Executive Directors supported by
a Non-Executive Chairman and three
indepandent Non-Executive Directors,
representing a broad mix of skills and
diversity to align with the Group's
evolving strategy.

Richard Logan
Chairman
28 March 2023

DocuSigned by:

Kidiard (pppun.
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UK’s leading commercial Strong macro-drivers Differentiated
energy and sustainability + Every business inthe country who value proposition
advisor typically spends more than £100,000 « By solving complexity for clients

+ Leading technology enabled service
provider of energy advisory and
sustainability services, supporting
over 3400 businesses in their drive
Lo net zero, controlling energy costs
and managing their response to
climate change.

Unique energy assurance and
optimisation services as businesses
focus on reducing costs and the
net-zero Carbon agenda to manage
-the 4Cs [Cost, Consumption,
Compliance and Carbon.

By procuring effectively, managing
operatiaons and monitoring
performance, we can directly impact
clients carbon performance.

Received the LSE Green ECconomy
Mark in November 2020, recognising
the Group's environmental and
strategic focus, service and support
to chents and the impact the
business has on the green economy

on energy and water per year is a
potential customer.

+ Reguiatory and legal obligations for
cormnpanies 1o demanstrate bow they
meet the necessary standards, gives
inspired the advisor status.

+ £2.5bn market opportunity in what
is a highly fragmented market.

« Offers a leading ESC disclosure
service in response to the growing
climate change challenges facing
UK businesses.

- The global energy crisis has
highlighted energy as a high pricrity
Board level topic, accelerating the
need for the Group's services.

« Strong sales pipeline demonstrating
we are the market leading solution as
a market leading price point.

with respect to energy and ESG, we
understand their business and their
carbon related data.

We provide disclosures and
information which allows our clients
to meel their regulatory and legal
obligations and have a baseline for
making decisions with respect to
energy and the environment.

A genuine end-to-2nd solutions
provider and our services earn

us Trusted advisor status, at client
C-Suite level. By mining the data, we
collect through our assurance and
ESG services we, not only design but
implement solutions for clients to
reach net-zero.

We are the leading independent
solution agnostic provider of services
that manage the four C's (Cost,
Consumption, Compliance and
Carbon} and the leading player

of scale in our market.

Manage the four C's

Cost
Consumption
Market opportunity CO m pl ia nce

£2.5bn Carbon

22 Inspired PLC
Aannuai Report & Accounts 2022
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Technology enabled service
« We own the proprietary software
that underpins our service.

-« We process millions of pieces
of client data with respect to
cost, consumption and carbon
every month.

+ We monetise this technology
on a 5aa$5 basis with other market
participants, extracting revenues
from parts of the market we wouldn't
normally have access to.

- By providing technology to our
competitors, we professionalise
our M&A pipeline and simplify
the integration costs when
we acquire a business already
utilising our backbone.

« We provide disciosures and
information which allows our clients
to meet their regulatory and lega!
obligations and have a baseline for
making decisions with respect te
energy and the environment.

Saas revenue

c. £2.5m

Ambitious with a stronyg

growth engine

+ Forthe last S years we have dehivered
a transformationa!l growth thesis
through acquisition, delivering
market consolidation to become
the player scale, diversification of
capabitity to increase the breadth
of our client relationships and
technology ensblement to improve
the effectiveness of our service

« Alt of this has been achieved whilst
doubling EBITDA over the last 5 years
and creating an organization which
designed to have a business plan to
double EBITDA again over the next 5
years through organic growth.

- With a focus on client life time
value that can be empirically
evidenced through our multi-
decade relationships with clients
FY¥23 sees a business plan designed
to deliver double digit Adj EBITDA
‘Growth of 14%.

FY23 Organic double digit Ad). EBITDA
Growth expectation

c. 14%

.

N

Experienced senior

leadership team

- Committed leadership team
invested in building out a business
That can scaie.

« Highly experienced management
tearn positioned to deliver
shareholder value.

+ A balanced and successful Board
and senicr managernent team
provide the capability to effectively
navigate the fast-evolving sector.

« Unique combination of esiablished
supplier relationships, market
expertise and technical capability.

Combined senior leadership
team years experience

over. 35yrs

Inspired PLC
Annua) Report & Accounts 2022
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

Mark Dickinson
Chief Executive Officer

AA

Qur strong
performance this
year is testament

to our evolving
offering within each
of our four divisions
and the teams we
have working across
our business.”

Insgpired PLC
Annual Report 8 Accounts 2022
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Inspired’s performance

has been very strong both
financially and operationally
in what has been the most
challenging year ever seen
in UK energy markets

challenging year ever seen in the

UK energy markets, when the need
for our services supporting clients
in their drive to net-zero, controlling
energy costs and managing their
response to climate change has
never been more apparent, Inspired’s
perforrmance has been very strong,
both financially and operationally.

I n what has been the most

The unprecedented conditions in the
UK energy markets, which we believe
has started a transition to a new normal’,
have sharpened our clients’ focus on
ensuring they have invested effectively
in carbon and energy reduction. The
energy crisis has accelerated the focus
on ESG objectives as a key priority at
Board level across our client base and
our evolving strategy is well aligned to
meet the resulting market demands
and requirements.

The secuiar market tailwinds are

now well established, as the business
represents a pure pfay investment onthe
exciting macro ESG and net-zero themes,
providing a significant opportunity for
the Group to grow and capture & larger
market share. Our strong performance
this year is testament to our evolving
offering within each of our four divisions
and the tearms we have working across
our business.

The increased demand delivered

3 considerable acceleration in

revenue growth of 31% above FY21,

at £88.8 miillion, ahead of previous
market expectations. With significant
demand for Optimisation Services, a
solid H2 performance in Assurance
Services, combined with encouraging
momenturn in our ESG Services division,
the Group delivered adjusted EBITDA
of £21.0 million, being 6% ahead of FY21.
We delivered strong underlying cash
generation in the period, with cash

generated from operations increasing
N3% 1o £21.7 million, driven by improved
working capital management within
Optimisation Services. The need for
energy efficlency initiatives continued
to drive strong demand for our services
and we expect this momentum o
continue heading into the new
financial year and beyond.

whilst mindful of the current backdrop,
and in particular the risk posed by
prolonged inflation in energy costs to
our clients, which we constantly look

te help them mitigate, the long-term
opportunities for the Group have been
made even more apparent in FY22. As
a result, we have entered FY23 with
considerable momentum across the
business which is reflected in our FY23
EBITDA growth expectations. We have
& substantial addressable market,

high profile clients, and a high-quality
business model driving growth in
revenue, adjusted EBITDA and cash
generation. These faciors, coupled with
a record new business pipeline, underpin
the Board's confidence in the iocng-term
growth and success of the Group.

During this period of unceriainty, the
Group has continued to work tirelessly
to support clients in the face of such
challenges and, on behalf of the Board,
| would like to thank all colleagues,
clients and suppliers for their efforts
and collaboration during these
challenging times.

Strategy

in 2021, the Group evolved 1o Inspired
plc, with four key reporting segments
During 2022, it has become clear that
Optimisation Services are the iogical
conclusion for clients who utilise our
Assurance Services or our ESG Services,
as both lead to the implementation
of a carban action programme to
reduce energy costs and deliver



net-zero. There remains a substantial
opportunity to provide the full suite
of services across our client base who
may currentty only purchase one of

the Croup's services. This will not only
embed the Group as a trusted provider
and adwisor (o 1ts clients, but alse
substantially increase the lifetime
value and level of repeat revenues
underpinning the future growth of the
business. All divisions are supported by
our proprietary software provided by
our Software Services Division.

This focus on client lifetime value
{CLV) has identified the opportunity to
materialiy change the client lifetime
value of ¢.2,500 of our 3,500 clients.
For example, a retailer that the Group
has worked with for 13 years has an
Assurance Services CLV of ¢ £1.5 million.
Its CLV from Optimisation Services,
where the Group has received repeat
demand on 10 of the last 13 years, is
over £20 mitlion, an increase in CLYV
over the last 13 years of over 10 times
with more to come. This provides a
substantial organic revenue growth
opportunity if applied effectively across
the Group's client portfolio.

if we consider the wider portfolio in
rerms of ten-year CLV opportunity,
we can see that of our 850 larger
clients there is the opportunity 1o
increase their CLV from £0.2 million
o £31 miltion and of our 1600 smaller
clients there is the ppportunity to
increase our CLV from £0.05 million
to £0.5 million. During 2022 we were
active on site on a full-service basis with
12 large clients and 15 smaller clients.

Qur focus on CLV affords the Group
the opportunity to double EBITDA
organically over the next five years
and we believe this would require us
to cycle through ¢15% of the client
base on a full-service basis to achieve
that cbjective.
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Assurance Services

Qur Assurance Services Division is at the
front line of helping businesses Manage
their energy pricing, the importance of
which has never been greater because of
the energy crisis, helping them manage
the risks of the energy markets whilst
taking advantage of opportunities to
reduce costs as they occur.

To do this effectively, thousands of
pieces of data need te be processed
every month, which is made possible by
our technology enabled service. Once
this data is collected and audited, it
provides the detail required to identify
and deliver effective Carbon Action
Programmes and Optimisation Services.

The Assurance Services Division
performed resiliently through a
challenging year, with a srmall reduction
in rmrargin driven by increased operating
costs gs the energy crisis increased the
amount of re-work needed to place
energy supply contracts and the intensity
of client interactions required tc meet
their needs.

As expected, the division endured
higher client churn than previously
experienced during the period. Despite
this being largely offset by record new
busiress wins in the period, the time lag
between a new business win contracting
and the contract commencing, with the
Group only Starting to recognise revenue
at the point a contract goes live, led 1o
& reduction in organic growth rates in
the year, and we expect this [0 continue
into 2023,

impact of macro environment

The energy crisis saw some businesses
facing up 1o 500% increases in energy
costs during 2022 Whilst energy prices
are significantly iower as we come to the
end of Q1 2023, we observe the elevation
of energy costs on Board agendas
becoming a 'new normal’, as businesses

b |
o |

_—

look to professionalise their approach to
managing energy costs and reducing
carbon emissions.

Key developments and outlook

As the player of scale in the market, the
Group enjoyed a record year of new
client wins with companies including
Aldi, Naked Wines plc, Arnold Clark LTD,
Signature Pubs, Helto Fresh, Moto, Extra
MSA, and Saint-Gobain ail becoming
clients during the period.

Increasing operating costs in the
division have been a function of
increased service needs of clients during
the energy crisis and chzllenges in
supporting business place contracts
with energy suppliers.

As we look at 2023 and beyond, the
Group will focus an increasing the CLV
where we can add material value to the
client across all divisions.

ESG Services

The ESG Services Division supports
businesses with the production of their
ESG disclosures to meet their requlatory
obligations and determinihg strategies
to deliver the ESG impacts they

wish to make.

Cnece a business has a robust process
for making consistent disciosures, its
Board has the inforrmation it needs to
make more effective decisions and the
data required to formulate 2 Carbon
Action Programme and deliver
Optimisation Services.
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Chief Executive Officer's statement continued

ESG Services continued
Following the CGroup's organic entry
into the ESG market during 2021, the
division delivered revenue growth of
167% compared to Fy2) and delivered
adjusted EBITDA In line with the
upgraded expectations post

interiem results.

This exceptional organic growth is
testament to the Group creating a
market leading product at a market
leading price point, in a market which
is still Forming in termes of its needs
and reguirements.

Whilst there are a range of consultative
solutions in the marketplace, they

are often delivered by inexperienced
resources and ultimately do not lead to
a functioning deliverable being produced
that meet the client's needs. There

are also several busingsses aiming to
provide Software-as-a-Service ($3as)
solutions which purport to meet the
client's needs. However, typically these
only solve c70% of the chent’s problem
and the client doesn't generally have
reseurces available internally to use
such software.

The Group is increasingly confident

it has the most effective technoicgy
enabled data driven solution in the
market which is resonating well with
clients and is delighted to be & recipient
of the LSE Green Economy mark.

Impact of macro environment

ESG has evolved from a reiuctant
compliance obligation to a revenue
critical iterm for many businesses. Even
if 2 business does not currently have

a mandatory compliance obligation,

if they want to win new business from
their clients, they invariably need to
have an ESG disciosure and a Carbon_
Action Programime.

This macro envirenrment makes

a robust ESG disclosure service a
nen-discretionary requirement for
almost any business wishing to defend
or grow its revenue line and is likely

to become increasingly mandatory

as most larger organisations

are compelied 1o make TCFD
disclosures by 2025.

Key developments and outlock
The ESG Services Division is
growing quickly within a new and
exciting market that has become
non-discretionary for investors and

Inspired PLC
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businesses alike. The Group now
provides full ESG Disclosure Services for
several substantive organisations such
as Lookers ple, Videndum plc, Naked
wines ple, QA Limited, City Electncal
Factors {CEF) and John Wiley & Sons.

The original mandatery ESG disclosures
facing businesses in the UK market
were SECR and £505 where the Group
currentlty has approximately 282 clients
with an average ten-year CLV of

£0.1 million. of which 16 have been
converted to TCFD and ESG Disclosure
Services with an CLV of £0.4 million

For 2023, the focus of the ESG Services
Division is increasing the lifetime value
of existing clients and adding new
clients to the Group.

Optimisation Services

Once clients have benefited from

the Group’s Assurance Services to
manage the price of their energy and
are reporting their ESG disclosures
effectively, their attention quickly turns
to how they can reduce energy and
carbon emissions.

The cornerstone of Assurance and ESG
Services js data managemeant, and this
data allows the Group to help ¢lients
identify opportunities to reduce carbon
emissions and energy consumption,
delivering their response to climate
change and further reducing their
energy costs. As a Group, we focus on
providing Optimisation Services to
existing clients as a cross-sell service,
which dramatically improves the cost
effectiveness and relevance of the
solution as we already understand

the client’s business intimately. This

is where we can significantly move

the dial with respect to CLV where

we expect that the Group would only
need to cycle ¢15% of the client base
to organically double EBITDA over the
next five years.

wWe process the data to identify projects
that meet the clients return on capital
requirements, or support in identifying
financing solutions and then operate as
a 'turn-key' solution provider, designing
the project, procuring the equipment,
project managing the install and
quality assuring the outcome for

the client.

Optimisation Services has performed

ahead of expectations, with a strong
step up in demand as clients focus

on the economics of investments

of energy reductions and delivering
net-zero. We have observed this
acceleration in performance not only
in the number of active projects on
client premises but also in the pipeline
of prospective opportunities that are
available, which has surged 500%
since the start of 2021

As we address the strong macro
themes of net-zerc and ESG, we expect
Oprirnisation Services to be a key driver
for revenue and EBITDA growth not
only into the near term but for the
foreseeable future as the world strives
10 meet 2050 targets,

One of the most pleasing things about
this achieverment is that it represents
the validation of an investment thesis
initiated in 2018 and represents only

a fraction of the opportunity that is
available to the Group. These results
have been achieved by active on-premise
intervention, with only 27 clients from

a potential pool of over 3,500

impact of macro environment
Businesses have s need to manage
their response to climate change

and deliver net-zero, which has been
accelerated by the energy crisis and
started the transition to 3 ‘new normai’
Optimisation Services are a Board level
agenda item and there is a desire 1o
work with technology agnostic service
providers who understand the client's
business and can deliver in a timely
manner with cost certainty.

The ‘learned experience’ of the energy
crisis means that businesses are
unlikely to ever want to experience
the costs shocks seen during 2022
again and the emergence of E5G as

3 revenue generating hygiene factor
le2ads us to believe the demand for
Optimisation Services is likely to
continue to accelerate into the future.

Key development and outlook
Strong data management from our
Assurance and ESG Services has
allowed us 1o help clients identify

and evaluate opportunities for energy
and carbon reduction, delivering ever
increasing numbers of on-premise
solutions for clients.

During the period, we have been
delighted to deliver sotutions for
clients including WH Smiths, SSP, IVC,
Interfloor, M. Dickson, Ann Summers
and Informa.
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We have been particularly pleased by
the repeatable nature of this demand,
noting that the need we satisfy for
clients is not the urne-uffinmple nentation
of a particular technology, but rather one
of supporting them to deploy marginal
units of capital to deliver incrermental
carbon or energy reduction It is iterative
i nature with continued refinement
and improvernent over time using the
information generated each period
which is reported against under a
client's ESG disclosure requirements.

Software Services

Assurance, Optimisation and

ESG Services require significant
managerment and processing of
unstructured data which underpins
our service delivery. The technolagy
enablerment of these solutions is
provided by our proprietary software
which has been significantly developed
over recent years,

Our technology platform is increasingly
becoming a Mmarket standard with more
than 60 TP!s (where our technology
undlerpins the services of competing
companies) and 200 direct clients
utifising our platform.

Within the TPt market, the energy
ciisis has led to a reduced investment
in technology which has inhibited the
organic growth of Software Services.
However, the division delivered growth
in 2022 whilst retaining attractive
margins, adding a number of flagship
clients 1o its user base including NHS
Property Services, Peabody, Laser

and SMS plc.

impact of macro environment

The reduction in technology
investment caused by the energy ¢risis
in 2022 appears to have been an issue
pertaining to timing and availability

of cash, as opposed to a change in
underlying demangd. Whilst this has
acted as a dampener for growth, we
expect it 1o have diminishing impact
in 2023 as the world adjusts 1o the 'new
normal” and TPis require software to
meet evolving client needs.

Key developrments and outiock
Ouring 2022, additional security features
were added to the software, allowing
the division to normalise the prices of
the base software across the client base
which we expect 1o deliver a full year
effect in 2023

In addition, we expect the release of

the software modules during 2023 to
further stimulate the growth potential of
this division during 2023.

Acquisitions

During 2022, the Group acquired
Digital Energy Limited and Information
Prophets Compliance Limited, providing
software which has been integrated
into our Software Services division, a
portfolio of energy account clients which
has been integrated into Assurance
Services, and a selection of building
certification clients that have been
integrated into the Optimisation
Services Division.

The Group cantinues 1o see ME&A

as a significant route to creating
vatue for shareholders and we

have built a strong track record of
earning enhancing acguisitions and
an ability to successfully integrate
those acquisitions. This strategy has
materially contributed 1o the growth
and development of the Group over
the years, both through scaling up the
business and expanding the breadth of
services we now provide to our clients,
the acquisition of Ignite Energy LTD

to enable the entry into Optimisation
Services being a case in point.

In F¥Y22 the Group paid £10.8 million

of performance related payrments for
past acguisitions. This payrment was
funded frorm our cash generated from
operations and existing facilities. In
FY23 and FY24 we fully expect to make
further significant cash payments as
past acquisitions perform and deliver
against the stringent growth metrics
we set at the time of acquisition, further
reducing the contingent liabilities on
our balance sheet.

4@ b

QOur approach 10 transaction structuring
does focus on using perfarmance
payments (in the form of contingent
consideration), this enables us to pay

for actual realised EBITDA rather than
on the basis of forecast EBITDA as well
other henefits. Qur approach has meant
that the ‘'see through' multiptes for the
businesses acquired by the Group has
averaged less than four times EBITDA
as the performance-based structures
complete, and most importantly it has
been proven to protect our shareholders
during periods of volatility such as in
2020 and 2021,

We maintain an active pipeline of M&a
opportunities which can enhance our
products and services and the value we
can deliver to clients. Together with our
focus on organic growth, acquisitions
will form a key part of our overall strategy
to create long-term sustainable value
for our shareholders,

LHOd3Y D1D31vYHLS

Strategic pricrities and outlook
The 'new normal’ created by the energy
crisis and £5C becoming a revenue
centric itern for most businesses has
accelerated demand for the Group’s
products and services.

For 2023, we will be focusing on
refining our operating model in
Assurance Services, normalising
marging and adapting service levels
te the new environment.

Specific focus will be given 1o
increasing the ‘lifetime value' of clients
by increasing the number of clients
utilising the Group's Optimisation

and ESG Services.

Trading during Q1 2023 has started in
line with management expectations ta
deliver double-digit percentage EBITDA
growth in FY23 as the Group carried
positive momentum inte the year

Mark Dickinson
Chief Executive Officer
28 March 2023

OocuSigned by:
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At the start of 2022 we were able

to share our organisational fly wheel

to allow stakeholders to understand the
Croup’s operational engine. During 2022,
we have continued to execute that strategy
effectively and as our learned experience
increases incrementally improve it by
better understanding the life-time value

of our client base.

(L Coeremsing ¥hits ¢ Speranisy

In order to deliver net-zero carbon solutions that make

a difference we need 1o provide services that influence
as many points of carbon ermsssion {Units of Opporiunity)
as possible. For a business these are meter points where
energy is consumed and buildings and structures where
operations Gecur, We increase the number Units of
Cpportunity we manage, through:

a) Organic tlient acquisition providing Energy
Assurance Services.

b} Organic client acquisition providing ESG
Disclosure Services.

c} Acquisitions of Energy Assurance Businesses like
Business Wise, CGEM and LS| Energy Heldings Limited
lacquired in 2020).

d) Forensic audits of clients historic energy costs unlock
latent value in their property estates.

e} S5zaS sales of our proprietary software to other technology
enabled service providers.

f} SDGMe, where our free software helps clients employees
engage with £SG.

g) Investors, where fund managers recommend our services
to their portfolio companies.

We will start by reviewing how our
organic growth engine works and
proceed to demonstrate the potential

to further accelerate the strategy through
an increased focus on ‘life-time value”

of the client.

" 2. Increase Energy Assurance Services &
ESG Disclosure Services we provide to our
Units of Opportunity

Our Energy Assurance Services & ESG Disclosure Services are
effectively '‘Data Services’ which collect, validate and process
the clients unstructured data relating to energy and carbon
emissions for corporate businesses, delivering regulated
compliance services, resolving complexity with respect to
non-discretionary purchases and ESC Disclosure.

These services require regular monthly interaction with the
client's piocurerment, operations, property and finance teams
and often resuit in a regular high-quality C-Suite refationship
with the client. Through the provision of these services we:

. Help the client control their costs

b Ensure the client complies with their legal and
regulatory obligations.

¢ Manage the data that allows us to identify their optimum
opportunities for reducing carbon emissions and deliver
net-zero carbon.

Earn the right to help them implement those net-zero
carban solutions.
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Qur business model continued

3. Cross-sell carbon reduction and social
impact services to clients

Mur Fnery Optimisatinn Senvices are vary rarely cold
directly 1o @ new prospect. They are a cross-sell 1o the Units
of Opportunity that we have already built a 'trusted advisor’
relationship with ctients who are engaged with our Data
services, These services inglude:

a) Monitering, targeting, behavioural change and waste
reduction.

b} Net-zero carbon strategy development.

c) Metering and building controls.

d} Energy efficiency and reguction measures.
e} Demand Side Response.

f) On Site generation and storage.

Inspired is one of the few independent, solution agnostic service
providers that can provige an end-to-end service in relation to
delivering net-zero carbon for the corparate businesses.

4_Increase the number of carbon reduction and
social Impact services to clients

Historically Inspired bas its roots in the 'E’ of ESG and we
have built capability in this area via acguisitions. The Croup
will continue to add more solutions and services not only
in the 'E' but also the '$' and ‘G’ by future acquisitions or
partnerships. This inCreases the revenue we can generate
as part of cross-sell process as set out in section 3.

IBYinvestinftechnslogy tolincieaselDatalservicesy

In order to retain the right to provide net-zero carboen services
to our customers’ Units of Oppartunity, we need to remain
relevant and market ieading with respect to our data services
in order to maintain our trusted advisor status with the

client. This requires capital investment in new solutions and
under pins maintaining and organically growing our Units of
Opportunity.

Such investment is a fundamental part of cur flywheel.
However, it also provides a vehicle for adding indirect Units
of Opportunity 1o our portfolic through our provision of Saas
solutions to other service providers in the marketptace. This
gives us an extra return on this investment and a route to
further accelerate our organisaticnal fly wheel.

6. Drive down the cost to serve for each
Unit of Opportunity

Continuous focus on driving down the cost to serve for
each Unit of Opportunity allows us te invest in new service
provision, business improverment and organically increasing
our Units of Opportunity.

The life-time value of our clients (CLV)
Cur strategic evolution, stated with some fundamental
building blocks which can be summarised as:

1) Assuming ownership of cur proprietary technology.
2) Diversification in Optimisation Services.

3) Diversification into E5G Services.

4} Increase the units of opportunity through acquisition.

Inspired PLC
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The Group now has in excess of 3.500 clients, a diverse
solution set that plays to some of the most relevant challenges
facing society anc is weil positioned to focus on increasing
the litetime value of its client base.

Clients are generally onboarded to the arganisation via the
Assurance or ESG Services where the CLV on a gross margin
basis is high gquality but relatively modest.

By providing these technology enabled services which
involve the management of large amounts of unstructured
data, we support those clients in managing their energy
costs and making their ESG Disclosures which builds trusted
C-Suite relationships and invariably leads to a Carbon Action
Frogramme/net-zero roadmap being created.

Once the road map exists and given the Group is technology
agnostic, the Group is welt placed to help the client
implerment those choesen solutions and this significantly
increases the CLV.

The average journey for increasing that CLV from cur existing
client base is shown on the right:

The acceleration in Optimisation and ESG Gross Margin has
in 2022 been delivered by relatively modest penetration in the
client base where clients have entered into projects to deliver
energy and carbon savings. Clearly these project-based
revenues are not recurnng but they are repeatable.

A common misconception amongst our stakeholders is
that our Services involve refitting lighting, adding a building
controls systern or implementing a solar solution and this

is 3 one-off thing and the client then will not deliver more
revenue to the Group.

Such a misconceprion is to misunderstand the problerm we
are solving for the client,, The client has to achieve 'net-zero
carbon’ and as such their repeatable need can be stated as:

“] need to deploy marginal capital to deliver a
marginal reduction in carbon emissions and/or
energy consumption.”

Now that ESG is a revenue sensitive item, and the

energy crisis has shown how impertant reducing energy
consumption is the client has a repeatable demand to install
the next technology until they run out of capital or they reach
their tolerance to procure financed salutions. This is the need
that the Group satisfies for its clients and is illustrated by the
case study on page 62.

In order to deliver a doubling of gross margin over five years,
the Group only needs 1o achieve full CLV for 3% of its client
base during 2028. Clearly those clients may be different to
those that the Group worked with in 2027 or 2026, but even if
they were completely different clients, providing the CLV per
client holds true the Group would have cycled less than 15%
of its client base over five years.

Having becorme the player of scale in the market and
building a suite of solutions to give a 'full-service solutior,
the Group will for 2023 and beyond focus transforming its
operating model 1o increasing average CLV per client.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our KPIs

We monitor a range of financial metrics that
reflect the underlying strength of our business

DacuSign Envelope ID: 762B62B9-3CCE-499B-A95F-E94ACDFR0609

and it’s operating divisions, enabling measurement
of progress against our strategy

Group

Average nurmber of persons employed

+5%

2022 &4
2021 608
2020 521

Average number of perscns
employed indicates both the organic
and acquisitive growth during the
period, and the continued investument
in talent to facilitate future growth.

Revenue {(£000)

+31%

2021 67,941

2020 4800

Revenue performance of the Croup
reflects the progression of the Group

against our strategy to deliver both
organic and acquisitive growth.

Adjusted ERITDA (£000)

+5%

207 ' 19,791

2020 12767

Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before
interest, taxation, depreciation, and
armortisation, excluding exceptional
items and share-based payments.
Adjusted EBITDA is the main measure
of profitability used within the business.

34 Inspired PLC
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Corporate Crder Book [£000)

+2%

2021 67500

2020 £3,000

The Corpcrate Order Book provides

an indicator of the latent growth of the

business which has yet to be recognised
as revenue of the Group.

Cross profit {£000)

+14%

2021 50692

2020 38,900

We consider Gross Profit 2 key measure
of the direct cost required to provide cur
different service lines to customers.

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%)

-5%

2021 29

2020 28

Adjusted EBITDA is the main measure
of profitability used within the business,
and therefore the percentage of EBITDA
generated from revenues enables the
Croup to monitor the profitability of

the Group as the revenue mix of the
Group evolves.

Assurance Services

Revenue (E000)

+1%

202t 35521

2020 29608

Adjusted EBITDA, [£000)
-5%

2021 17,015

2020 14,336

Cross profit {(£000)

-%

2021 32665

2020 27912

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%}

-3%

2020 48

2020 48
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Optimisation Services

Revenue [£000)

+64%

=770 |

2022 [

202 29,059

2020 13892

Adjusted EBITDA (£000)

+101%

022 |

0573,

202 4961

2020 {465)

Cross profit (£000)

+38%

2022 | 20,263
202 1473
2020 8425

Adjusted EBITUA margin {%)

+4&%

2021 ' v

020 {3

ESG Services

Revenue (£000)

+167%

2021 966

2020 ‘493

Adjusted EBITDA {£000)

20

2020

Gross profit (£000)

+140%

2021 s66

2020 493

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%)

-25%

2021 z
2020 '

o

3

4 0P

Software Services

Revenue (E00Q)
%
+5%

2021 | 2,395]

2020 | 27|

Adjusted EBITDA {£000)

-%

2022 1,768

2021 | 1,770]

Gross profit (£000)

+1%

2021 | 2,330}
2020 § 2,070]

Adjusted EBITDA margin [%})

-4%

2021 l 74]
2020 [ 68]
Inspired PLC
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Financial Officer"s statement

Paul Connor
Chief Financial Officer

AA

The strategic and
financial initiatives
delivered in the
year have ensured
the Group is well
placed to deliver
the effective
implementation
of our strategic
growth plan whilst
managing the
additional risks."

36 Inspired PLC
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The Group delivered a strong
trading performance in FY22,
achieving revenue growth of

31% to £88.8m

e are pleased to report strong
financiai results for the year
ended 31 December 2022,

where we have remained agile and

alert to the environment in which we
operate. Positive momentum in the
second haif enabled the Group to deliver
a strong overall trading performance for
FY22, whilst also making clear strategic
progress and navigating unprecedented
volatility in the UK energy markets.

2022 was a year in which we achieved

a 31% increase in revenue, with total
revenues of £88.8 million compared to
£679 million in 2021 The Group's organic
revenue increased by 30% (2021 37%).
Group adjusted EBITDA increased by
6%, to £21.0 million (2021 £19.8 millicn}.
In percentage terms the adjusted
EBITDA margin was 24% (2021. 29%).
The reduction was a combination of a
greater contribution frorm Optimisation
Services which has a lower underlying
adjusted EBITDA percentage margin
than our other operating units and

a slight reduction of margins within
Assurance Services and increased

PLC costs.

Divisional Performance
Assurance Services

The Group anticipated more volatility

in Assurance Services because of the
unprecedented conditions in UK energy
markets and whilst ¢lient churn has
increased, as expected, we have also
seen a record year for new business.
Assurance Services delivered revenues
in ine with expectations, with increased
overheads to deliver our service as a
result of market conditions leading to

a reducticn in margin in the period.
Assurance Services generated 41%

of total Group revenues in 2022

{2021: 52%) being £36.0 million

{2021: £35.5 million) a 1% increase.

Assurance Services continues to be
the main contributor to the Croup
representing 59% of Group EBITDA
prior 1o accounting for PLC costs

and contributed adjusted EBITDA

of £16.2 million (2021 £17.0 million),

a reduction of 5%. The adjusted
EBITDA percentage margin was 45%
(2021; 48%). The Board anticipates that
margins will remain impacted in the
near term as rmarket velatility remains
and we retain our objective 1o provide
a first-class leve! of service to our
Assurance clients, which we believe is
essential to continue to be the market
leaders in Assurance Services.

ESG Services

ESG Services generated revenues

of £2.6 million (2021. £1.0 million),
delivering 167% growth organically,
reflective of the growing market for
these services. The ESG Services
Division delivered an adjusted EBITDA
loss of £0.7 million (2021: £0.0 million)
in line with the upgraded market
expectations post our interim resuits
as we continue to invest in resources

in this division.

The increasing focus of investors

and businesses on net-zero targets,
combined with mandatory requirements
for businesses to make ESG disClosures
from 2022, provides a favourable
backdrop to continue to invest in the
strategy for the ESC Services Division.

Optimisation Services

The ongoing energy crisis has
significantly sharpened clients’ focus
on the economics of investment in
energy reductions, combined with
the drive for delivering net-zero, and
this has translated into a significant
step up in demand and activity for
the Optirmnisation Services Division
during H2 2022.
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2022 2021

£000 £000
{Loss)/profit before income tax (3,957} RN
Share-based payment cost 1732 1,030
Amaorusation of acquired intangible assets 2,687 4,415
Foreign exchange variance 508 (339)
Exceptional costs:
- fees associated with acquisition 523 1,038
- restructuring cost 1.574 1,280
~ lmpairment of right of use assets — n3
-change in fair value of contingent consideration 10,936 4735

14,003

Adjusted profit before tax

13,386

Optirisation Services generated 54%
of total Group revenues in 2027 (202C:
4£3%), amounting to £47.7 million (2021,
£29.1 millicn), an increase of 64%, all

of which was organic Optimisation
services contribwied adjusted EBITDA
of £10.0 million [202): £5.0 miltion),

an increase of 100% and a resulting
improvernent in adjusted ESITDA
margin 1o 21% (2021:17%] in part as a
result of the adverse impact of COVID-19
restrictions on the trading performance
and resuiting reduction in adjusted
EBITDA percentage margins of the
division in H1 2021. Subject 1 product
mix, Management’s expeciation is that
the division will consistently generate
adjusted EBITDA margins of c.20%.

Demand for Optimisation Services
continues to increase, with strong
underlying drivers, including the drive
to net-zerg, and alse further acceierated
by the high commodity prices. As the
division continues to represent a greater
proportion of Group revenues, Group
maargins will reftect the change in
business mix.

Software Services

The Group's Software Services Division
continues to develop well, with revenues
growing by 5% to £2.5 million (2021

£2.4 million) and adjusted EBITDA of
£1.8 million (2021 £1.8 million}, with the
divisicn producing a strong sustainable
adjusted EBITDA margin of 70%

(2021: 74%).

Group results

PLC costs were £6.3 million (2021

£4.0 million), reflecting the increased
investment in management bandwidth
including the appointment of a Chief
Commercial Officer, plus investment into
central functions including Marketing,
Finance and HR. to support the
acceleration in growth.

Qverali, the Group generated adjusted
EBITDA for the year of £21.0 million
(2021: £19 8 million} in percentage terms
the adjusted EBITDA margin was 24%
{2021: 29%) and the reduction is due to
underlying sales mix with Optimusation
Services generating a greater proportion
of Group revenue, 3 reduction in the
adjusted EBITDA margin from Assurance
Services, and an ingrease in PLC costs.
After deducting charges for depreciation,
amortisation of internally generated
intangible assets and finance expenditure,
the adjusted profit before tax for the year
was £14.0 multion (2021: £13.4 million). The
ingcrease in adjusted EBITDA was offset
in part by an increase in finance costs.
Finance costs were higher than in 2021
due to a tombination of the company
carrying a higher leve! of debt over the
year and increased interest rates.

Under IFRS measures, the Croup
reported a loss before tax for the

year of £4.0 million {2021 profit of

£11 miillion), with reported loss befoere
tax in the year impacted significantly by
substantial charges for changes in the
fair value of contingent consideration,
the amortisation of intangible assets

as a result of acquisitions, share-based
payrment charges and restructuring costs.

A reconciliation of reported {loss)/profit
before tax to adjusted profit before tax
is calculated in the table above.

Alternative performance
measures

Acquisition activity can significantly
distort underlying financial performance
from IFRS measures. The Board
therefore considers it appropriate to
report adjusted metrics, as well as {FRS
rmeasures, for the benefit of pcrimary
users of the Group's financial statements
Reconciliations to Adjusted Profit Before
Tax and Adjusted Fully Dituted EPS can
be found in note 5.

Exceptional costs

Exceptional costs of £2.1 million

{2021: £2.3 miillion) incurred in the year
predominantly related to restructuring
costs, which related 1o restructuring
programmes associated with the
integration of businesses acquired
prior to 2022

Change jn fair value of
contingent consideration-

The fair value of contingent
consideration at the balance sheet
date is a judgement of the contingent
consideration which will become
payable based on a weighted average
range of perforrmance cutcomes of
the acquired business during an earn
out pericd, which is subsequently
discounted for the time value of
money and risk.

The Group recognised a £10.9 million
loss (2021 toss of £4.7 million} in the
period as a result of changes in the
fair value of contingent consideration
which was treated as exceptional. Of the
£10.9 miillion loss {2021: £4.7 million),
£77 million (2021 £3.0 million) relates
to the increase in the liability for
contingent consideration payable, of
which £0.6 million {2621 £1.9 million)
relates to the unwinding of discount
rate, with £8.5 million in respect of
Ignite Energy LTD and Businesswise
Solutions Limited performing at the
higher end of the range of possible
performance outcomes. In particular,
tgnite Energy LTD benefited from an
increase in demand for Optimisation
Services as a result of the energy crisis
in both 2022 which is expected to

continue into the next financial year.

Inspired PLC
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Chief Financial Officer's statement continued

Change in fair value of
contingent consideration
contirued

In addition, the greater visibility of
Businesswise Solutions Limited:
performance as a result of the
resolution of the uncertainty relating
1o the futwre trading of Gazprom
Marketing and Trading Retail Limited,
contributed to the increase in
contingent consideration payable.

Of the £10.9 million loss, £3.2 million
refates to the reduction in the expected
recovery of the deferred contingent
consideration from the SME disposal
completed in December 2020 The
reguction in expected recovery is
reflective of the impact of prolonged
under consumption and site closures
within the SME portfolio due to firstly
COVID-19, and then subsequently the
energy crisis

Exceptional costs, amortisation and
impairment of internally generated
intangible assets, share based payment
charges and changes in fair value of
contingent consideration are considered
by the Directors 1o be material in nature
and non-recurring; they, therefore, merit
separate identification to give a true
and fair view of the Group's result for
the period.

Cash and working capital

Group cash generated from operations
during the period was £19.7 million
(2021 £79 million}, a 149% increase in
line with management expectations
and driven by strong working capitai
management within the Optimisation
Services Division. Excluding non-recurring
fees associated with restructuring
costs and deal fees, cash generated
from operations was £21.7 million
(2021: £10.3 mitlion}.

Underlying operating cash
conversion ratios remain a key focus
for management, acknowledging
the need to facilitate the acceleration
of growth within the Optimisation
Services Division,

Trade and other receivables increased
12% in the period to £37.5 million

{2021: 33.4 million), with invoiced trade
receivables reducing 25% 1o £12.3 mitlion
{2021 £16.5 million) a5 a result of strong
cash collection within the Cptimisation
Services Division in H2 2022. Conversely,
accrued income increased in the period
59% to £18.6 million (2021: £117 million)

Inspired PLEC
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primartly as a result of increased
activity levels and product mix within
the Optimisation Services Division in
112 2022, and the balance is unwinding
in 2023 as expected. Working capital
managemeant remains a key focus

for the Group in sustaining strong
cash conversion.

Trade and other payables increased
39% ko £171 million (2021 £12.3 million),
driven by 2 46% increase in deferred
income, primarily within the Optimisation
Services Division, and a 43% increase

in trade payables to £6.0 million (2021:
E4.2 million) and accruals increased to
£31 million (2021 £1.5 million) reflecting
the increased activity levels.

As detailed in the 2021 CFO statemerit,
during H2 2021, the Group made an
accelerated investrment in solutions
architecture and CRM, to ensure our
platforms can continue to scale and are
interoperable with other systems. This
wasn't repeatable expenditure and led
1o the reduction in payments 1o acquire
intangible assels ¢ £4.7 million in 2022
(2021: £5.9 million).

The Group's net debt [defined as

bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents) increased by £4.3 miltion
[13%j in the year to £37.2 million (2021:
£329 million), equating to 1.77x FY2022
Adjusted EBITDA. This level of net debt
is in line with the Beard's cbjective to
maintain net debt to jess than 2.00x
Adjusted EBITDA, subject to the short-
term impact of acquisition payments

The increase in Group net debt reflects
a year in which the cash generation of
£19.7 million was offset by the payment
of £10.8 mitlion of contingent cash
consideration ic the vendars of Ignite,
BWS, ECM, LSi and CEM. together with
£0.7 million of initial cash consideration
payable for Digital Energy Limited and
Information Prophets Compliance
Limited. A further £13.0 miilion
performance payments, in the form

of contingent cash consideration for
acquisitions expected to be paid in
FY23, £2.6 million of which would be
payabile in ordinary shares of the Group.

Financial position and liquidity
At 31 December 2022, the Group's
net debt was £37.2 rmillion {2021:
£32.9 million). Cash and cash
equivalents were £12.3 million

(2021: £12 9 mitlion) on hand.

Approximately £10.5 million of the
Group's £60.0 million Revolving
Credit Facility was undrawn, with

an additianal £25.0 millicn accordion
option available to the Group, subject
10 covenant compliahce.

On entering the current facility
agreement with Santander and Bank of
ireland in October 2019, the Group had an
option to extend the term of the facility
frorn Qctober 2023 to October 2024.
The Group exercised that option in
September 2021, taking the term of

the existing facility to October 2024,
Subsequently, the Group has agreed
with the lenders to defer by 12 months
the tapering, from 2.50:1.C0 to0 2.00:1.00,
of the Adjusted Net Leverage covenant,
this was gue te apply in the quarter
ending 31 December 2022, but its
application has now been extended

10 31 Decernber 2023, to align with

the extension of the facility.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group
agreed with its banking partnersin
March 2023 a resetting of the adjusted
leverage covenant for quarters ending
3) March 2023 through to 30 June 2024,
increasing the headroom available to
the Group from a covenant perspective
through a period in which the Croup
expects to make material contingent
consideration payments, while
facilitating the acceleration of growth
within the Optimisation Division.

In summary

The strategic and financial initiatives
delivered in the year have ensured

the Croup is well placed to deliver

the effective implementation of our
strategic growth plan, whilst managing
the additional risks created by market
volatility. The strong growth of the
Group's revenues, and adjusted EBITDA
in the year, in a challenging environment
coupled with a strengthened platform
capable of generating long-term growth
position [eaves Inspired well placed to
achieve its long-term financial goals

Paul Cannor
Chief Financial Officer
28 March 2023

DocuSigned by:
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Principal risks and uncertainties

L] - . L -
We have identified our main risks and @
- - L d g
are taking appropriate action to prevent, i
o, ® 3]
manage or mitigate these 2
v
The Board has assessed the Group Strategy in the context of parameters within which we expect our people to work. g
the risks and uncertainties that it would be willing 10 1ake in The parameters can apply o more than one risk assertion,
pursuit of that strategy. The Board has made a clear assertion  and therefore the individual risk assertions should not be
of those risks that are considered t¢ be unacceptable. read in isolation.

The accepted risks form the basis of our Risk Appetite
Statement which comprises the risk assertions 2od Lhe

Risk appetite statement

Risk assertion Risk parameters

Organic growth Investment in resources will be consistent with the strategic plan, which
will be reviewed on a timely basis.

We are prepared to make EBITDA-impacting Investment providing
such investment is capable of delivering an IRR within the Board's

sel parameters.

Any acquisition will be made on the basis that net debt/EBITDA returns
to less than two times within 12 months of a transaction all other things
being equal.

AN acquisition will be earnings enhancing within 24 months of
completion, on an adjusted fully diluted EPS basis.

We will pctively pursue acquisitions 1hatl are
wath our Sira

Returns and profitability The Group shall aim to maintain EBITDA margins at a divisional level.
Crowih shat be pu on g profitacie basis Overall margin ditution is acceptable when this is due to blend of services
pravided by division.

The Group shall be able to loss lead a product or service as a catalyst for
growth providing the overall margin dilution at a divisional level is within
the Boards set parameters.

Capital structure We wilt seek to maintain the ratio of net debt to EBITOA at less than two
times, save where driven by the short-term impact of an acquisition or an
increase in working capital to deliver crganic growth.

wWe will maintain adequate head room against covenants as reviewed
on a monthly basis.

No tolerance for breaches of:

+ Legislative/statutory requirements
~ Inspired policies

« International sanctions

+ Delegated authority levels

Require RAMs (Risk Assessment Method Staterments) for any work
undertaken on Group properties.

O T PEop Provide RAMS for any work we undertake on third party premises.

¢ operate. o No tolerance for breaches of the Inspired Health and Safety and
Environmental Pelicy.

« We are prepared to invest up to a Board approved percentage of Group
revenue on innovation or software development to underpin our
technology enabled service.

Inspired PLC 39
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk management

The responsibility for risk identification and mitigation

lies with the management of the business. Current and
emerging risks are identified Dy éach business area, with
each area responsible for managing that nsk, imglementing
appropriate centrols and Mitigating actions in the short term
and monitoring the ionger term wmpacts and reporting on

it to the management tearm and senior Executives. Risks are
assessed, and quantified, in terrs of ikelihood of occurrence
and impact, both before and after control mitigation.
Assessing the gross risk before contro! mitigation allows the
business to review the relative impact of the existing controls
by comparing the gross and net risk assessment. This aiso
allows the business to better allocate rescurces on mitigating
controls and avoid actions which have a negiigible impac¢t on
the risk assessment.

Staff recruitment, development and retention

Failure to recruit, train, develop and retain our staff may impact Croup operations and

service delivery.

The environment in which we are operate is constantly
evolving; new risks arise and the potential likelihood and
impact of known risks may change Thus not all risks are
controllable or foreseeable, a2 key example being natural
disasters or pandemics, Cur response to such risks is having
controls which lessen the irmpact to our business should they
oecur. For example, in the case of a natural disaster, we have
planning protocols, with clear accountability to minimise
disruption to operations and our customers whilst prioritising
the safety of our employees.

The risks detailed below are those which have been identified
as principal risks based on the likelihood of occurrence and
the severity of the potential impact, in accordance with
section 414C of the Companies Act.

whilst not a principal risk for the Group we have also adopted
what we consider 10 be best practice, in particular building
on our managemeant of risks associated with climate change
through our Group TCFD Disclosure.

]
| Impact on strategy

< i

wWhy we think this is important How we are ritigating this risk Changes during FY22

As a technology enabled service provider

to the quality and provision of our services.

The COVID-19 pandemic has led people to

reflect on their career and lifestyle choices

and as such we have noticed much greater
workfarce churn than usual.

Regular competitive review of reward

In the instance the CEOQ, CCO and CFO

in a specialist market place, our employees were unable to undertake their duties due 1o
are our largest direct cost and fundamental unforeseen circumstance, the business has
interin succession in place to minimise the
disruption to the business in the short term,
and enable the Board to facilitate 2 process
to sappoint permanent replacementsinan
appropriate manner.

« Developrment of & Training
function which delivered
1,249 days of training
during 2022,

« Implementation of an
‘Account Executive’ entry
level role where we grow
our own labour within
the Assurance Business.

structures and staff surveys/appraisals. @

All senior managers are incentivised
with share options with 8 12 to 24 month

forward horizon.

All staff have a quarterly bonus structure
which provides a high precision tool for
aligning rewards to behaviours. 25% of this
bonus is retained for 12 months and is lost
if the individual ieaves the company.

An internat recruitment function maintains
an active recruitment pipeline for all key roles
within the crganisation.

The business is increasingly focused on
a grow-your-own policy with respect
to Graduate Training Scheme and an
Apprentice scheme.

40 Inspired PLC
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Strategy Risk key

Qrganic Increased No
growth % Peaple @ Customers @ investment @ risk change
@ Reputation @ Legal @ Community ' Ese:reased

Health and safety Impact on strategy ]
o]
Failure to protect our peopie and other stakeholders from harm associated with a breach of ’O:D @ @ e ﬁ
our legal and regulatory obligations. 3 []
0
R x
Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes during Fy22 '3
Q
Our Cptirmisation Services require visits All emnployees and contractors must provide « 2022 saw our first full Eq
by staff and contractors te client sites, and operate 10 an approved RAMs when year of operating 1SO
to install and remove electrical and working on a clients site. 45001 and the successful
other equipment. - Every employee is surveyed each month ;om pte(;:rlon of our
In addition, since the COVID-19 pandemic with respect to their ability to work safely irst audit.
the shift towards home working places from home. « Agrey fleet management
e:tr_a demlands on em?loygrrs:.to t;nsurek Every employee working at home is required ;ystfm has t;een
their employees are sa e within the wor to complete a DSE assessment. implemented to
from home environment. - . manage vehicle and
Any employee that cannot maintain a safe drive compliance with
home working environment is cantractually H&S policies.

required to return to the office environment. ;
« Improved granularity

of reporting from sub
contract resources.

IT security and continuity l Impact on strategy

Failure to maintain business systems orf technicat infrastructure that serves the @ @ @
business needs.

Faiture to successfully execute changes to these business systems or technical infrastructure;
together with failure to minkmise disruption and maintain business as usual activity during
technical infrastructure or business system changes.

Failure to adequately protect the business operations from cybercrime.

Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes during FY22

Given we are a B2B service provider we do We operate to a Cyber Essentials [l standard. » Senijor staff

”Othr eaily procesbsl a;y personal df*dta' Asa Wwe operate a cyber security autonomous 'bSACA qucal'f",c';‘,j ;0

ecnnoicgy enal er service p}i’OVI ET we breach protec{ion platform across our ecome. ertifie

would suffer material reputationa! risk if we IT assets Information Manager.

were the victim of a cyber-attack. ’

our Sof Solvtions Diviei “ We aperate a reqular programme of simulated 'ESOWC'_O: apr;ld Cyber

SU( O IWZTE IO }JthnS c’IVISIC)H provicdes phishmg attacks on the organisation to ssentiafsn us e 5
aa‘S ba;ed 30! ut:on_s and needs to allow us to educate and embed ‘cyber safe’ successfully maintained.

mamtain data security te current behaviours in employees « Data centre consolidation

market standards. 10 'Police Assured’

Qur proprietary software is regularly
penetration tested by a third party and
subject to independent code reviews prior @

secure facility.

to release.

lnspired PLC 4 ‘I
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk management continued

Ethics, ESG and political impact on strategy
Failure to balance the interests of our stakeholders in the context of environmental, social and
political risks can have an adverse reaction an the business.

Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes during FY22

We operate a business which performs an We provide voluntarily a full suite of » Achieved Ecovadis
integral rale in enabling ESG reporting and ESGC disclosures. Sitver Medal.
i |shesient;al thatfo:r or?‘a r:lsa(;|onr:§malns The Group polices set out standards that . Achieved a 8 CDP Climate
E[ethae rore r'cr"untthc;tt Z}ugdt eadership and Inspired PLC expect from employees and Chatige scuie

ViQUIs i regard. ;

- ' suppliers and the conseguences of farlure to . Became a mermber of

We are unwilling to accept dishonest operate at the expected standards, Social Value UK and Social
o corrulpt behaviour from our perc’:plfe, or All of these policies are pubtished on our Vaive international.
external parties acting on ‘f"‘” behalf, whilst 150 website, along with a statement of our ESG performance
conducting our business. If we fail to act performance against those policies within Committee convened for
with integrity, we are at risk of: this docsment.

asecond time.

» reputational damage leading to a loss
Board undertock

of customers, ;
| | on f st cludi climate change and
+ lega action from regulators including net-zero capacity
fines, penalties and imprisonment; and building sessions
« exclusion from markets important for
our future growth. o

We expect all areas of the businesstodo
the right thing and cenduct business in

compliance with procedures, applicable
laws and Inspired PLC policies.
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Competitive environment and market conditions impact oh strategy
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Risk key

Changes to our market place and the competitive environment can impact cur ability

1o retain our clients and attract new ones.

Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes duting FY22

when energy prices rise, energy suppliers
can fail financially and clients often delay
their contracting decisions and shorten the
duration of the contracts they place. Whilst
this does not impact ow revenues providing
we maintain our client retention rates it

will reduce the businesses forward order
book which is measured on 3 total contract
value basis.

n the event of an energy crisis energy
suppliers can start to fail in their ability

to pravide contracts far consumers,

this can increase the amount of rework
required to meet normal client needs and
reduce margins.

In addition, the energy Crisis can increase
the amount of client churn in the market
place as even clients who have received

a good service have suffered bad results,
which can lead to a contraction in market
share if the business is not replaced by
new clients.

Inspired PLC is the player of scale in the
energy assurance market which supports
the crganic growth engine. As such,
Inspired needs be aware of changes in
competitor behaviour and groactively
develop services and solutions in the face
of changing market conditions.

Energy Assurance Services are currently an
unregulated market and should regulation
be introduced, the increased cost of
compliance could impact the results of
the Group.

In the current global macro-economic
environment, there Is an increased risk
of supply chain failure which can impact
Cptirmisation projects.

The general market for insurance products
has tightened for the energy sector which
has increased premidms. Such Insurance
can be a pre requisite for sales contract
award and could restrict new sales and
increased premiums can reduce margins,

.

The credit worthiness of Suppliers is
2 key determinant of supplier selection
recommendations rmade to clients.

Credit Insurance has been taken out with
respect to energy Suppliers and Clients (where
we recover our fees directly) to mitigate the
bad debrt risk associated with Supplier failure.

We prioritise client service and satisfaction
in order ta maintain retention rates during
a period of shorter contract situation, We
operate a 'Client at Risk/Intensive Care’
process should a client express concerns
about service.

We maintain capacity within gur preduct
development functions to redeploy resources
to front line services, should we see a spike in
requirements for service delivery, which can
cover a circa six-month resource shock.

We increase focus on new sales to Assurance
clients in to Mmitigate the risk of increase churn
during an engrgy crisis.

Diversify risk away from Assurance

revenues so any adverse impact is diluted

by Optimisation Services which typically

accelerate during an energy crisis.

We endeavour 1o maintain sales and
operaticnal processes that operate to
a level over and above the proposed
regulatory requirements.

With respect to the tightening insurance
market and its impact on the contracting

of our services we focus on helping clients
understand that it is the reliability and cost
effectiveness of the insurance that is important
and not a high notional value of cover which
may not be enforceable.

®
@

increased No

risk change
Decreased

risk

06

2022 has seen an
energy crisis impact
the industry which has
reduced margins and
increased operational
complexity within the
assurance business,

.

We have seen an increase
in insurance premiums
due to a general aversion
to the energy sector.

« These impacts and their
mitigation are currently
accounted for in the
existing business plan.

@
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk management continued

Operational risk Impact on strategy

Failure to maintain operational productivity will risk client service levels and delivery of results. @

Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes during FY22

Acquisitions are a significant growth driver In the first phase of integration, employee e
for Ingpired PLC and failure 1o integrate contracts are transformed to Inspired standarg

thermn properly can adversely affect with strong non-competes and non-solicitation
expected results, clauses to protect the consequences of

In times of high energy price valatility there employee churn.

isan increased risk that the client evaluates  The integration of client facing roles generally

their pasitions with hindsight and can be does not ocour until the end of the second year of
dissatisfied that too much or too fittle has the integration program to deliberately minimise
be bought at any point in time. disruption to clients.

Whilst the transition 1o home working For each acquisition that is not in a contingent
has been successful there is a danger that consideration situation we provide salary
productivity declines as collaboration and journeys and zero cost share options for

problem solving reduces, essential staff.

The business provides a critical service to Client contracts have a limit of liability which
clients with respect to managing ckent generally caps exposure at the fees of the client
disconnection notices which relies on the and in exceptionat cases the limit of the Group's
postal service. professional indemnity insurance.

We are in process of implementing software
which tracks activity per software package.

Operational KPls track the guantities of deliverables
which determines productivity with quaiitative
customer survey KPIs also regularly monitered.

The current flexible working proposals will
mandate time in the office with teams to
maintain collaboration.

We are implementing an outsourced scanning
solution which allows post to be delivered to a PC
box, scanned and distributed electronically to the
correct person in our organisation, increasingly
reliability and differentiating our service.’

44 Inspired PLC
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Strategy Risk key
Organic People @ Customers @ Investment increased No
growth risk change
e Reputation @ Legal @ Community rl?::reased

Finance and contractual risk impact on strateqy

Failure to manage our financiai and contractual risks can lead to unexpected increased

changes to the Group's results.

Why we think this is important How we are mitigating this risk Changes during Fy22

Our revenues can be exposed to
the underlying performance of our
chents businesses. .

Our Optimisation Services require the
purchase and hold stocks of equipment to
detiver net-zero projects to our clients The
value of this stock can vary over ume.

The journey to net-zero carbon can require
the use of offset certificates for clients. In
order to match buyers with seller we need
to warehouse these certificates from time to
time which can expose the Group to market
risk with respect to the value of certificates.

Projects that deliver net-zero carbon
solutions can require the installation of
equipment and this process can adversely
affect the working capital profile of

the business.

The business finances its acquisitive growth
and working capitai requirements using
banking debt which is subject to satisfaction
of applicable covenant tests.

Increased interest rates are likely to reduce
profit before tax.

A tightening debt market may cause issues
with respect to the cost of and access to the
debt markets in the future.

i

We maintain a highly diversified revenue
stream within our Assurance Services Division
with no client representing more than 1%

of revenues.

@

The Group does have revenue concentration
with respect to Optimisation Services which is
mitigated from a bad debt perspective by credit
insurance. From an orderbook perspective the
risk is mitigated by the relatively iow number
of ¢clients the Group has to be active with on
premise to deliver its growth thesis {<3%).

Stocks are revalued regularly and assessed
for relevance given the fast paced nature of
technological change.

The value of warehoused green certificates
are marked to market on a monthly basis and
sold back if adversely impacting the P&L to
lirnit liability.

Project WIPR, invoicing and cash recovery is
monitored on a weekly basis by the Chief
Financial Officer.

The satisfaction of our debt covenants is
assessed on a monthly basis to ensure
our compliance and to monitor future
expected headroom.

Interest rate costs are a focus of management
attention with careful managerment of

debt levels where it does not prejudice the
strategic ptan.

inspired PLC
Annual Report 8 Accounts 2022

45

4 0b

JHO0d3d J10931vHLS



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 762B62B9-3CCE-499B-A05F-EQ4ACDFBOG0Y

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Section 172

Statement by the Directors in performance
of their statutory duties in accordance
with s172(1) Companies Act 2006

In gddressing each of the ten points of the QCA code within
the Corporate governance statement on pages 47 to 77 and
in the ESG Performance Summary on pages 62 to 73, we
provide examples of how the company:

+ takes into account the likely consequences of decisions in
the long term;

= has regard for the interests of the company's shareholders,
employees and other stakeholders;

« promotes openness amongst employees and endeavours
to maintain a culture built on integrity;

- takes into account the desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high standards of business
conduct, and;

- bhas regard for the need to act fairly.

Inspired PLC
Annual Report 8 Accounts 2022
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The Directors assess and take into account what 1s mostlikely
to prormote the success of the company for its members in
the long term as part of their deciston-making process, and
rnake this assessment fairly and in good faith,

The Strategic Repoert has been approved by the Board and
signed off by;

Mark Dickinson
Chief Executive Officer
28 March 2023

CocuSigned by:

=~
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Corporate governance statement

Ensuring high standards
of corporate governance

The Group continues to adopt the Quoted Companies Alliance
[QCA) Corporate Governance Code with respect to its obligations
under AIM Ryle 26,

As ESG becomes of paramount importance to the investrment
industry and corporates, the company intends to becorne

3 leading provider of ESG solutions te both investment
companies and corporate businesses. We will also continue
to evolve our disclosures with respect to the performance

of the business with regard 1o ESC. i this section we shall
address tha following priorities:

1. Board structure and appointments;
2. stakeholder communication;

3. Executive remuneration; and

4. governance structure and delegation,

The company's approach 1o the principles cutlined by the QCA
is summarised below.

QCA principles and Inspired approach

[PrinciplellBEStablishtastrategyand businessmadelwhichipromotellong termyvaluefogsharehoiders

Our goals: Vision and strategy:
As a listed public limited company, we are focused The company's strategy is to grow delivery of our energy, net-
on delivering value for our shareholders. zero carbon and ESC solutions, underpinned by market-leading

technology. By achieving the above, we fully expect to increase

We believe shareholder value is maximised
shareholder value

when we appropriately balance the needs of

stakeholders today whilst remaining cognisant . For our approach to strategy and the benefits of our strategic

of how the needs of stakeholders rmay change in priorities, please see our strategy on page 6 of this annual report.
the future. - For details of our business model, please see our divisions on

We achieve this by delivering net-zerc carhon and pages 28 to 31.

ES_G ‘(TOIU{",:’ns for clsent_s W_h”a embedding those - For key challenges and how they will be addressed, please see
principtes in our organisation. principal risks on pages 39 to 45 of this annual report.

Inspired PLC
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance statement continued

QCA principles and inspired approach continued

[BrincipleRBSesigtolunderstandlandimeetishareholdedneedslandlexpeciations

The Board is committed to maintaining good communication and having constructive dialogue with ali sharehoiderson a
regular basis. The company enables this with investors and the media by providing communications through the annual and
interim reports, along with Regulatory News Service announcements. The Board maintains a general policy of keeping all
interested parties inforrned by regular announcements and update statements.

All Directors sttend the AGM, where private investors are given the opporiunity to question the Board. The AGM provides an
opportunity to meet, listen to and present to shareholders, and shareholders are encouraged o attend.

In agdition, institutionai shareholders and analysts have the opportunity to discuss issues and provide feedback at meetings
with the cormpany. -

The company is commiited to ensuring that it engages with retail investors so that its strategy, business model and
performance are clearly understood. During 2022, the CEQ, CCO and CFO gave an 'Introduction to Inspired’ presentation via
the Investor Meet Company platform which was open to all existing, and potential, shareholders. Participants were aclively
encouwraged to submit feedback directly to Inspired management at the conclusion of the presentation, 10 ensure the
company understands and responds to the views of the shareholder base.

From 2022 the remuneration report for the Group was subject 1o a vote so that 2l shareholders could provide their
feedback as to whether the remuneration of Executives correctly strikes the balance between talent retention, long-term
incentivisation and the interests of shareholders. Moreover, shareholders with questions can use the ‘Contact us page on
the wwwiinspiredplc.co.uk website or contact the Company Secretary, who will refer questions to the Directors.

\Brincipiessgskelintolaccounywidenstakeholderandlsociallresponsibilitiesiandltheiimplicationsifod

Jlongstermisuccess

The Board recognises that the Group has responsibilities to many stakeholders, beyond its shareholders; these include
employees, clients, lenders, suppliers, the environment and society.

The Board has an ambition for the Group to develop best practice ESG policies. A series of initiatives to support this is welt
underway. Our policies on engagement with stakeholders (together with feedback received during 2022) are summarised
on page 55 and in full on ocur website, https:/finspiredplc.co.uk/esg/corporate-governance/

Cornmunications are relevant to the stakeholders and may take the form of formal announcements, individual meetings
{for exampie, appraisals with employees) and negotiations with other stakeholders. In addition to this annual report, the
Group has made a number of ESG disclosures which are published on our website.

BrincipielagE mbedletfectiveliskimanagementiconsideringlbothlopporiunitieslandithreatsithraighout
the arganisation '

Through our Audit & Risk Commitiee, the Board recognises the need for an effective and well-defined risk management
process. The Executive management tearm maintains a risk register, evaluating the frequency and severity of identified risks
and reporting to the Board each quarter, as well as reporting any significant new risks identified at every Board meeting to
ensure the risks are properly evaluated and the strategies for management of such risks agreed. Through this process the
Board can determine if the risk exposure has changed during the year.

Risk governance culture is embedded across the Group. Organisational divisions have their own ma négemen( Boards which
also meet regularly and assess the risks relevant to that specific division and support function.

The Audit & Risk Committee is also responsible for assessing and monitoring the company's financial risks and reviewing
the company's financial controls. The Audit & Risk Committee has delegated responsibility to ensure that the Group's
rmanagement has designed and implemented an effective systemn of internal financial controls.

Since 2020 the principles of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) were voluntarily integrated into
our Executive risk management process as have ESG disclosures under the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). Our full TCFD
and GRI disclosure report is published on our website.

For further details of the company's approach to risk and its management, please refer to the principal risks section of the
strategic report (on page 39) of this annual report and accounts.

48 Inspired PLC
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QCA principles and inspired approach continued

EUREED S MR G D) ep 0 el Mg CelEResd e 2d Ly G Gel

Richard Logan, the Non-Executive Chair, is responsible for ensuring that the Group maintains effective standards of corporate
governance. During 2022, the Board had four Non-Executive Directors, ali of whom are considered to be independent, being
Richard Logan, Sarah Flannigan, Sangita Shab and Dianne Walker. The Board had eleven scheduled Board meetings during
2022 and additional discussions where necessary.

The Executive Directors have responsibility for implementation of the Board's strategy. The Directors have appropriate

skills and experience for the roles they perform at Inspired, including as members of Board Committees. A monthly report
is provided to the Board of the financia! and operational performance of the Group. Information is provided in advance of
meetings. The Board is responsible for all strategic decisions and the overall governance and culture of the Group. Directors
have access to the services and advice of the Company Secretary and are able to take independent professional advice.

The Board operates Committees for Audit and Risk, Nomination and Rermuneration, and ESG providing governance and
experience for these areas. The ESG Performance Committee met for the second time in 2022,

The Non-Executive Directors are expected 1o devote such time as is necessary for the proper performance of their duties
and are expected to weork at least one day @ month for the Group.

For details of the Board members, see Meet the Directors on pages 51 to 53. For details on Board membership of the
Committees, please see page 54.

Principle 6N nsure thatbetvweenithemlthelDirectors

The Board continually evaluates the skills that are required of its members and whether they are adeguately provided for.
To enable each Director to keep their skill set up to date, individual training needs are identified as part of the annual Board
evaluation process and training is provided as required. The Norminations Committee oversees the process of identifying
candidates and makes recommendations to the Board. Appointments are made on merit, against objective criteria and an
assessment of the expected benefits to be broughr to the Board and the Group.

Curing 2022 the Non-Executive Directors undertook capacity building meetings to develop their knowledge with respect to ESG.

The Board alsc considers succession planning. In the case of new Directors there is an induction process to ensure that
they have a full understanding of the operations of the Group. The Directors are aware of their individual responsibility to
undertake appropriate continuing development. The Company Secretary has the responsibility of making the Board aware
of legal changes, including those in relation to their duties as Directors.

Immma%mmﬁn@@amaiﬂ relevantlobjcctivestseeking

havethemnecessany,up ta

The Chair commissions an annual Board effectiveness review, in which Directors are invited to assess the Board's performance via
s survey. The Board then discusses the results of this survey and agrees any measures needed to improve Board effectiveness.

During 2022 the Board made progress with respect to the matters raised in the 2021 Board evaluation by:
1 improving the granularity of the Risk Register and cascading down to the next teve! of management within the bustness.

2. Improving the functioning of the employee led ESG Action and Employee Engagement Committees and how they feed
into the Beards ESG Performance Committee.

3 implementing capacity building workshops for the Board with respect to ESG.

As a result of the Board evaluation for the 2022 period, the Board will seek to improve effectiveness by focusing on:

1. Introducing a fuller KPI suite to better reflect the size and scale of the business and improve the efficiency of Board meetings.
2. Introducing Board Management software 10 better manage docurnent flow.

3. Revert to more face-to-face Board meetings and improve the timeliness of information flow to and from the Board.

The auditors attend an Audit & Risk Committee meeting twice a year and, along with auditing the financial statements of the
Group, they comment on the Group's systems and procedures and efficacy of the management. The nominated advisor has
access to the Chair and meets the non-Executives on an ad-hoc basis as required. In terms of re-election, past performance is
considered prior to them being proposed to ensure that Directors continue to be effective in their role, add value and retain
their independence. Re-election is considered by the shareholders at the AGM, at which shareholders have the opportunity as
a body to apgrove or reject a Director’s Board membership. The Remuneration Committee is tasked with not only the remuneration
of the Executive Directors but also evaluation of their performance. To this end, the members of the Board are provided with
press cormments and market feedback on the business. Market share data and peer group analysis are available. The Chair will
review the performance of the CEQ, CCO and CFO throughout the year, with a formal discussion at the mid-year, as well as
receiving feedback on his own performance from fellow Directors.

Inspired PLC 4 9
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance statement continued

QCA principles and inspired approach conunued

Principle B Promotelalcorporate,culturethatlis based/onethicalvaiuestand,.behaviours

The Board expects the highest ethica! standards of its members and management across the Group and the Board monitors
and promotes a healthy corporate culture.

The Group has documented procedures with respact to its pelicy on ethical behaviour, specifically bribery, corruption and
maodern slavery, Board gender diversity, emplioyee gender diversity, equal pay with respect to gender, workplace accident
prevention, whistle-blower protection, human rights, supplier code of conduct, grievance and complaints handling
mechanism, anti-discrirnination, recognition of ILO Conventicns, climate change and the environment.

Qur palicies with respect to our ethical vaives and our performance against them are summarised on page 50 of this annual
report and in full on our website, https:/finspiredpic.co.uk/policies/

How our values and ethics translate wito the culture of the company is monitored by the Board through the ESG Performance
Committee from the employee led ESG Action Committee and Employee Engagement Committee. .
The Board takes seriously its responsibilities towards the sustainability of its operations and the impact on the environment,
and this is a key strategic intent

iihatlare fitlforpurposeland supportgoodidecision]

The roles and responsibilities of specific Directors and membership of the Board Commitiees are set out on pages 5110 53 of this
annual report and in full on our website, https/finspiredplc.co.uk/esa/corporate-governance/. The Board meets a minimum of six
times per year. Each Cormmittee has approved terms of reference outlining the specific responsibilities delegated to it. Corporate
governance disclosures are made every year in our annual report and accounts The Board assesses annually whether the
structures, policies and processes are fit for purpose.

principlellOgGommunicate howtheicompany;isgovernedlandlisiperforminglbylmaintaininglaidialoguegvith
shareholdersandlotherrelevant.stakeholdersig

The Board is committed to maintaining effective cormmunication and having constructive dialogue with its shareholders
and other relevant stakeholders. The Group intends to have angoing relationships with both private and institutional
shareholders and shareholder analysts, and for them to have the opportunity to discuss issues and provide feedback at
meetings with the campany. We also maintain regular contact with our advisors in order to ensure that the Board develops
an understanding of the views of any other major shareholders.

The AGM is a key forum for communications with any shareholder who wishes to attend, and the Directors are available
to listen to views expressed, both formally and informaliy.

The AGM, combined with the normal cycle of announcements, is the key method of communication. The cornpany
uses the London Stock Exchange Reguiatory News Service {RNS) to advise the market (ie. shareholders and others} of
performance and significant matters. Brokers are updated and circulate notes regularly. These updates are also visible
on the inspiredplc.co.uk website.

50 {nspired PLC
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Meet the Directors

4 &>

A unique combination of established
supplier relationships, market expertise
and technical capability

Chairman’s introduction

Composition and responsibilities

The Board of Inspired currently consists of three Executive
Directors and fowr independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Bgard's principal responsibitities are to:

agree sirategy, performance and financigl objectives of
the business,

regularty review performance against agreed objectives
and exposure to risk;

identify and approve investment and acquisition
opportunities as part of the Group's longer-term
growth plans,

= mMonitor exposure to key business risks; and
+ consider employee issues and key business appointments,

The Board recognises its responsibility for the proper
management and stewardship of the Group and the benefit
of corporate governance commensurate with the size and
nature of the Group and the interests of its shareholders.

The Directors have chosen to adopt the QCA Corporate
Covernance Code to support the application of best practice
corporate governance for Inspired.

The Directors believe that gecod governance is fundamental
to the successful growth of our business. The Board and its
Committees play a central role in the Group's governance,
by providing an external and independent perspective

on matters of importance to inspired’s stakeholders,

and by ensuring that effective internal controls and risk
management measures are in place.

The Board promotes a culture of good governance
throughout the Group by creating a framework of
openness, transparency, accountability and responsibility.
Appointments and conflicts of interest

The Nominations Committee oversees the process of
identifying candidates and makes recommendations to the
Board. Appeintments are made on merit against objective
critera and with regard to the benefits that will be brought
to the Board and the Group.

It also considers the adequacy of the size of the Board based

on the following principles:

3. Maintaining more Non-Executive Directors than
Executive Directors, and

b. maintaining a size of Board that is appropriate for
the current and future size and scale of the Group.

Board composition at 28 March 2023

wN

@ Non-Executive Chairman't
@ Executive Directors3
@® Non-Executive Directors 3

Board Committees are formed to address specific matters
of governance as set out in the governance section on pages 52
to 54. Appointments to the relevant Committees are made by
the Nominations Committee, with due consideration of the
required skills and relevant experience.

The Nominations Committee also considers succession
planning, to ensure business continuity in the event that
a change of an Executive Director occurs or is required

ln accordance with their service agreements and their
fiduciary duties, the Non-Executive and Executive Directors
have an obligation to immediately declare any conflict of
interest. in addition, annually each Board member submits
a declaration of external appointrments, which is set out
under the bicgraphy of each Board member.

Shareholders exercise oversight of the composition of the
Board of Directors through a reappointment policy and
processes that are subject to resclution at the AGM and
through engagement with the Croup at the AGM.

Board gender diversity

The Board recognises that having a diverse Board with a
blend of genders, ethnicities, skills, experiences, perspectives,
ages and other protected characteristics leads to a more
robust understanding of, and challenge of, opportunities,
issues and risks and more informed decision making.

Ouwr Board gender diversity policy is summarised
on page 61 and published in full on cur website,
https://inspiredplc co.uk/esg/corporate-governance/,

DocuSigned by:

Kideard (ogpn

CFTDADTCQ1CA42..

Richard Logan
Chairman
28 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Meet the Directors continued

The Board promotes a culture of good
governance throughout the Group by crecating
an environment of openness, transparency,

accountability and responsibility

Key:

(A) Audit & Risk Committee
(W} Nominations Cormnmittee
@ Remuneration Committee

@ ESC pPerformance Committee

@ chair

52 ’ Inspirad PLC
Annual Repori & Accounis 2022

1. Richard Logan
Non-Executive Chairman

®O®O

Skills and experience

Richard is a chartered accountant with
over 36 years' experience of working
inindustry.

Having qualified with Ernst & Young in
1984, he has held senior roles with Ben
Line Group, a shipping and ail campany,
and Kingston SCL Limited, a provider of
mobile phone billing software, where he
was involved in a private equity-backed
management buyout and subsequent
trade sale. Richard was Finance Director
of cloud computing company icmart
Group ple [AIM: IOM) from 2006 until
his retirerment in Decernber 2018.

Richard holds a 8A in Accountancy
from the University of Stirling and

in 2013 was Smaller Quoted FD of the
Year at the FD Excellence Awards.

External appointments

Richard is a Non-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Pebble Beach Systems Group

plc, an AIM listed company {PEB}
providing software solutions to the
broadcasting industry.

2, Sangita Shah
Non-Executive Director

OIOf- 1 ]

Skills and experience

Sangita has extensive experience

in corporate finance, jeurnalisrn andg
senicr consultancy. She has held a
number of senior roles within blue chip
organisations, including Unilever, Mars,
Ernst & Young and KPMG, and was

a former Board Director of Swindon
Town FC and a past President of the
Chartered institute of Journalists.

She has consulted to a number of
organisations ncluding HM Cabinet
Cffice and HSBC.

Sangita is a qualified accountant and
a frequent keynote Chairman and
speaker in forums for the Windsor
Leadership Trust and, in the past,
the European Parliament.



External appointments

Sangita is currently Chairman of Al
quoted companies Kinovo Plc and
RA International Group plc, a Board
Oirector of Ten Entertainment Group
ple, and NASDAQ listed Forward
Industries Ing. On a policy level she
presides over the Quoted Companies
Alliance, and as an investor presides
over several private companies.

3. Dianne Walker
Non-Executive Director

AOIOIG]

Skills and experience

Dianne is an experienced,
award-winning Non-Executive Director
with a strong background in finance,
risk and governance. Pricr to holding
Non-Executive and Board adwisory
roles, Dianne was a member of the
senior management team at PwC
overseeing audit and transaction
support professional setvices. Dianne
isa Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Externat appointments

Dianne holds the position of
Non-Executive Director and Chair

of the Remuneration Commitiee of
Victoria Plumbing plc, Non-Executive
Director of Development Bank of Wales
Plc and Senior Independent Director
and Chair of the Audit Cormmittee of
Scott Bader Co. Ltd.

Dianne is also Non-Executive Chair of
two small private limited companies,
J&L Elevator Components (EOT) Ltd
and Cygnet Texkimp Limited.
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4. Peter Tracey
Non-Executive Director

Skills and experience

Peter is Managing Director of
Blackdown Partners Limited, an
independent investment bank. Peter
has over 25 years' capital markets
experience, which includes positions
as Head of Investment Banking at
Liberum Capital and senicr leadership
positions at Merrill Lynch across cash
equities and investment banking in
Fonadon, Frankforr and New York.

External appointments

Peter is a3 Non-Executive Director of
Water Babies Group Limited and is
Chairman of Hurtwood Capital Limited,
a private family office with interests in
the real estate and media sectors.

5. Mark Dickinson
Chief Executive Officer

Skills and experience

Mark joined the Board during 2016 as

a Nan-Executive Director and became
CEQ in Getober 2017. Mark is an energy
consultancy specialist with over 25 years’
experience of developing and advising
companies in the sector. Mark was CEO
of M&C Energy Group, where he led the
buy and build strategy, completing four
acquisitions before selling the company
to Schneider Electric in 2013. He brings
siggnificant industry knowledge coupled
wilh experience in executing acqulisitions
and has a Master’s in Finance from the
London Business School, where he was
voted Accomplished Entrepreneur of
the Year in 2012

External appointments
None.

%)

6. Paul Cannor
Chief Financial Officer

Skills and experience

Pawl was appointed Chief Financial
Officer in December 2014, having
joined the company as Head of
Finance in September 2013. Paul
has been responsibte for facilitating
and delivering the acquisitions of
18 businesses. Payl gualified 23 a
chartered accountant in 2009

External appointments
None.

7. David Cockshott
Chief Commercial Officer

Skilis and experience

David joined the Group in 2020 and
became Chief Commercial Officer in
March 2022, bringing over 30 years'
experience in the energy sector,

He has held Board positions at
Marubeni-owned Smartest Energy
Limited and at Inenco Group, as well
as having Executive responsibility for
1&C and, latterly, domestic markets
for energy supplier Npower.

External appointments
None.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Governance structure

Committees and responsibilities
The Board operates four committees with specific areas of responsibility.

Nominations Oversees the process of wlenlifying candideies and makes recommendations to the Board.
Commmittee: Appointments are made on merit against chjective criteriz and with regard to the benefits that will
be brought to _the Board and the Group.

It atso consicers succession planning, and the training and development needs of the Directors, in the
case of new Directors there is an induction to ensure they become aware of the operations of the Group.

Audit & Risk Oversees the financial reporting of the organisation, the selection and appointment of independent
Committee: auditors, receiving the resuits of the audit and implementing the audit findings

The Audit & Risk Cormmittee provides risk oversight and quality control with respect to the financial
disclosures made by the company.

Remuneration Designs a baianced package for the Executive Directors. The Committee considers the individual's

Committee: expetience and the nature and complexity of their work in order to pay a competitive salary that
attracts and retalns management of the highest quality, while avoiding remunerating those Directors
mare than is necessary. The Committee also considers the link between the indwvidual's remunaration
package and the Group's long-term performance aims.

ESG Performance  The ESG Performance Committee has responsibility for holding the Executive Directors to account
Committee: with respect to the risks of climate change and other envircnmental, social and governance issues.

Delegating ESG responsibility across the organisation

Structured and transparent organisation of the business at an Executive and Non-Executive level is an important enabler
with respect to ESG but in its own right it goes not lead to implemented behaviours. To this end, a8 nurmber of employee
committees have been formed that report into the ESG Performance Committee.

The ESG Action Committee and Employee Engagernent Committee are each made up of different representatives from each
of the following business areas: They must not be a direct report to an Executive Director and are rotated annually:

1. Sales and Marketing 4, Commercial Services 7. ESG Services
2. Account Management 5. Optimisation Services 8. Software Solutions
3. Regulated Services 6. Operations 9 Central Services

The role of each member of this committee is to champion the implementation of the environmental, social and employee
welfare initiatives that Inspired undertakes and report 1o the £SG Performance Committee.

Aligning incentives

The Executive Directors are incentivised by a bonus and long-term incentive scheme and these have been linked to the £5G
performance of the business as set cut on page 62.

The majority of employees at the company has some elerment of performance-related pay that is awarded quarterly that
contains a discretionary element.

The Group adopt the Blanchard Situational Leadership Programme which creates 3 common Janguage for leadership from
the top to the bottom of the organisation. In line with the change in the remuneration of the Executive Directors, each employee
shall have one of the goals that impacts their performance pay linked to climaie change and the ESG perforrmance of

the company.
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Stakeholder communication

As the company evolves, so does the layers
of communication with our stakeholders

The ways in which we communicate with our stakeholders can be summarised as;

Cormmunication with investors .

The company uses the London Stack Exchange Regulatory News Service [RNS) to advise the market {i.e. shareholders
and othersj of performance and significant matters. All RNS announcements are available on the company's website,
https:/finspiredple.couk/news/

FONVYNUIAOD ILYHOSUOD

Brokers are updated by the company and circulate notes regularly.

The ACM is a key forum for communications with any shareholder who wishes to attend, and the Directaors are available here
to hsten to views expressed both formally'and informally.

The outcomes (as to whether they were successfully passed or not) of resolutions put to the AGM are published and are
available on the company’s website.

Bublication of statements and disclosures

inspired PLC has published its performance results against its policies and practices, in accordance with requirements
set out for key annual disclosures, including:

2.

Streamlined
Energy and Carbon

1.
Green Economy Mark

Revenue Disclosure Reporting (SECR)

3. 4.

Task Force on ESGC Report aligned to
Climate-Related Financial the Global Reporting
Disclosures (TCFD} Initiative (GRI)

The results are published in full on the Inspired PLC website, hitps/finspiredplc.co.uk/reports-and-presentations/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Directors' remuneration report

Statement from the Chair of the

Remuneration Committee

| am pleased to present this Directors’ remuneration report,
which sets out the Group's approach to remuneration for the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors for the year ended

31 December 2022 and how remuneration will operate for the
year ending 31 December 2023

As the Group's shares are registered on the AlM market of the
Lendon Stock Exchange, the company is required to report in
accordance with the remuneration disciosure requirements
of the AlM Rules for Companies. The Group is not required Lo
prepare a Directors' remuneration report under the Companies
Act 2006 regulations; however, in the interests of transparency
and goud govemance, the disclosures in this report seek to
address some of these areas.

Summary of Executive remuneération outcomes

for 2022

Asautlined in last year's report, the Committee approved

the introduction of the new Inspired Incentive Plan {IIP} for
the 2022 financial year. The plan is a combined short and
long-term incentive, with @ maximum opportunity for 2022 of
200% of salary for the Executive Direclors. Performance was
measured over 2022 based on targets set at the beginning of
the linancial year relating to adjusted LPS 140%), combined
adjusted EBITDA ang cash conversion (40%) and ESG (20%).

The Committee is pleased 1o report that the combined
adjusted EBITDA and cash conversion and adjusted EPS
performance were broadly in line with the target levels set

at the start of the year. The Committee also considered the
good progress made by the company on its ESG objectives
during the year, including the delivery of operating activities
such as establishing an employee committee and detailed
implementation plan to ensure we are on track 1o deliver a
25% reduction in Scope 1 and 2 emnissions and 25% reduction
in waste and water usage by 2025, as well as performance
against other strategic cbjectives. The Committee determined
that an overall award of 81% of the maximum opportunity was
2ppropriate, equivalent Lo 162% of salary (pro-rata for Dawvid
Cockshott for the period he was an Executive Director).

As outlined in last year's report, 530% of the award is paid

in cash with the remaining 50% deferred in inspired PLC
crdinary shares {using nil-cost options) which vest after
three years subject to a share price multiplier and continued
employment. For the 2022 awards, if the share price at the
end of the three-year deferral period is:

« iess than 21.5 pence, nc additional shares will be awarded,

« equal to 21.5 pence, an additional 50% of the deferred
shares orignally granted wil! be awarded; or

« equal to 25 pence, an additional 100% of the deferred
shares originally granted will be awarded.

and so on, with an additional 50% of the deferred shares
originally granted being awarded for every additional 5 pence
increase in the share price, up ta a maximum of 75 pence.

Inspued PLC
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Board changes

David Cockshott was promoted to the Board as Chief
Commercial Officer with effect from 1 April 2022. His salary
was set at £200,000 on appointment, reflecting his 30+
years’ experience in the energy sector. David’s pension and
benefits are in line with the other Executive Directors and
he will participate in the IIP on the same terms as other
Executive Directors.

Compaosition and role of the Rernuneration Committee
Remuneration Commitice members during the peried
consisted of the Non-Executive Directors Sangita Shah
{Chair), Richard Logan and Sarah Flannigan. Following the -
year end, Dianne Walker was appeinted 1o the Committee
on 1 March 2023, and Sarah Flannigan resigned from the
Committee (and the Board) on this date.

The Committee does not include any Executive Directors
to ensure there are no conflict of interests.

The Committee is responsitle for determining, on behalf
of the Board, an appropriate remuneration policy for the
Executive Directors and for designing a remuneration
framework for them that is consistent with that policy. The
Committee also monitors remuneration practice amongst
other senior £xecutives and determines the Chairman’s fee
leve!. The fees for the other Non-Executive Directors are
determined by the Chairman and the Executive Directors.

The Committee met twice during 2022 and held a number
of additional ad hog discussions throughout the year.

Remuneration structure for Executive Directors
Overview

The Remuneration Committee is cormmitted to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and has taken steps to
comply with best practice nsofar as it can be applied practically
given the size of the Group and the nature of its operations,

Remuneration policy

The Committee airns to ensure that the total remuneration
for the Executive Directors is market competitive and
aligned with the interests of shareholders. No Director takes
part in decisions regarding their personal remuneration.

To design a balanced package for the Executive Directors
and senior management, the Committee considers the
individual's experience and the nature and complexity of their
waork in order to pay a competitive salary that attracts and
retains management of the highest quality, while aveiding
remunerating those Directors more than is necessary. The
Cormmittee also considers the fink between the individuai's
remuneration package and the Group's long-term
perfarmance aims.

Basic salary

The basic annual salaries payable to the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financiat Officer since T January 2022 have
been £290,000 ang £210,000 respectively. The basic annual
salary payable 1o the Chief Commercial Officer since his
appointment to the Board on 1 Aprit 2022 has been £200,000.
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Remuneration structure for Executive Directors
continued

Inspired Incentive Plan (IIP)

Under the UP, performance is measured over consecutive
one-year pericds, Part of the award is paid in cash, with
the rernainder deferred in shares (in the form of nit-cost
options) which vest after three years, subject to continued
employrment. The deferred shares element may also be
subject to a performance ratchet whereby the number of
shares that vest Can be increased on the achievement of a set
of share price hurdles dunng the of the deferral period. The
total performance period for the IR is therefore four years.

For 2022, the maximum opportunity for Executive Directors
wis 200% of salary, with 50% of any award paid in cash
following the end of the performance period and the remaining
50% will be deferred in Inspired PLC ordinary shares (using
nil-cost options), vesting after three years subject to continued
employment and (if applicable) a share price multiplier.

The Remuneration Committee determines appropriate financial
and strategic measures at the start of each performance year.

The plan is subject to standard malus and clawback
provisicns and good/bad leaver terms.

Shareholding requirement

The Qermuneration Committee has introduced a shareholding
reguirement for Executive Directors, equal to 150% and 100%
of salary for the Chief Executive Officer and other Executive
Directors respectively. Executive Directors have five years
frorm 1January 2022 {or date of appointment to the Board if
later) to achieve this shareholding requirernent. Unvested
share awards subject to performance conditions are not
taken into account. All awards vesting from the company's

4 &b

variable rermuneration schemes must be retained until the
shareholding requirement is met.

Service contracts

tach Executive Director has a service contract with

the Group which contains details regarding remuneration,
restrictions and disciplinary matters, Executive Directors are
appointed by the Croup on service contracts terminable on
no more than twelve months' notice.

Remuneration structure for Non-Executive
Directors

Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic annual

fee. Additional fees may be paid to Non-Executive
Dircctors for additional responsibilities, such as the
Senior Independent Director and chairing or being a
member of 3 Board Committee. A single fee is paid to the
Chairman. The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are
not involved in any discussions or decisions concerning
their own remuneration.

The annual fee levels for the 2022 financial year were:

« Chairman - £65,000; and

« Non-Executive Directors - £45.000.

There is no right to any further benefits in kind.
Remuneration for 2022 financial year

The table below sets out the Directors' emciuments for the

year ended 31 December 2022. A comparison for the financial
year ended 31 Decemnber 2021 is also provided.

2022 2021
Salary/fees Bonus' Pension Total Salary/fees Bonus Pension Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 EO0D £000 £000 £000
Executive
Mark Dickinson 290 235 1 526 275 275 1 551
David Cockshort (appointed 1April 2022) 150 122 1 273 — — — —
Paut Connor 210 170 1 381 200 200 ] 401
650 527 3 1180 475 475 2 952
Non-Executive . -
Mike Fletcher {resigned 30 June 2021) —_ — _— —_ 27 — —_ 27
Richard Lagan 65 — — 65 49 — — 49
Sarah Flannigan 45 —_ — 45 45 — — 45
Sangita Shah {appeinted 1 July 2021) 45 — - 45 23 — — 23
Dianne Walker (appointed 4 August 2021) 45 — — 45 19 — — 19
200 -— —_ 200 163 — — 163
Total 850 527 3 1,380 638 475 2 115

1 Bonus figures for 2022 includes the cash element (50% of the award). The deferred element {remaining 50% of the award} vests after three years
subject 1o continued employment and is also subject 1o share price multipliers - the value of the deferred element will be disclosed in the
remuneration 1able for the financial year in which the multiplier is assessed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration for 2022 financial year continued
2022 1IP outcome
The table below sets out the performance rmeasures, weightings and outcomes for the 2022 itP:

Weighting Performance
Adjusted EBITDA and cash conversion 40% Adjusted EBITDA: £21.0m
Cash conversion: 102%
Adjusted EPS 450% 1.3p
ESG 20% See below*
Totat 100% 100%

* Outcomes in respect of the ESG element included delivery of operating activities such as establishing an employee comrnittee and detailed
implementation plan 10 €nsyre we are on track to deliver a 25% reduction in Scope 1 and 2 erissions ang 25% reduction in waste and water

usage by 2025
The Committee alsc considered overall progress of the company against its strategic objectives

The overall outcome was 81% of maximum, equivalent 1o 162% of salary {pro-rata for David Cockshott). The cutcomes for the
Executive Directors were therefore as folows:

» Mark Dickinson (Chief Executive Officer): £235,095 in cash and £235,095 deferred in shares;

+ Paul Connor (Chief Financial Officer): £17Q,241 in cash and £170,241 deferred in shares; and

-« David Cockshott (Chief Commercial Officer): £121.601 in cash and £121601 deferred in shares.

50% of the awards will be paid in cash. The remaining 50% will be deferred in Inspired PLC shares (using nil-cost options) which
vest after three years subject to continued employrent and share price multipliers as per the Chair's statement.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests
The table below sets out the Direciors’ interests in shares of the company as at 31 Decernber 2021

Number of

shares? %
Executive
Mark Dickinson’ . 7534210 Q.77%
David Cockshott — -
Paul Conner? 7.215,000 074%
Non-Executive
Richard Logan 459,828 0.05%
Sarah Flannigan — _
Sangita Shah 128,205 0.01%

Dianne Walker

1 Including 4,995,000 vestec share options held at 3112.2022 under the LTIP scheme, 3,595,000 of which were exercised on 30 January 2023 and
transferred from Inspired Energy EBT to Mark Dickinsan. ’

2 Including 2,025,000 vested share options under the LTIP scheme and 4,190,000 vested EMIfunapproved share options. On 30 January 2023,
Paul Connor exercised 1725000 LTIP Scheme Crdinary Shares, and the ordinary shares were transferred from Inspired Energy EBT to Paul Connor.

3 Inaddition to the tabled number of shares, Mark Dickinson has 300,000 options which remain unvesied and Paul Connor has 300,000 options
which remain uivesied, all of which are subject to performance conditions.
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests continued _

On 30 January 2023, Mark Dickinson exercised 3,595,000 awards under the 2017 LTIP. The exercise of the 3,595.000 ordinary
shares at a share price of 215 pence was subject to income tax including employer's NIC (resulting in an effective 55% tax rate),
resulting in a gain on exercise of £148,024. In addition. Mark Dickinson purchased 479,966 ordinary shares at an average price of
10.41 pence per ordinary shares. ’

On 30 January 2023, Paul Connor exercised 1,725,000 awards under the 2017 LTIP. The exercise of the 1,725,000 ordinary shares
at a share price of 215 pence was sutiject to income tax including employer’s NIC (resulting in an effective 55% tax rate), resulting
in a gain on exercise of £71,027.

In addition, on 30 January 2023 the following Non-Executive Directors purchased ordinary shares:

+ Richard Logan, Non-Executive Chair, purchased 28893 ordinary shares at a price of 10.375 pence per ordinary share
on 30 January 2023. Following this transaction, Richard Logan holds 748,021 ordinary shares in the company.

+ Sangita Shah, Non-Executive Director, and her spouse, collectively purchasec 287,769 ordinary shares at a price of 10.425 pence
per ordinary share on 30 January 2023. Following this transaction, Sangita Shah and her spouse together hold 415,974 ordinary
shares in the company.

. Dianne Walker, Non-Executive Director, purchased 90,969 aordinary shares at a price of 10.32 pence per ordinary share
on 30 January 2023, Following this transaction, Diane Walker holds 90,269 aordinary shares in the company.

Approach to remuneration for 2023

Executive Directors

Base salary

As indicated in last year's report, the Committee undertook an externat remuneration benchmarking review during the year
with the Committee’s remuneration agvisors. Noting inflationary pressures, the Commitiee determined that salary increases
for 2023 would be limited to 5% with effect from 1January 2023.

The salaries of the Executive Directors with effect from 1January 2023 are therefore:
« Mark Dickinson {Chief Executive Officer): £304.500;

+ Paul Connor {Chief Financial Officer): £220,500: and

- David Cockshott {Chief Commmaercial Officer): £210,000.

Inspired Incentive Plan ([P}

The Committee has considered the appropriate approach for the IIP in 2023. Based on the current share price position and the
potential high dilution, the Comrmittee has concluded that it would not be appropriate to operate the share multipliers for the
deferred element of any 2023 award.

with this in mind, the Committee is proposing to make the following changes to the operation of the liP for 2023:
. remove the application of share price multipliers for the 2023 award; and

+ increase the maximurm opportunity for Executive Directors from 200% to 250% of salary for 2023 to reflect the removal
of the multipliers.

The performance measures will remain broadly unchanged from 2022:
« adjusted EBITDA [subject to a cash conversion underpinj (40% weighting),
- adjusted Earnings Per Share {40% weighting); and _

« ESG (20% weighting) - this element will be based on the company's progress towards its 2025 ESG goals during the 2023
financial yaar.

Details of performance ocutcomes will be set out in the 2023 Directors’ Remuneration Report. The Committee will review the
appropriateness of the share price multipliers for the future financial years on an annual basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Directors’ remuneration report continued -

Non-Executive Directors
Following a market review of Non-Executive Director fees, the Board approved the following changes with effect frorm 1 January 2023

- The fee for the Chairman would be increased to £85.000 to reflect the respansibilities and increased time commitments
of the role, and to remain competitive compared to other similarly sized AlM companies.

- The fee for the Non-Executive Directors will riemain unchanged (£45,000j) but the Chairman and Executive Directors
determined that additional fees should be introduced for the following roles:

- Senior Independent Director {£5,000)

- Chair of the Audit & Risk Cormnmittee (£5,000)

- Chair of the Remuneration Committee {£5,000)

"« Chair of the ESG Performance Committee (£2,500)

to reflect the increased responsibilities and time commiutments for these roles as the company's governance arrangements
have increased, -

This report has been approved by the Board and has been signed on behalf of the Board by:

Sangita Shah
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
28 March 2023

DocuSigned by:

E29ADG945578404 ..
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Policies and code of conduct

Qur policies and codes of conduct are published on our website. The purpose of each policy and our

N . 0
performance against it are set out below. 0
bl
3
Policy Summary Performance during 2022 ;
-
Anti-bribery Sets out the Group's zero olerance approach  There have been no complaints or reported incidents g
ang corruption to such practices and the obligations of with respect to anti-bribery and corruption. o
employees and third parties. ﬁ
)
Anti-discrimination  Sets out the Group's zero tolerance with There have been no complaints of reported incidents ;
respect to discriminatory practices. with respect to discriminatory practices. z
0
. . . . . m
Board Sets out the Group’s policy with respect During 2022, the PLC Board had a gender diversity of
gender diversity to diversity at Board level. 42.9%, complying with our target to achieve 37.5% by
December 2022,

Subsequent to the Board changes on 2 March 2023, the
Board has a gender diversity of 28.6%. Consistent with
its poticy of non-discrimination the Board will continue
to seek to expand the Board to achieve its target as and
when it is appropriate to do so.

Clirnate change Outlines the Group's policy with respect The Group achieved carbon neutrality during
and the to climate change and the environment. 2022 and set targets to reach S0% net-zero on

enviranment a location-basis by 2035 and fully by 2050

Complaints handling Sets out the policies for managing There have been no complaints raised under this poiicy
complaints from third parties. during 2022,

Ermployee Sets out our policies on gender diversity The Group has an average 7% variance in basic pay

gender diversity and equal pay. between the minority gender and the other gender

at any operating level and a 48% representation of the
minocrity gender.

However, we have low diversity at our top three levels in
the business and whilst this has improved to 24% (20%
2021 representation of the minority gender it still drives
the majerity of cur gender pay gap which remains at 27%
due to skewed diversity at the leadership level.

and equal pay

Equal Sets gut our policy on recruitment, There have been no complaints or reported incidents

opportunities discrimination, bullying and other itemns with respect to equal opportunities and diversity.

and diversity with respect to equal opportunities.

Health and safety  Sets out ous health and safety policies for There have been 19 accidents reported during 2022,

and accident our organisation. one RIDDOR and no work-related fatalities.

préevention There were eight referrals during 2022 to occupaticnal

health for a work-related issue.

Hurman rights Sets out our policy with respect to the There have been no complaints of reported incidents
Group's commitment 1o human rights. with respect to human nghts,

Modern slavery and  Sets our zero tolerance approach to modern  There have been no complaints or reported incidents

human trafficking slavery or human trafficking with respect to modern slavery or hurnan trafficking,

Privacy notice Sets out our policies on data protection and  There have been no compiaints or reported incidents
retention with respect to third parties. with respect to our privacy policy, data protection or

data retention.

Recognition of Recognises our commitment to cperate in There have been no complaints or reported incidents with

ILG Conventions accordance with the ILO Conventions. respect to failure to comply with the iILO Conventions

Supplier code Sets out our expectations with respect to There have been no reported breaches of our supplier

of conduct “the conduct of cur supply chain, code of conduct during 2022

Whistleblower Sets out our policy with respect to the There have been no incidents of whistieblowing or

protection treatment of whistlebiowers. matters of significant concern raised during 2022
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OURESGIstrategy

AA

We continue to believe that environmental, social and governance (ESG)
management is key to good business practice and want to ensure that our
operations are sustainable for people and the planet”

We want to be transparent in what we are doing, providing
comparable data year-on-year and annuat updates on

our progress towards our targets. This is the third year we
have published 3 standalone ESC Report, aligned with the
Ciobal Reporting initiative (GRI) Standards, and a voluntary
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
report. This section of the annual report is the highlights of
our £5G achievementis and performance in 2022, full details,
including year-on-year data, is provided in our 2022 ESG
and TCFD reports.

Our ESG strategy and
commitment

We are committed to doing our part in creating a sustainable
world We approach this from two angles: improving our own
operations and supporting clients in managing their ESG
impacts. For both, we consider sustainability to be a journey,
starting with legal compliance and benchrnarking, followed
by building a robust strategy, processes and reporting, always
with the goal of net-zero in mind.

QOur ESG strategy is informed by both mandatory and

voluntary ESG disclasures, which are published on our website,

htips:./finspiredplc.co.uk! These include:

- aStreamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)
disclosure which cutfines our energy use, Scope 1, 2 and
partial 3 (grey fleet) carbon emissions and carbon intensity,
as well as how we are improving energy efficiency within
the business;

« agender pay gap report detailing the gender pay differences
across the business as a whole and within each level of
the cormpany,;

avoluntary Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD} report which explains our assessment
of climate-related risks and opportunities for inspired and our
strategic response to climate change (in 2022 we published
our second report);

+

aveluntary ESG report, which is aligned with the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI} standards and provides detailed
information on the topics of economic and strategy,
environment, governance and social (in 2022 we published
our second report);

« a CDP (formerly: Carbon Disclosure Project) disclosure,
submitted for the first time in 2022 and achieving a B
Climate Change score, which outlines how we are managing
our environmental impacts and climate-related risks and
opportunities; and

during 2022 the Groupwas awarded an Ecovardis silver medal.

We consider it important to support and partner with leading
organisations in our industry. Cuvrently, we have the following
ESC memberships and partnerships:

- Principles for Responsgible tnvestment (PRI): we are 5
service provider signatory as we advise asset owners and
investrment managers on ESG topics and support them in
submitting FRI reports.

- Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). we are a3 member of
the GRI Community and support its mission 1o empower
decision makers everywhere, through GRI Sustainability
Reporting Standards and its multi-stakeholder network, to

take action towards a more sustainable economy and worid.

Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB}:
we are a Data and Premier Pariner as we help clients report
asset data directly to the GRESB Portal.

- edie: we have had a relationship with edie since 2018 and
collaborate on a range of activities to educate and inform
its readership about topics including energy management,
compliance reporting, data management and sustainable
reporting.

UK Business Council for Sustainable Development
(UKBCSD): we became a member of the UKBCSD in 2021,
It aims to lead sustainable business growth, supporting
technologicat innovation and advocating for the role of
sustainable development,

« Social value UK and Social Value International: this year
we have become members of these organisations which
change the way the world accounts for value by including
environmental and social factors.

Disability Confident Employer: is a movement of change,
encouraging employers to think differently about disability
and take action to improve how they recruit, retain and
develop disabled people.

Social Mability Pledge: encourages organisations to being
a force for good by putting social mobility at the heart of
their purpose.

Mental Health at work commitment: is s commitment to
implementing each of the standards including ideas and
tools to get organisations started.

The Global Business Collaboration for Better Workplace
Mental Health Pledge: is an initiative that seeks 10 advance
progress by cornmitting senior leaders to a Pledge to create
mentally healthy workplaces.
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Qver the last few years, we have been working to formalise aspects of ESG, it rnet for the first time in 2021 and once in
our ESG governance to ensure that the principles are embedded 2022 and plans to meet once a guarter from 2023,
throughout the business, from the Board through to our . . =
employees. This is alt driven by our CEO, Mark Dickinson ESG Action Committee
and his commitment to creating & better world in the face Now that we have established a governance structure for
of the climate emergency. The Board shares responsibility ESG within Insgired, we are aiming to increase employee . :
for approving the £5G strategy and reviewing performance engagement with sustainability topics. In 2022, we created | &
with the ESG Performance Committee. it plays 3 crucial role the terrms of reference for our ESG Action Committee 5‘1‘
in the company's governance by providing an external and {farmerly referred 1o asAthe Envuronmental anq Social Action !
independent perspective, ensuring there are adeguate internal Committees) and the first meeting was heid in January 2023. .
controls and risk management measures in place. This consists of ermployees from each department who can
| help us make progress on our ESC actions and ambitions.
Executive remuneration _
; Since 2021, our Executive remuneration has had an ESG Green Economy Mark . o
component because it is a care part of how we do business. We are pleased to have received the London Stock Exchange's v
For 2022, we overhauled our remuneration palicy for Green Economy Mark. it recognises those companies that
Executives and created the Inspired Incantive Plan; within this, 8¢ contributing to a greener and more sustainable economy ""‘"‘,"';
E£SG targets have a weighting of 20%. and allows greater visibility for.:nvestors interested in grean N ;“
econoimy activities. To recefve it, companies Must generate .
—__ ESG Performance Committee at feast 50% of their revenue from green revenue streams as
. The £SG Performance Committee sits alongside the Audit, defined by FTSE Russell's Green Revenues taxonomy. We First .
. Rermuneration arnd Nominations Comrmitiees. It is responsible received it in 2020 and are pleased to have exceeded 50%
- for holding the Executive Directors to account concerning all green revenue again this year, as shown in the table below.
- L
1 Table Y: Green revenue for Inspired PLC in 2020 and 2021, split by services and division C
Il ’ 2022 302 <
- 2022 qgreen 202 GQreen :
) . revenuc f\'_“JlE‘ \71L710 E \ VSIS » ‘
Deascripiion £000 [elsls] CO0 [Reiele]
<+
. b e EAAEIRE Consultancy and advisory services on placing energy 24726 24,726 24,443 24,443 i ‘ : 1
:j‘{ f’w supply contracis for corporate consumers, Focusing p;, "
£ on the management of renewable obligations, 3 :
[ - feed-in tariffs and climare change levies 3 o
Lq . ; {EFEReyy Verification of energy invoices and charges for 6,341 6,341 5965 5965 g .5‘ B
" aeEar g corporate energy consumers, including validation of el
:’}-‘.! o consumption data which forms the basis of " .
s submissions for sustainability reporting and C L.
“"” voluntary schemes such as the CDP (formerly :V ,‘.;;
1 t , known as the Carbon Disclosure Project) ""'t.u->
- -
' MIAIREFTRE) Monitoring of site energy consumption 1o reduce 7,362 7.362 7039 7,039 257 @,
w AN ERTERRE energy and water waste and drive energy-efficient *_‘-::{g_"_q
o c; behaviour from employees Lo
’ :"BA B Production of net-zero Carbon Action Brogrammes 2,580 2,580 966 o966
i and setting of science-based targets. Creation of
«’:"qr‘! TCFD and SECR disclosures and ESG reports
] Historical cost recovery relating 1o consumer
energy and water invoices
Forecasting and notifying of TRIAD periods to
energy consumers
Consumption reduction management through
energy efficiency, demand-side response and
onsite renewable generation
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ESG Performance Summary continued

Task Force on Climate-Related Financial

Disclosures (TCFD)

A

We have been using the TCFD framework since FY2020 to assess the
climate-related risks and opportunities for our business. It provides eleven
recommendations in four areas that integrate into our existing business
structures: governance, strategy, risk management and metrics and targets.”

Thisis a surmmary of our results, with full details provided in
our 2022 TCED report.

Overview

Risk management is a key process in any business and, as

a company that acknowledges the climate crisis, we are
aware that this must include management of climate-related
risks and cpportunities. This will allow us to create a resilient
business strategy and a company which is sustainable in

the long tarm. Using the TCFD recommendations, we have
developed an internal Climate Risk Management Framework
0 help us integrate climate change considerations into our
regular planning, risk management and disclosure processes

The TCFD presents two main risk categaries: physical risks,
such as extreme weather events or rising mean temperatures,
and transitional risks, such as increasing reporting requirerments
and carbon pricing. For Inspired, the transition 1o a low-
carbon economy is associated with the highest risks and

the greatest opportunities. We are growing our net-zerg and
ESG Disclosure Services in response 1o business demand,
supporting companies in complying with UK laws and aligning
with the Nationally Determined Contributions which form part
of the Paris Agreement. In terms of physical risk, although
these are low overall, we are aware of the potential impacts of
flooding and heatwaves and are monioring these.

Governance

Management and responsibility for climate-related risks

and TCFE reporting fall within cur broader ESG governance
framework, which is described above. All disclosures are
subject to our internat governance processes with Executive
responsibility and Board oversight. The CEQ, Mark Dickinson,
has overalt respansibility for ensuring climate-retated risks,
opportunities and responses are integrated into the business
strategy. Consideration of how climate-related risks may impact
the company's financial performance is the responsibility of the
CFO, Paul Connor. Climate change is a standing agenda item
for the ESC Performance Committee, which 1s responsible for
reviewing and validating the strategy.

Strategy

Our approach

We see many opportunities for our business as a result of

the transition to a low-carbon economy and are aware of the
potential risks. As recommended by the TCFD, we use climate
scenario analysis to understand the risk levels over the short
(2022-2027), medium (2028-2037) and long term [2038-2052),
considering three different possible futures in terms of cimate
and governmental response, as follows,

Inspired PLC
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Forward-looking analysis

The potential impacts of climate change will vary depending
on the action taken to mitigate it on a global scale. Additionally,
the greatest physical impacts will be felt on a timescale
beyond tragitional business planning and investment cycles,
That is why it is necessary to use climate scenarios 16 model
potential futures. We have done this for the period 2022 to
2052 as this covers the period of greatest transition, as the UK
Government has committed 1o being net-zero by 2050, and
begins to factor in the tong-term physical impacts. From that
information, we can assess potential business impacts and
resilience, as well as identify possible opportunities.

Climate scenarios

When running our climate modelling, we ran scenarios for
three potential futures and three time horizons mentioned
above to ensure sufficient granularnty in our assessment. The
sCenarios were;

proactive: <2°C by 2100: this is associated with high levels of
transitional risks but limited physical risks;

reactive: 2-3°C by 2100: this would see the highest level of
transitional risks with some physical risks; and

inactive: >3°C by 2100: this would bring limited transitional
risks but the highest level of physical risks.

we used IPCC accredited external datasets, including the
COROEX, CLIMADA and 1AM madels. We ran the analysis for
each of our twelve offices. Full details will be available in our
standalone 2022 TCFD report.

Risk management

Cur internal risk management is based on the UK Government’s
Green Leaves Hi Environmental Risk Management Practices
which has four interconnected processes to identify, assess and
address potentia! risks. Cur Climate Risk Framework considers
the potential risks to out business for each of the categories
outlined by the TCFD recommendations. \We are able 1o assess
these using the data from our climate scemario analysis and
calculating the associated financial risk. Once material risks
have been identified, we appraise the options for managing
the risk and address any remaining residual risk.
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Our results

As a primarily office-based company, our highest risks lay in the transition to a low-carbon economy. Due to the nature of our
business activities and because most of our operations are in the UK and Ireland, our ghysical climate-related risks are law,
although we will continue 16 monitor them. There ase also opportunities for our business and we are acting on these with the
development of our optimisation and £SG departments. Our results suggest a similar financial impact across all three scenarios,
with minimal differences for some business categories.

Table 2: Risks and opportunities for Inspired PLC split by business category

2022 2021

value value
Business category £Em £m Risk Opportunity
Technology providers 0.8 1.2 .
Transport 0.5 0.4 .
Energy and utility costs 0.1 01 -
Capital markels 0.4 0.4 -
Bank finance 31 1.9 .
Engineering contractors 8.5 4.8 - .
Offices 0.5 06 . -
Asset values 830 830 -
Rohoatic process automation 03 03 -
Capital equipment 11 09 .
IT deveiopment 2.6 3.0 .
MRA execution 0.5 0.5 .
Labour 338 325 .
Energy assurance services 36.0 350 . .
Energy optimisation services 477 29.6 . .
ESG disclosure services ) . 26 09 . .
Software solutions 2.5 2.4 . .
ESG impact services — —
Equipment manufacturers 41 56 . -

Once we have established the associated financial impact for each business category, we create a risk and opportunity
materiality ranking, as shown in the tables below.

Table 3; Top material risks

2022 2021
Value of Value of
Materiality risk Business impact area Risk value impact area Risk value
Category Key area ranking category £m £Em Em £m
Transition Market 1 Asset values 83.0 4.2 830 4.2
Energy assurance
Physical Chronic 2 Services 36.0 0.5 350 0.5
Transition Reputation 3 Labour iiB 3.3 325 32

As well as risks, we also identified three material opportunities. For our Energy Optimisation Services, the increasing pricing

of GHG emissions offers increasing opportunities to support clients in managing their energy use. For our Energy Assurance
and ESG departments, increasing reporting obligations allows us 10 expand our offering in terms of disclosure preparation and
energy reduction strategies for clients.

Table 4: Top material opportunities

2022 2021
Materlaht)f . Value of Opportunity Value of Opportunity
opportunity  Business impact area value impact area value
Category Key area ranking category £m £m Em £m
Transition Reputation 1 Energy optimisation
services 477 7.0 296 4.6
Physical Chronic 2 Energy assurance
services 36.0 4.5 350 4.3
Transition Market 3 ESC disclosure services 26 19.5 o9 6.8

Inspired PLC 65
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ESGC Performance Summary continued

TCFD continued

Metrics and targets

As a provider of ESG Services 1o businesses, we aim to lead by example. Since 2020, we have achieved carbon neutrality
through offsets for Scope 1 and 2 and operational Scope 3 emissions. Expanding our offsetting to include Scope 3 emissions
associated with our uperalional supply chain provides a turther incentive to improve emissions from our suppliers. We are
currently working with our suppliers to better understand their emissions and improve our data collection. This will allow us
to reduce our Scope 3 emissions, a key step on our path to net-zero. In 2022 we committed to submitting our targets to the

Science-based Targets initistive (SBTi), by providing our letter of intent to the organisation.

Table 5: Key targets

Target year Key performance indicators Progressin 2022
Commit 10 subrnitting science- « Officially committed to set near-
based targets to SBTI term and net-zero SBTs

- Presented S8BT options to the Board

« Modelled decarbonisation
trajectory for SBTs

Next steps

- Get sign off from environmental
committee on SBTs

Pull together documentaticn for
SBT submission

+ Book validation siot

+ Continuous Scope 3
data improvement

Reduce our Scope land 2 » Installed half-hourly monitoring at
carbon feetprint by 25% against Kirkham office and trialled energy
a 2021 baseline efficiency measures

Reduce our Scope 1 and 2 carbon
footprint by 50% (on a location-
basis) compared to a 2019 baseline

Achieve net-zero Scope 1and 2
emissions {on a location-basis)

Roll out energy efficiency
measures identified in Kirkham
trial to remaining offices

Improve f-gas data collection

2050 Achieve net-zero Scope 1, 2 and Designed schedule for lifecycle
3 emissions analysis of products over next
five years

Set up internal tearm o Manage
and improve waste data

Improved financial data system
which streamiines Scope 3
Category 1 and 2 calculations

Electric Car Benefit Scherme
toreduce Scope 3 Category 7
emissions femployee commuting)

« Produce 5 LCAs for top selling
tnspired progucts

Set up central folder for all Scope
I data sharing and process for
data coliection

Begin supply chain engagement
with top suppliers [by spend]

Develop net-zero strategy for the
whole business

Our streamlined carbon and energy report and carbon balance sheet, below, lays out all our carbon emissions, broken down by

. scope and subcategory.

66 Inspired PLC
Anncal Report & Accounts 2022
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Streamlined carbon a‘nd energy report (SECR)

Our environmental impact o
Total greenhouse gas emissions g
The total consumption (kwhj figures for energy supplies reportable by Inspired PLC are as follows: 3
Table &: inspired PLC total consumption (kWh) figures E
R 2022 global 2021 global g
2022 UK [excluding UK} 2021UK  [exciuding UK) o
consumption consumption consumption cansumption <«
Utility and scope RWh) (kwh) [kewh} {kWh) g
Caseous and other fuels (Scope ) 272,410 — 357,413 — §
Transportation {Scope 1} 231,661 — 168,213 — z
Grid-supplied electricity {Scope 2) 258,784 15,482 327431 14,826 |rr|‘
Transportation (Scope 3) 1,008,329 — 409,733
Total 1,771,185 15,482 1,262,790 14,826

The total emissions (tCO,e) figures for energy supplies reportable by the Group are as follows. These have been calculated

utilising both iocation-based and market-based corversion factars. The market-based emissions also reflect the carbon savings
achieved through the purchase of REGO backed electricity (275 MWh) and Green Cas Certificates {273 Myvh). Conversion factors
utilised in these calculations are detailed in the methodology below.

Table 7: Inspired PLC total location-based ernissions (1C0O,e) figures

2022 UK 2022 global 2021 UK 2021 global
consumpticn {excluding UK) consumption (excluding UK}
[tCO,e)} consumgption (tC0,e) {tC0o,e} consumption {tC0o.e)
Utility and scope Location based Location based Location basad Location based
Scope 1total 105.59 — 105.31
Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 49,73 —_ 65.46 —
Transportation [Scope 1} 55.87 — 39.84 —
Scope 2 total 50.04 4.58 69.52
Crid-supptied electricity {Scope 2) 50.04 4.58 69.52 4.39
Scope 3 total 232,58 —_ 25.01
Transportation (Scope 3) 232.58 — 5.0 -
Total iB8.21 4.58 26984 4.39
Table B: Inspired PLC total market-based emissions (tCO,e) figures
2022 UK 2022 global 207 UK 2021 global
consumption {excluding UK) consumption {excluding UK}
{tCOe} consumption {tCO,e] tCo.e) consumption {tCO,&}
Utility and scope Market based Market based Market based Market based -
Scope 1 total 56 — 3998
Caseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 0.06 — 014 -
Trangportation (SCope 1) 55.87 — 39.84 —
Scope 2 total — — —
Grid-supplied etectricity (Scope 2) — - _ o
Scope 3 totat 232.58 — 95.01
Transportation (Scope 3) 232.58 — 25.0M —
Total 288.50 _— 134.99 —_

1 Natwral gas market-based emissions have been calculated taking into account carben dioxide savings from the purchase of Green Gas Certificates.

Inspired PLC
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Intensity metric
An intensity metric oftcoze per FTE has been applied for the annuai total consumption of the Group. This methodalogy 1s
compliant with $i 2008/410 7 Sch 15(3), and the results of this analysis are as follows.

Table 9: Inspired PLC emigsions intensity metrics

Intensity metric L 2022 intensity metric 7071 intensity meatric
Total FTE 641 608
tCO,e/FTE {location based) 0.61 0.45
CO.L/FTE (market based) 0.45 0.22

Electricity and natural gas location-based emissions for Inspired have decreased from 2021 levels by over 22% in 2022. While the
business has resumed a proportion of existing office operations, and new premises openad in Central London and Cardiff, work
has continued to ensure that occupied offices are nat consuming energy unnecessarily.

Measures have been taken to ensure that offices that are open are operating in the most efficient way possible, in particular
with heating and cooling time contsols, reflected in further reduced emissions for these utilities. Occupation of serviced offices
has supported our energy reduction effarts, as technology such as motion-activated lighting ensures that utilities are not in use
when the spaces are empty.

This year we have seen an increase in business travel, which is to be expected as business returns to usual following the
restrictions during the pandemic. In particular, there has been an increase in use of persona! vehicles due to the ongoing

train strikes. In addition, we have reduced our use of pool and company cars, which has moved some emissions from Scope 1
company cars 1o Scope 3 grey fleet.

Inspired has one subsidiary that qualifies for SECR as an individuzl entity in 2022. The consumgtion and emission figures for this
subsidiary for the 2022 reporting year are shown below:

Table 10: Inspired Energy Solutions total consumption (kWh) figures

Uility and scope 2022 consumption (kWh) 202} consumption (KWh)
Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 42164 9,220
Transportation {Scope 1} 497,854 7.691
Grid-supplied electricity (Scope 2) 152130 128,391
Transportation [Scope 3) 231,661 109,422
Total 923,809 254724

Table 1% Inspired Energy Solutions total location-based emissions [tCOze) figures

Utility and scope 2022 ¢onsurnption (1CO.e} 2021 consumption (tCO,8)
Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 1) 770 1.69
Transportation {Scope 1) 55.87 182
Grid-suppiied electricity (Scope 2) 29.41 2726
Transportation (Scope 3) 1M4.683 2537
Total 207.81 56.14

Energy efficiency improvements

Inspired PLC is committed 1o year-on-year improvements in its operational energy efficiency. As such, a register of energy
efficiency measures available to the Group has been compiled, with a view to implermenting these measwes in the next

five years.

Measures ongoing and undertaken through 2022:

Half-hourly monitoring has been implemented at the Kirkham office to allow a detailed understanding of our eénergy use here
and enable us to roll cut best practice across all our offices.

Time controls have been implemented on heating and cooling plant within the Kirkham office space to further improve the
efficiency of operation. This has included the utilisation of heat recovery systems, and the programming of Bank Holidays to
ensure the plant is not aperational during periods of non-occupancy.

An employee commuting survey was sent out to improve the accuracy of our Scope 3 Category 7 [employee commuting)
emissicns data.

An electric vehicle scheme has been introduced for Inspired employees to give more employees access (o electric cars and
also lower our Scope 3 Category 6 and 7 emissions (employee commuting).
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Measures prioritised for implementation in 2023:

A net-zero workshop was held with key stakeholders in July.
This was a training session on net-zero and Inspired’s current
position to ensure net-zero is embedded throughout the
business. In October, a Board training session on TCFD and
net-zera was held to provide the information necded for them
to sign-off on our carbon reduction targets and strategy.

Best practice rollout for all our offices based on the findings
from the half-hourly monitoring and energy saving initiatives
at our Kirkham office.

improve f-gas data collection to improve our data accuracy
for Scope 1.

SECR methodology

Scope 1, 2 and 3 consumption and CO,e emissions data

has been calculated in line with the 2019 UK Government
environmental reporting guidance. BEIS Greenhouse Gas
Reporting Conversion Factors 2022 version 1 has been used,
utitising the published kwh gross calorific value (Cv) and
kgCQO,e emissions factors relevant for reporting period
iJanuary 2022 to 31 December 2022,

Estimations undertaken to cover missing billing periods for
properties directly invoiced to Inspired PLC were calculated
on a kWh/day pro-rata basis at meter level These estimations
equated to 28% of reported consumption.

For properties where Inspired PLC is indirectly responsible
for utilities (i.e. via a landlord or service charge), an average
kWh/rm? consumption was calculated at meter level and was
applied to the properties with similar operations with no
available data. Where flocr area was unknown, an estimate of
kWh/FTE was calculated per utility and applied to the knowr
number of employees in occupation.

These full year estimations were applied to five electricity
supplies and one gas supply for Inspired PLC.

Natural gas market-based emissions have been calculated
taking in{o account carbon dioxide savings from the purchase
of Green Gas Certificates.

intensity metrics have been calculated using total tCOe
figures and the selected perforrmance indicator agreed with
Inspired PLC for the relevant reporting pericd.

Full time equivalents (FTE) 2022: 647 (2021: 608).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ESG Performance Summary continued

Carbon balance sheet

GHG inventory

When considering metrics and targets for TCFD disclosures,
businesses should set out their full carbon footprint, covering
Scopest 2 and 3, with respect 1o the CHG Protecol. Some
companies choose which categories of the GHG Protocol

to disclose in their carbon footprint on a materiality basis.
rowever, we believe this methodology does not provide the
full picture of a company's emissions footprint compared

to disclosing all 15 Scope 3 categories. As such, we review
every category of the GHG Protoco! and report eon alt that are
applicable to ouwr business. This ensures the highest standard
of transparency for our disclosure.

Qur carhbon footprint, calculated on a location-basis, is
outlined in Table 12. Overall our total emissions for all scopes
increased by 9% between 202 and 2022 and 99% of therm
come from Scope 3. This was driven mainly by a 16% increase
in the energy used by products we sold w third parties, which
is by far the largest ¢ategory for inspired and represents

Table 12: 2022 carbon balance sheet
Thistable is to be read across pages 69 and 70

62% of the Group's total erissions. Inspired provides energy
saving solutions to other businesses that help them to reduce
their Scope 1 and 2 emissions However, these products still
consume energy and the GHG Protocol indicates that we need
io account for the emissions associated with the energy this
equipment consumes within our GHG inventory. On this basis,
the mare energy saving products we sell to help our clients
decarbonise and manage their response to climate change,
the higher our Scope 3 emissions will beceme.

When we consider this growth in the context of the ingreasing
scale of our operations on both a revenue and employee
basis, we are becoming more effective in our emissions
management. However, it should be remembered that

the objective of net-zero is to deliver absolute reductions in
emissions and intensity Metrics only serve ta show a direction
of travel.

GHG inventory

Location based tCOe Market based tCO.e

Restated 9% Restated %

Emissions scope and Scope 3 category 2022 200 change 2022 2021 change
Scope 106 105 +0% 56 40 +40%
Natural gas 50 BS -24% 0.06 ol -57%
Transportation (excluding grey fleet) 56 40 +40% 56 40 +40%
Scope 2 55 74 -26% o o] 0%
Scope 3 17,653 1611 +10% 17,653 16,111 +10%
1. Purchased goods and services 5371 5,860 -8% 5371 5,860 -8%
Energy consuming products for resale 1,257 539 +133% 1,257 539 +133%
Other goods and services 4N4 4829 -15% 4 N4 4,829 15%

2. Capital goods 345 192 +79% 345 192 +'79%
2. Fuel-related emissions 29 63 -55% 29 63 -55%
4. Upstream transportation and distribution 61 56 0% 61 56 +10%
5. Waste generated in operations 1 1 +37% 1 1 +37%
6. Busingsgs travel 479 146 +229% 479 146 +229%
7. Employee commuting 297 226 +31% 297 226 +31%
B. Upstream leased assets N/A N/A — N/A N/A —
9. Downstrearn transportation and distribution N/A N/A — N/A N/A —
10. Processing of sold products N/A NAA — N/A NIA —_
1 Use of sold products Nn,069 9,567 +16% 1,069 9,567 +16%
12. End-of-life treatment of sold products 1 1 +6% 1 1 +6%
13. Downistream leased assets N/A N/A — N/& N/A —
14, Franchises N/A N/A, — N/A N/A —
5. Investments 01 01 -30% 01 ol -30%
Total all scopes 17,813 16,290 +99% 17,708 16,151 +10%
All scopes kgCO,e per £ (revenue) 0.20 0.24 -16% 0.20 024 -16%
278 26.8 +4% 27.6 266 +4%

All scopes tCO,e per ermployee

* 202 revenue corrected from £68.28 million estimated at time of writing the original disclosure to £67.941 million as per 2021 repart
and actpunts restatement of percentage change frorn 25% to 26% of market-based carbon cost of operations for 2021,

Inspired KLU
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Operational analysis

As an organisation we seek ta not only make ourselves carbon
neutral for our Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions, but alsa for

the Scope 3 emissions we have consumed in the provision

of our operations. Our operational analysis shows that our
absolute carbon cost of operations reduced by 3% during
2022. We have purchased 4,731 ICO,e of oifsets and 630 tCOe
carbon sequestration to achieve carbon neutrality across our
operations.

We purposefully achieve carbon neutrality for our operations
to ensure there is a cormmercial cost associated with our
emissions, in order 1o provide a commercial incentive to make
iIMmproverments our Husiness.

While we see carbon neutrality as a useful tool in the short
term to both help fund sustainable projects and put a price
on cur emissions, we are ulimately aiming for an absolute
reduction in the emissions we produce across our operations
in order to achieve net-zero.

Operational analysis

{8 )

Analysis of carbon benefits to customers

Where we provide energy consuming products to our
customers te help them reduce their emissions, such as LED
light bulbs and heat pumps, we aim (o see the return on
investment through the net carbon impact of those products.
The analysis of carbon benefits to customers shows that

Wiz die bdvillg our CUSTOMErs Moere ermissions than those
associated with the products themselves, ie embedded in
the raw maternals of the products or from their end of life
treatment. This results in a positive net carbor impact for our
customers. In 2022 we invested 1,258 tCO,e, in Categories 1
and 12-related emissions, 1o help our customers to save
16.364 tCQ,e, a net increase of 43% over 2021,

Analysis of carbon benefits from customer use of energy consuming products

Carbon cost of energy consuming

Customers net carbon impact from
use of energy consuming products

Carbon saving from use of energy
consuming products by custormers

Carbon cost of operations tCOe products sold 1o customers 10,8 1COe COe
% % festated % %
2022 2021 change 2022 202 change 2022 202y change 2022 2021 change
56 40 +40% w — — —_ — — — —_ —_—
0.06 Q1 -57% — - - — e — — — —
56 40 +40% — _ — _— — — —_ — —_
4] 0 — — — — — — — — _ —
5,325 5,513 -3% 1,258 540 +133% 16,364 10,658 +54% 15,106 o8 +49%
- — — 1,257 539 +133% — — —_ 1,257} (539} +133%
414 4,829 -15% - — — — — — — - —
345 192 +79% e —_ — — - — - - -
29 63 -55% — — — — — — _ — —
61 56 +9% — — - — —_ — — - _
3 1 +37% — —_ —_ _ — — - —_ —
479 46 +229% - - — — — — — — —
296 226 +31% - - — — — — — — —
— — — — — - 16,364 10,658 +54% 16,364 10,658 +54%
— — — 1 1 +30% — — — m  +30%
5,381 5,553 -3% 1,258 540 +133% 16,364 10,658 +54% 15,106 10.n8 +49%
0.06 DoB -26%" 0.0 oo +78%"* 018 (o[ +18% 017 015 +14%
8.4 Sl -8% 2.0 [eX°] +121% 25.5 7.5 +4.6% 236 16.6 +42%
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Environment

we acknowledge the climate emergency and are committed to mitigating our impact on the environment. We have a climate
change and environment policy that states this commitment and outlines the steps we are taking. This includes reducing our 4
waste and energy use, utilising video conferencing technology to reduce our business travel and assessing the environmental i
impact of new products and processes before we introduce thern. We also encourage our clients and suppliers to do the same.

Our overarching envircnmental target is to reach net-zerc on a location-basis by 2035, This year we have held training sessions with ! ‘

the Board and key stakeholders to provide the information needed for them to understand and approve our carbon reduction | !
' targets and strategy. We have modelied our net-zero pathway and created interim targets which will be signed off in Q1 2023

Further emissions and environmental targets are detailed 1in the metrics and targets section of the TCFD surmmary.

Waste and water |

Our water use and waste production are relatively iow and have reduced in recent years with the increase in homeworking since
the COVID-19 pandemic. We have set the targets below to reduce our water usage and waste in the short term.

Table 13. Waste and water targets

Target 2025 Progress

Water 25% reduction in water use by 2025 Feasibiiity investigations are underway for the
installation of water AMR in our long-term
leased and owned offices

Waste Replace or remove single-use plastic by DocuSign is used to reduce printing of documents
7025 Reduce paper usage by 50% by
2025 Recycie 90% of paper by 2025

! Suppliers

We are also keen to work with cur suppliers o improve their ervironmentat impact. We ask that all suppliers work to erwironmental
standards consistent with our own and review Lheir environmental policies during our onboarding process. We are currently
improving our screening processes to include more detail on environmental and social topics. To further improve our knowledge
of how suppliers are engaging with the topic of climate change, we have set ourselves a target of having 80% of suppliers, by
spend, making a TCFD or equivalent disclosure by 2025.

Table 14: Supplier targets

Target Progress
vendor engagement Achieve BO% of suppliers by spend making a Suppliers were consulted in 2021, and |
TCFD disclosure or equivalent by 2025 engagement is ocngoing I

Social .

SDGme -
We want to embed the UN SDGs into our organisational culture through our SDGme app. This encourages R
ermployees to record actions that save carbon and contribute to specific Sustainable Development SDG - o-

Goals. It aims to foster empioyee engagement and shape individual behaviour around global social and .
environmental issues. o000 0 i

In 2022, alrost 9,500 actions have been logged, saving a total of 26.52 tCO,e. Actions include choosing active j i
-* .  travel over driving, conserving energy by turning off devices at night and shopping locally. We are in the early
stages of testing the app with clients and look forward to rolling it out in 2023.

-~ :-: Our people -

oL Inspired recognises that our people are fundamental to the delivery of our strategy. We support our employees in their professional = -
[ development and health and wellbeing through internal training and providing access to external resources. We also aim to attract
! the best new talent and have an internal talent acquisition team of industry experts who develop a talent pool of high-quality

candidates. In 2022, we created and filled 103 additional roles.

In the long-term (5-25 years), we aim to maintain an equitable distribution of benefits between afl stakeholders in proportion
o the performance of the business. To develop sociat support and equity in our company, we have set short and mediurm-term
targets based on learning from past experiences to strengthen our company culture and invest in inftiatives that promote diversity
and inclusion. This vear we have introduced an enhanced maternity leave policy, which goes beyond the legal minimum to give
employees 16 weeks of full pay.

we have introduced flexible working practices based on our experience during COVID-19, with employees now able to work fully or
partially remotely or fully in-house. We have also invested in our IT infrastructure to create a best-in-class remote working ervironment

The infermation in this section is a summary of our ESG progress this year and full details are provided in our 2022 ESG Report.

- .-’—_-
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Employee Engagement Committee

The Employee Engagement Committee consists employees
from across the business and our offices. It runs charity
fundraising and engagement initiatives. Each month it writes
and sends out a newsletter celebrating employee fundraising,
sharing sustainability tips anc encouraging engagement.
Below are a few highhghts from 2022

Coffee mornings

in June, we held our first company-wide virtual coffee
morning, a chance for employees from across the business to
get to know each other. This was very well received and there
are ngw monthly coffee catch-ups with high attendance and
positive feedback.

Employee wellbeing
In 2022, we continued engaging with our employees to
improve their health and wellbeing. We know that wellness
and wellbeing are very personal and can be different for each
individual. During 2022, 228 employees registered for the
Unmind app, & workplace mental welibeing platform that is
100% confidential and can be accessed anywhere, anytime.
It helps employees track, assess, and understand their
welloeing with tools, training and assessments, and a wide
variety of activities. Iz focuses on seven key areas: fulfilrment,

,  coping, calmness, happiness, connection, health, and sleep.

! Employees can access self-guided programs, exercises and

i clinically backed insights.
Beach clean-up
In September, employees from Inspired volunteered to litter
pick on Blackpool Beach for International Coastal Clean Up
Day. Together. they collected 9.8kgs of rubbish.

Employee newsletter

: in December 2022, we faunched a monthly newsletter based
on feedback from employees. It aims to keep employees
inforrned about the business and act as a space for celebrating
achievernents.

Learning and development

This year, we are pleased to have launched a new course
catalogue far our employees which covers both training

on internal systems and software and, for the first time,
professional skills development. This has been very well
received and uptake of the courses has been high equating
tc 1,249 full days for employee training across the Group.

We are looking to launch a further 20 professional

skills courses in 2023, including an Inspired Leadership
Programme. This is in addition to our core modules, which
are taken each year, and include Equality and Diversity,
Health and Safety and Cyber Secunty.

More informaticn on our employee learning and development
- are provided in our 2022 ESG report.

-

Gender diversity

Gender diversity is an area of focus for inspired, especially at
the higher levels of the company. In 2022, cur Group gender
diversity was 48%, an increase from 46% last year. Qur Board
diversity was 42% at the year end as we rmaintained cur
target of ensuring each gender represents at teast 37.5% of
the Soard’'s composition. Subsequent to the Board changes
on 2 March 2023, the Board has a gender diversity of 28.6%.
Consistent with its policy of non-discrimination the Board
will continue to seek to expand the Board to achieve its £
targer as and when it is appropriate to do so.

We betieve in equzl pay for equal experience and performance
to support this diversity. At each level of the organisation,

men and women are paid the same under these conditions.
Overall, there is a 23% Group gender pay gap due o the

low fevel of diversity in senier leadership positions. This is

a reduction from last year's 27% and we aim 1o continue |
irmproving it, as outlined in our 2022 ESG report. |

The ratio of the basic pay of our most senior Executive 15
7.5 times that of average UK employees. |

Our full gender pay gap report can be found on our website, |

i
1
1
Health and safety {
As a primarily office-based service provider, the potential
for work-related injuries is relatively jow compared tc many
organisations. However, we ¢o provide some onsite services
and take health and safety very seriously. As such, we have
had our management system BS ISO 450012018 certified. |
Furthermore, we are registered with the Achilles Utilities
Viendar Database {LIVDB) scheme, which aims to manage and l
rnitigate risks in the supply chain.

In 2022, there were no fatalities (2021 no fatalities) and cne
HSE-reportable injury (2021 nil). There were six accidents, ,
with two requiring medical trestment and nine near-misses.
This is an increase on previous years; in 2022, we have seen an
increase in our construction-focused projects, following a lull
during the pandemic. All incidents are logged in a tracker and
followed-up internally to ensure any possible improvements
are made to reduce likelihcod of recurrence. Work-related
hazards are reviewed monthly by the office management
team to minimise risk.

T S
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CORPORATE GOVERNlAI;CE
Croup Directors’ report

The Directors present their repast and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Principat activities
Inspired is focused on the creation of shareholder value through a leading technology enabled service supporting businesses
in their drive to net-zero, controlling energy costs and managing their response to climate change.

Review of business and future developments
The Board has continved the commercial development of the business and is pleased with the progress made as noted in
further detail in the Chief Executive Officer’s statement and the rest of the strategic report.

The review of business and commentary on future developments have been included in the strategic report on pages ) to 46
Directors and their shareholdings

The Directors who served during the year and their interests in the shares of the Group as recarded in the register of Directors’
interests at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Number of
shares %
Mark Dickinson 2,539,310 0.26
Paul Connor 1,000,600 Q10
David Cockshott —_ —
Richard Logan ' 459,828 005
Sangita Shah 128,205 0.01

Dianne Watker
Sarah Flannigan

On 1 March 2023 Sarah Fiannigan resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the company. On the same date Peter Tracey was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the company.

On 30 January 2023, Mark Dickinson exercised 3,595,000 awards under the 2017 LTIP. The gxercise of the 3,595,000 ordinary
shares at a share price of 915 pence was subject to income 1ax including employer's NIC (resulting in an effective 55% tax rate).
In addition, Mark Dickinson purchased 479,966 ordinary shares at an average price of 10.41 pence per ordinary shares.

As 2 result, Mark Dickinson increased his holding to 6,614,276 ordinary shares.

On 30 January 2023, Paul Connor exercised 1,725,000 awards under the 2017 LTIP. The exercise of the 1,725,000 ordinary shares
at a share price of 915 pence was subject to income tax including employer’s NIC [resulting in an effective 55% tax rate). As a
result, Paul Connor increased his helding to 2,725,000 ordinary shares.

In addition, on 30 January 2023 the following Non-Executive directors purchased ordinary shares:

Richard Logan. Non-Executive Chair, purchased 288,193 ordinary shares at a price of 10.375 pence per ordinary share on
30 January 2023, Following this transaction, Richard Logan holds 748,021 erdinary shares in the company.

Sangita Shah, Non-Executive Director, and her spouse, collectively purchased 2877682 ordinary shares at a price of 10.425 pence
per ordinary share on 30 January 2023. Following this transaction, Sangita Shah and her spouse together hold 415,974 ordinary
shares in the company.

Disnne Walker, Non-Executive Director, purchased 90,969 ordinary shares at a price of 10.32 pence per ordinary share on

30 January 2023. Following this transaction, Dianne Walker holds 90,969 ordinary shares in the company.

Dividends .

The Board is delighted to propose a final dividend of 014 pence per share subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting
of the Group. Following the payment of an interim dividend of 013 pence per share, the total dividend payable for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is 0.27 pence per share {2021 0.25 pence per share). The dividend will be payable on 26 July 2023
to all sharehoiders on the register on 16 June 2023 and the shares will go ex-dividend on 15 June 2023

Going concern

For the purposes of assessing the apprapriateness of preparing the Group's accounts 6m a going concern basis, the Girectors
have considered the current cash position, available banking facilities and the Group's base case financial forecast through to
31 December 2024, including the ability to adhere to banking covenants.

The Directors believe the Group has a strong balance sheet position, having refinanced its banking facilities in October 20192 through to
October 2023. Furthermore, on entering the current facility agreerment with Santander and Bank of Ireland in October 2019, the
Group had an option to extend the term of the facility from October 2023 to October 2024. The Group exercised that opticn
in September 2021, taking the term of the existing facility to October 2024. Whilst a refinancing is not required in orgder to
conclude on the going concern basis being appropriate given existing facilities the Group expects to refinance its current
facility during the financial year ending 31 December 2023,
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Going concern continued

At 31 December 2022 the Croup's net debt was £37 0 million, increasing from £32.9 million at 31 December 2021 In addition

to cash and cash equivalents of £12.3 million on hand as at 31 December 2022, approximately £10.5 miltion of the Group's
£60.0 million revolving credit facility is undrawn with an additional £25.0 million accordion option available, subject to Coing
concern continued covenant compliance. The facility is subject 1o two covenants, which are tested quarterfy, adjusted leverage
w adjusted EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA o net finance charges.

In March 2022, the Group agreed with the lenders to defer the tapering of the adjusted net leverage covenant from 2.50:1 00
to 2.00:1.00, which was due to commence in the guarter ending 31 Decernber 2022 for twelve months to 31 December 2023 to
align with the extension of the facility compieted in September 2021.

Furtherrmore, subsequent to the year end, the Group agreed with its banking partners in February 2023 a resetting of the adjusted
leverage covenant for quarters ending 331 March 2023 through to 30 June 2024, significantly increasing the headroom available to
the Group from a covenant perspective through a period in which the Group expects to make material contingent consideration
payments, while facilitating the acceleration of growth within the Optimisation Division.

The Direcrors believe that the Croup is well placed 16 manage its business risks and, after making enquiries including a review of
forecasts and scenarios, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performances in the next twelve months and
considering the available liguidity, including banking facilities, have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to comtinue in operational existence for the next twelve months following the date of approval of these financial staterments.
Therefore, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

ADINYNHIADD FIVHOJHOD

Corporate governance
The Directors are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Further information can be found on
pages 47 to 50 in the statement of corporate governance.

8oard responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall strategy and direction of the Group and for approving acquisitions and disposals,
management performance, major capitat and development expenditure, and significant financial matters. it monitars exposure
to key business risks and reviews the strategic direction of the Group, its annual budgets, its progress against those budgets
and its development programmes. The Board also considers employee issues and key appointments.

The Board has an Audit & Risk Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an ESG Performance Committee and a Nominations
Caommittee. Each Committee operates within defined terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were Sangita Shah, Richard Logan and Sarah Flannigan.
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Sangita Shah. Subsequent to the period end, Dianne Walker was appointed to the
cormmittee 1 March 2023, and Sarah Flannigan resigned from the committeg on 1 March 2023

The Remuneration Comrmittee met on three occasions in 2022, All members of the Rermuneration Cormmittee were in attendance.
The Audit & Risk Committee
The members of the Audit & Risk Committee during the year were Dianne Walker, Richard Logan and Sangita Shah.

The Audit & Risk Committee is chaired by Dianne Walker. Dianne has recent and relevant experience. She is authorised by
the Board to conduct any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires frem any employee.

The Audit & Risk Commitiee met on three occasions in 2022. All members of the Audit & Risk Committee were in attendance.

The Audit & Risk Committee has written terrns of reference, which are available on reguest, and include reviewing and monitoring:

interirm and annual reports, including consideration of the appropriateness of accounting policies;

rmaterial assurnptions and estimates adopted by management;

developments in accounting and reporting requirements;

external guditors’ plans for the year-end audit of the Group, the company and its subsidiaries;
the effectiveness of the Committee;

the performance and independence of the external auditors concluding in a recormmendation to the Board on the
reappointment of the auditors by sharehelders at the Annual General Meeting;

- non-audit fees charged by the externsl auditors; and
« the formal engagement terms entered into with the external suditors.

The Audit & Risk Comnmittee is als0 responsible for ensuring that risk managernent and the related controls in place have been
effective during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Group Directors' report continued

The Audit & Risk Committee continued

At the invitation of the Committee, meetings may be attended by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the
Chief Commercial Officer. Representatives of the external auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, also attend certain meetings during the
year. The Chair of the Committee also meots aoparately with the external auditors. Under its Lerms of reference, the Audit &
Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring the independence, abjectivity and performance of the external suditors and for
making a recommendation to the Board regarding the appointment of externai auditors on an annual basis.

The auditers have confirmed to the Committee that in relation to their services to the company they comply with LUK reguiatory
and professional requirements, including Ethical Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board, and that the¥r objectivity

is not compromised.

The auditors are required each year to confirm in writing that they have complied with the independence rules of their profession
and regulations governing independence. Before RSM UK Audit LLP take on any engagement for other services from the company,
careful consideration is given as to whether the project could conflict with their role as auditors or impair their independence.

Responsihilities nf the Committec also include cversiglil of Lhe Group's risk management processes and reviews of the
scope and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls {systems
established by management to identify, assess, manage and menitor key risks).

The ESG Performance Committee

The members of the ESG Committee during the year were Sarah Flannigan, Richard Logan, Sangita Shah and Dianne Walker.
The ESG Committee is Chared by Sarah Flannigan. Subsequert to the period end, Sangita Shah was appointed Chair to the
committee 1 March 2023, ang Sarah Flannigan resigned from the committee on Y March 2023,

The ESG Committee met on one occasion in 2022, Al members of the ESG Cormimittee were in attendance.
Substantial shareholdings

At 14 February 2023, notification had been received of the following interests which exceed a 3% interest in the issued share
capital of the Group, in addition to those of the Directors referred to on page 74.

Number of

shares %
Cresham House Asset Management 289774075 2872
Fidelity international 87612941 8597
Slater Investiments 80,834303 8.28
Premier Miton Investors 74,605,505 764
Regent Gas Holdings Limited 72687101 745
Chelverton Asset Manageament 57,050,000 584
Otus Capital Management 56,549,010 579
Tellworth Investments 42,643,580 4 37
Lombard Cdier Investmeant Manager 34)71,389 3.50

Approach to risk

Risk is an accepted part of doing business. The real challenge for any business is to identify the principal risks and to develop
and monitor appropriate controls. A successful risk management process balances risk and reward and relies on a sound
judgement of the'r likelihood and consequence. The principai risks identified by the Executive management were reviewed
by the Board of Directors and the Audit & Risk Cormmittee.

Financial risk management
The Croup uses various financial instruments, which include loans, cash and other items such as trade receivabies and trade payables
that arise direcily from its operations. The main purpose of these financiat instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group to a number of financial risks. These include liguidity risk, credit risk
and interest rate risk. The Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity 1s available te meet foreseeable needs, by the use

of bank facilities and loans, and to invest cash assets safely and profitably.

Credit risk

The Group's trade receivables relate to amounts owed by UK and ROI corporate businesses, public sector organisations and

energy suppliers. Given the size and stability of the core receivables, the Directors do not believe that credit risk 1o the Group
ig significant. However, the Directors monitor any default risk on an ongeing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group has sought to manage its interest rate risk by undertaking an interest rate swap. A GBP {£) interest rate swap is
against three-month SCNIA to cover £7.3 million of its total indebtedness at an interest rate of 1.39% for the term of the loan.
This interest rate swap was entered into following the refinancing in September 2018
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Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk continued

The Group continues to assess the correct hedging position for its debt facility The Croup does not adopt the principles of
hedge accounting.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, the Directors' report and the financial staterments in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors te prepare Group and company financial statements for each financial year The Directors
have elected under company law and the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange to prepare the Group financial staternents in
accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and have elected under company law to prepare the company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdomn Accounting
Standards and applicable jaw).

Ihe Group and company finandcial staternents are required by law and UK-adopted International Accounting Standards to present
fairly the financial position of the Group and the company and the financial performance of the Group and the company. The
Companies Act 2006 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financiat
statements giving 2 true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and company financial statements, the DRirectors are required to:

a. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistenthy;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

c. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards; and
d

prepare the fimancial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropnate to presume that the Group and the
cormpany will continue in business.
The Directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonabie accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Inspired PLC website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financtal staterments may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Section 172 statement

Detail of engagement with shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers, and others in a business relationship with the company
can be found in each of the ten points of the QCA code within the Corporate governance statement on pages 47 to 50 and in the
ESG Performance Summary on pages 62 tc 73

Directors’ liability insurance
The Group maintains lizbility insurance for the Directors and officers of all Group companies. The Directors and officers have
also been granted a qualifying third provision under section 236 of the Companies Act 2006. Neither the Group's indemnity
nor insurance providers cover in the everit that a Director or officer is proved to have acted fravduiently or dishonestly.

Post-balance sheet event
Details of post-balance sheet events can be found in note 29 on page 122.

Auditors
RSM UK Audit ELP, having expressed their willingness to continue in office, will be proposed for reappointment for the next
financial year, at the AGM, in accordance with section 483 of the Companies Act 2006.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)
The Group's SECR report can be found on pages 67 tc 69.

On behalif of the Board
DocuSigned by:

igkinsan
Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2023
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FI;IAN'CIAL STATEMENTS
Independent auditors’ report-
To the members of Inspired PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Inspired PLC (the “parent company™} and i1s subsidiaries (the “Group') for the

year ended 31 Decernber 2022 which comprise the Group statement of cormnprehensive income, Group statement of financial
position, Group statement of changes i equily, Group statement of cash tlows, company statement of financial position, ’
company statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies The
financial reporting frarmewerk that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and _
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdorm Accounting Standards, inciuding Financial
Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In ocur opinion:

- the financial staternents give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent cermpany’s affairs as at
31 Decernber 2022 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statermenits Lave been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards, '

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirerments of the Cormpanies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {15As {UK)) and applicable law Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiemt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Surmmmary of cur audit appreach

Key audit matters Group
- Revenue recognition and accrued income.

No key audit matters are identified with respect to the parent company

Materiality Group
. Overall materiality: £834,000 (2021 £618,000)

« Performance materiality: £625,000 (2021: £377,000)

Parent company
« Qverall materiality: £250,000 (2021: £617,000)

« Performance materiality: £187,000 (2021: £462,000)

Scope Our audit procedures covered 96% of revenue, 85% of total assets and 89%
of EBITDA.

Key audit matters -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Group
and parent company financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstaterment [whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which hac the greatest effect on the overall audit
strategy. the atlocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Group and parent cormpany financial statements as a whole, and in forming
cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters )
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Key audit matters continued

Revenue recognition and accrued income

Key audit matter description (Refer to note 2.3 for detaifs of the Group's revenue recognition policies and
note 2.3 for detoils of the value and measurernent of occrued income at
the yeor-end)

The Group earns revenues from a range of customers and contractual
arrangerments and there are inherent complexities in the application of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Custormners as a result, Due to the nature of
the biling patterns in the business the value of accrued income at the year

__end is significant.

There is a risk that the accrued income may not be appropriately recngnised
due to inaccuracies in its calculation or because the recoverability of the
accrued income has not been sufficiently and appropriately assessed.

SLNIWILVYLS TVIDNYNIA

How the matter was addressed in the audit The Group's revenue recegnition policies were reviewed and compared
to the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to
consider whether they were appropriate based on the nature of contractual
arrangements in the Group. The measurement of revenue based on these
policies was tested through a combination of data analytics and substantive
tests of detail. Management were challenged on whether the revenue
recognition pelicies applied by the Group remained appropriate.

The cut-offof revenue recognised in the year was considered by selecting

a sample of sales transactions pre and post year end and obtaining evidence
for when the service was performed or goods delivered, to compare this to
the period in which the revenue was recognised, 1o test whether this was

in accordance with the revenue recognition palicy of the Group.

In respect of accrued income balances, our testing included substantive
tesis of detail performed on a sample basis. Custorner contracts were
obtained and contract information was scrutinised to determine whether
the year-end balance was measured appropristely. A sample of post-year-
end cash receipts were scrutinised to evidence the existence and valuation
of accrued Income.

Qur application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain thresholds which hetp us to determine the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of misstatements, both individuaily and on the financial
statements as a whole, could reasonably influence the economic decisions of the users we take inte account the qualitative
nature and the size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Group Parent company

Overall materiality £834,000 (2021; £618,000) £250,000 {2021: £617.000)
Basis for determining overall materiality 4% of adjusted £BITDA 2% of total assets
Rationale for benchmark applied Adjusted EBITDA is considered Totak assets are considered the
the key metric for the Group as key metric as this is a non-trading
it is indicative of the underlying holding company with investments
profitability and growth of in its trading subsidiaries.
the business.
Performance materiality - £625,000 (2021 £377,000) £187,000 (2021 £462,000)
Basis for determining 75% of overall materiality 75% of overall materiality
performance materiality
Reporting of misstatements to Misstaternents in excess of £41700 Misstaternents in excess of £12,500
the Audit & Risk Committee and misstatements below that and misstatements below that
threshold that, in our view, warranted threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds, reporting cn qualitative grounds,
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FINANCiAL STATEMENTS
Independent auditors’ report contmued

To the members of Inspired PLC

An overview of the scope of our audit
The Group consists of 31 components, all of whieh are based in the UK with the exception of ore entity located within the
Republic of (reland.

The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was,

Revenue Total assets Adjusted EBITDA

i K,

® Fullscope
® Analytical procedures

Full scope audits were performed for six components and analytical procedures at Group-level for the remaining 25 components.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and parent

company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

« consideration of management’s assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for at |east twelve months
after the date of approval of the financial staternents;

+ assessrnent of the available financing facilities including nature of faciiities and forecast and historic compliance

with covenants;

consideration of gvailable headroom provided by existing funding facitities and the Group’s ability to comply with

financial covenants;

review of the mathematical integrity and accuracy and appropriateness of the modet used to prepare the assessment;

assessment and challenge of the assumptions used in the forecasts:

- assessment of the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management;

- censideration of management's sensitivity analysis; and

= assessment of the disclosures made within the fingncial statements.

Based on the work we have perfermed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent company's ability to continue as a gaing
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherW|se explicitly stated in our report,
we gdo not express any form of assurance conclusion thereen.

Cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears 10 be
materially misstated. if we identify such material Inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required ta
determine whether this gives rise to 2 material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the waork
we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a material misstatermnent of this other infosmation, we are required 1o repart
that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

+ the information given in the strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial slalenients; and

« the strategic report and the Directors report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Croup and the parent company and their envircnment obtained

in the caurse of the audit, we have not identified material misstaterments in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 200€ requires us to

report 1o you if, in our opinion: .

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

SINIWALYIS IVIDINVNIL

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the infoermation and explanations we require for cur audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fuily in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 77 the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determing is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from materialt misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Croup's and the parent company’s abitity
to continue as a gqoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relsted to going concern and using the going concern Hasis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objactives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that incfudes aur opinion. Reasonable assurance
is @ high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will aiways detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregutarities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination

of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures 1o help identify instances of
non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial staterents, and to respond
appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations identified during the audit.

in relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are 1o identify and assess the risk of material misstaterent of the financial
statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement
due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected
fraud idenufied during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of managernent, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud.
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FINANéIAL STATEMENTS
independent auditors’ report continued

To the members of Inspired PLC

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud continued
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstaterment in respect of irregularities, including fraud, we.
« obtained an understanding of the nature of the industry and sector, including the legal and regulatory framewaorks that
the Group and parent company aperates in and baw the Group and parent company are complying with the legal and
regulatory frameworks;

- inquired of managernent, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and assessment of the nsks
of irregularities. including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of fraud; and

+ discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur, including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.

The most significant laws and regulations were determined as foliows:

Legislation/regulation Additional audit procedures performed by the audit engagement team included:

IFRS, FRS 10t and the Review of the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation.

Companies Act 2006 Completion of disclosure checklists to identify areas of non-compliance.

The areas that we identified as being susceptible to material missiatement due to fraud were:

Avudit procedures performed by the audit engagement team:

Revenue recoghition Transactions posted to nominal ledger codes outside of the normal revenue cycle were identified
using a data analytic tool and investigated.

Testing a sampile of sales recorded in the year and corroborating to underlying sales
docurmentation and cash receipt.

Testing the cut-off of revenue recognised in the year was considered by selecting a sample of
revenue transactions pre and post year end and obtaining evidence for when the service was
performed or goods delivered, to compare this 1o the period inwhich the revenue was recognised,
to test whether this was in accordance with the revenue recognition policy of the Group.

Management override Testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments.

of controls Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative

of a2 potential bias.
Evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the
normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: http:/Awww fre org ukfaudiiorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 1o the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state Lo the company’s members those matters we are reguired
to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assurne responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinions we have formed.
DocuSigned by:

Hastar Mdtall
thindehnRichard Nuttall

Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
3 Hardman Street
Manchester
M3 3HF

28 March 2023
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Group statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2022 '

4 0Pp

Diluted {loss)/fearnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the cormpany (pence)

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Revenue & B8,77€ 5794
Cost of sales {31,070} (17.242)
Gross profit 57,706 50,692
Administrative expenses (58,524} (47,823}
Analysed as:
Adjusted EBITDA 21,000 19,791
Exceptional costs 4 {2.087) (2,318)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 4 {10,938) {4,735}
Depreciation, impairment and ioss on disposal on property, plant and equipment n12 n,827) {1,870}
Amortsation of acquired intangible assets 3 (2,687) {4,415)
Amortisation and impairment of internally generated intangible assets 13 (2,539} (2.554)
$Share-based payment cost 24 (1,732) 1.03Q)
Dperating floss)/profit {818) 2,869
Finance expenditure S (3.148) +.860)
Other financial items 9 108
{Loss)/profit befare income tax 4 (3,957) 114
Incorne tax charge 9 329 524
{Loss)/profit for the year (3.628) 1,628
Attributable to:
Equity owners of the cormpany {3.628) 1638
Other comprehensive income:
tems that may be reclassified subsequentty to profit or loss:
Moverment in deferred 1ax asset as a result of change in fair value of share options (1,.323) —
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations n9 {753)
Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year (1,204) {753)
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year (4,B32) B85
Attributable to
Equity owners of the company [4,6832) 885
{Bas:c {losslfearnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company (pence) 10 (0.37) o7
n (0.37) 016

The notes on pages 87 to 126 form part of these financial staterments. All items relate to continuing operations.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Group statement of financial position

At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £CG00 EQOQ
ASSETS
Nun-currernL gssets
Investrnents 14 1.737 1,461
Coodwill ' 13 76,960 Tem
Other intangible assets 13 17,76 18,291
Property, plant and equipment n 3,216 2,452
Right of use assets 12 1,428 2180
Non-current assets 1,057 100,495
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 37,520 32,440
Deferred contingent consideration 7 1,077 4,529
Invemtories (=] 21 300
Cash and cash equivalents 15 12,270 12944
Current assets 5078 51,221
Total assets 152,135 151716
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and oiher payables 18 17,079 12,315
Lease jiabilities 2 869 860
Centingent consideration 22 13,056 14,586
Current tax liability 3.091 1823
Current tax liability 34,095 29,584
Current liabilities 33,4865 29,584
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 21 49,462 45,847
Lease liakilities 12 552 993
Contingent consideration 22 5699 765
Derivative financial liability ry 17 25
Deferred tax liability 20 1,282 1,522
Non-cyrrent liabilities 57,012 55,552
Total liabilities 9107 85136
Net assets 61,028 66,580
EQUITY .
Share capital 23 1,220 1,219
Share premium account 23 60,930 60923
Merger relief reserve 23 20,995 20995
Share-based paymemnt reserve am 6,379
Retained earnings 18.447) {M.036)
Investment in own shares {36) (36}
Tranglation reserve (362) {481)
Reverse acquisition reserve m,383) M,383)
61,028 66,580

Total equity

The financial staternents were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and were signed

on ity behalf by: ‘ ]
DocuSigned by: Y DocuSigned by;

fekinson SR peC -
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company registration number; 07639760.
The notes on pages 87 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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Group statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Share Merger Share-based Investrment Reverse Total

Share premium relief payment Retained in own Translation acquisition sharehalders’ g
capital account reserve reaserve @armings shares reserve reserve equity P>
E£000 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000 €000 EDOOD £000 %
Balance at 1January 2021 1,202 67,000 20,995 5349 (10,418) {6.742) 272 (11,383} 66,275 E
Profit for the year — — — — 1638 — — — 1638 _;4’
Other comprehensive expense o =
for the year ‘ — — — — — — (753) — (753 3%
Total comprehensive incorme/ ) 5
{expense) for the year — — — — 1638 — [753) — 885
Share-based payment cost — — — 1,030 — — — — 1,030
Shares issued (8 April 2021) 13 376 — —_ - —_ — — 389
Shares issuwed (22 June 2021) 1 N4 — — — — — —_ ns
Shares issued (28 July 2027) 1 62 — - - —_ a— —_ 63
Shares issued {15 September 2027} 1 53 — — — — — — 54
Shares issued {21 December 2021} 1 12 — — — — — — 13
Shares issued to EBT —  (6.694) — = — 6706 — — 12
Dividends paid — — — —  [2.25@) — — - (2.256)
Total transactions with owners 7 (6.077) — 1,030 [618) 6,706 (753) — 305
Balance at 31 December 2021 1,212 60,923 20995 6,379 (11,03§) (36) {481) 1,383} 66,580
Loss for the year — —_ — — {3628) — — — (2,628)
Other cormprehensive income for
the year — — — — 0,323 — 139 — (1,204}
Total carnprehensive income/
(expense) for the year - — — —  [&95)) — n9 — (4.832)
Share-based payment cost — — — 1732 — - — — 1732
Shares issued {12 April 2022} — 7 — — -— - — — 7
Shares issued (7 December 2022} 1 — — — —_ — — — 1
Dividends paid — - - —  [2460) - —_ - (2,460)
Total transactions with owners 1 7 — 1732 {7411 —_ na —_ {5,552)
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,220 60,930 20,995 am (18,447) {36) (362) ({1,383} 61,028

Merger relief reserve

The merger relief reserve represents the prermium arising on shares issued as part or full consideration for acquisitions, where
advantage has been taken of the provisions of section 612 of the Companies Act 2006

Reverse acquisition reserve

The reverse acquisition reserve relates to the reverse acquisition between Inspired Energy Solutions Limited and Inspired PLC
on 28 Novermnber 2011 and arises on consolidation.

Transiation reserve

The translation reserve comprises translation differences arising from the translation of the financial staterments of the Group's
foreign entities into GBP (£).

Share-based'payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve is a reserve 1o recognise those amounts in equity in respect of share-based payments.

Investment in own shares equates to 29,115,000 {2021: 29,115,000) shares.

The notes on pages 87 to 126 form part of these financial statements.

* During 202), the valuation of the investments in own shares was reassessed and revised to the nominal value of the shares held. This resulted
in a transfer of £6,694,000 from share premium to investrment in own shares, There is no impact upon total equity as a result of this transfer

between reserves
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Croup statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 202t

£000 ECDD
Cash flows from operating activities .
[Lossi/profit before income tax {3.957) 14
Adjustments
Cepreciation and impairment 1,827 1.870
Amortisation and impairment 5,226 6,968
Share-based payment cost 1,732 1,030
Finance expenditure: 3139 1755
Exchange rate variances 153 266
Change in fair vaiue of contingent consideration ‘ 10,936 4735
Cash flows before changes in working capital ' 19,054 17,739
Movement in working capital
Decreasef(increase) in inventories 88 n80)
Increase in trade and other recejvables (3,995) {9,841)
Decrease in trade and other payables 4,602 185
Cash generated from operations 19,749 7903
Income taxes paid {421 (BED)
Net cash flows from operating activities 19,328 7034
Cash flows from investing activities
Contingent consideration paic {10,790} 1,086}
Acguisition of subsidiaries and investmenis, net of cash acquired (note 25) {1,233) (7.268)
Disposal of investments 324 —
Repayment/(provision} of working capital facility to discontinued operation 375 (500}
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment {1137) {998)
Payments to acquire intangible assets {4,851) {5,866}
Net cash outflows from investing activities 17Nz 15,718}
Cash flows from financing activities
New bank loans 3,500 -_—
Proceeds from issue of new shares 8 645
Interest paid on financing activites (3.032) {2,069)
Repayment of lease liabilities (1,048) {1.443)
Dividends paid [2,460) (2,256)
Net cash outflows from financing activities ‘ (3.032) (5.123)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 816) (13,807
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward : 12,994 26,884
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents 92 (8%)
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 12,270 12994

The notes on pages 87 to 126 forrm part of these financial statements,
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1. General information

Inspired PLC (the “company”) and its subsidiaries [together, the "Group” or “Inspired”) provide energy consultancy services
to corporate business energy users. Through optimising energy procurement strategies, Inspired enables clients to achieve
greater certainty or cost efficiency in respect of their energy costs. Inspired PLC is limited by shares. The address of its
registered ottice and principal place of business is 29 Progress Business Park, Orders Lane, Kirkharn, Lancashire PR4 2TZ.

Inspired PLC is a company registered and domiciled in England and Wales.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these Group financial statements are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparaticn

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Cormnpanies Act 2006 and UK adopted International
Accounting Standards. They have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention excegt for certain
financial instruments measured at fair value.

The Group has taken advantage of the audit exemption for 18 of its subsidiaries, independent Utilities Limited {company
number 05658810, LS! Independent Utility Brokers Limited (04072919}, Energy Tearm {UK} Limited {06285279), Energy Teamn
{Midlands) Ltd [02913377), Waterwatch UK Limited (08854844), Inspired Energy EBT Limited {1080750%, Energy Broker
Solutions Limited (07355726), Flexible Energy Management Lirmited (10264309}, Inspired 4U Limited (08895206), Squarecne
Enterprises Limited [05261796), Energy Cost Management Limited [(03377082), STC Energy Management Limited (03094427),
Professional Cost Management Group Limited (06511368}, Energy and Carbon Management Limited (05498141), inprova Energy
Limited {04729586), General Energy Management Limited {07236859), |-Prophets Compliance Limited {04194486) and
Digital Energy Limited (07369818} by virtue of $479A of the Companies Act 2006, The Group has provided parent guarantees
to these 18 subsidiaries which have taken advantage of the exemption from audit.

Going concern

For the purposes of assessing the appropriateness of preparing the Group's accounts on a going concern basis, the Directors
have considered the current cash position, available banking facilities and the Group's base case financial forecast through to
31 Decemnber 2024, including the ability to adhere to banking covenants.

The Directors believe the Group has a strong balance sheet position, having refinanced its banking facilities in October 2019
through to October 2023. Furthermeore, on entering the currem facitity agreerment with Santander and Bank of lreland in
October 2019, the Group had an option to extend the term of the facility from October 2023 to October 2024. The Group
exercised that option in September 20721, taking the terrm of the existing facility to Cctober 2024, Whilst a refinancing is not
required in order to conclude on the going concern basis being appropriate given existing facilities the Group expectsto
refinance its current facility during the financial year ending 31 December 2023. -

At 31 December 2022 the Group's net debt was £37.2 million, increasing from £32.9 million at 31 December 2021 In addition
to cash and cash equivalents of £12.3 million on hand as at 31 December 2022, approximately £10.5 million of the Group’s
£60.0 milhan revolving credit facility is undrawn with an additional £25.0 million accordion option available, subject to
covenant compliance. The facility is subject to two covenants, which are tested quarterly: adjusted leverage 1o adjusted
EBITDA and adjusted EB!TDA 10 net finance charges.

In March 2022, the Group agreed with the lenders to defer the tapering of the adjusted net leverage covenant from 2.5G1.00
10 2.001.00, which was due to commence in the guarter ending 31 Decermber 2022 for twelve months to 31 December 2023 to
align with the extension of the facility completed in September 202).

Furthermore, subsequent & the year end, the Group agreed with its banking partners in March 2023 a resetting of the adjusted
leverage covenant for quarters ending 31 March 2023 through tae 30 June 2024, significantly increasing the headroom available to
the Group from a covenant perspective through a period in which the Group expects to make material contingent consideration
payrnents, while facilitating the acceleration of growth within the Optirmisation Divislon.

The Directors believe that the Group is well placed 1o manage its business risks and, after making enguiries including a review
of forecasts and scenarios, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performances in the next twelve months
and considering the available liquidity, including banking facilities, have a reasonable expectation that the Croup has adeguate
resources to continue in Operational existence for the next twelve months following the date of approval of these financial
statements. Therefore, the Directors continue to adept the going concern basis of sccounting in preparing the

financial staterments.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued -~

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.1 Basis of preparation continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The frllwaing arg the key 055umPtions cuniceniing thie Tulure, ana othies, key sources of estimation uncertainty at the staternent
of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. ltem (vi} is considered a critical judgement:

i Goodwili impairment

The Group assesses whether goodwill arising on acquisitions is impaired on at least an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount’ — the higher of ‘value in use’ and fair value less costs to sell - of the seven cash generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating 8 value in use amount requires the Directors to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitabie discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows {see note 13). The actual cash flows may be different from the Directors’ estimates, which
could impact the carrying value of the goodwill and, therefore, operating results, negatively. However, stringently conservative
estimates were applied to revenue growth slong with a range of pre-tax discount rates, up 10 15.0%, and no impairment was
noted at any level. The value of goodwill at 31 December 2022 is £76,960,000 (202): £761M,000).

ii. Share-based incentive arrangements

Share-based incentive arrangements are provided to management and certain employees. In addition to share options

granted under the Inspired PLC Share Option Scheme 20T, the Group implemented a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) in
July 2017, with awards to date made in July 2017 and May and December 2018. The price to be paid for any awards under

the scheme depends on the share price of the options available to the recipient.

Graded vesting is applicable for some options. Management has to exercise judgement over the likely exercise period, the
expected number of individuals who will leave the company such that their incentives do not vest and also the probability of
the Group achieving earnings targets upon which otherwise the options would not vest. These items involve a large degree
of estimation and actual results may differ. The charge recognised in the current year in respect of these arrangements is
£€1,732.000 (2021 £1,030,000].

ifi. Intangible assets acquired

On acquisition, specific intangible assets ate identified and recognised separately from goodwill and then amortised over
their estimated useful lives. An external expert is engaged to assist with the identification of the intangible assets and their
estimated useful lives. These include iterns such as brand names and customer lists, te which value is first attributed at the
time of acquisition. The capilalisation of these assets and the related amortisation charges are based on judgements about
the value and econamic life of such items.

The econormic lives for customer relationships, contracts, databases and computer software are estimated at between two
and five years. The economi¢ life of trade names included within acquisition intangibles is estimated at 20 years. The value
of intangible assets, excluding goodwill, at 31 December 2022 is £17,716,000 (2021: £18,291,000).

iv. Contingent consideration payable

An elernent of consideration relating 1o five of the business acquisitions made is contingent on the future revenue/EBITDA
targets being achieved by the acquired businesses. On acquisition, estimates are madle of the expected future revenue/EBITDA
based on forecasts prepared by management. These estimates are reassessed at each reporting date and adjustrments are
made where necessary. Amaounts of contingent consideration payable after one year are discounted. The carrying value of
cortingent consideration, after discounting, at 31 December 2022 is £18,755,000 [2021: £21,751,000}. The estimated undiscounted
consigeration payable is £20,045,000, producing an increase of £1,290,000 of increased liability as at 31 December 2022.

It is reasonably possibie, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next 12 months that are different from the
assumption could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability. In all cases, the entity discloses the
nature and carrying amount of the liability.

Any gain or loss on fair value movernent of contingent consideration is treated as an exceptional itern.

v. Contingent consideration receivable

Contingent consideration receivable relating to the disposal of Energisave Cnline Limited, KWH Consulting Limited and Simply
Business Energy Limited (“SME division”) is contingent on the payment of the collection and run-off of the SME division's estimated
accrued income balance at time of disposal. These estimates are reassessed at each reporting date and adjustments are made
where necessary. Amounts of contingent consideration receivable after one year are discounted. The carrying value of contingent
consideration receivable, after discounting, at 31 December 2022 is £1.077.000 {2021: £4,529,000). The estimated undiscounted
consideration receivable is £1125,000, preducing an increase of £48,000 of increased asset as at 31 Decemnber 2022.

Any gain or loss on revaluation of contingent consideration is treated as an exceptional item.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.1 Basis of preparation continued

vi. Revenue recognition - Assurance Division

When asspssing the measurs nenik ol progress towards cormilele satisfaction of the pertormance obligation of the corporate
sector revenue within the Assurance Division, management deemed that the input method best depicted the transfer of the
services tG the customer.

After thorough assessment of the Group's costs-to-serve model, consideration of tendering costs and costs to obtain a contract
that do not contribute to the Group's progress in satisfying the performance and additionai services provided over the life of
a corporale sector contract, management judged that recognition of 10% (2021 10%) of the expected full contract value at the
tirme the contract starts was suitable recognition of the proportion of time spent on the contract relative to the total expected
inputs 1o the complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. If the initial recognition percentage changed by 1%, this
would have an £83,000 impact 16 revenue. The timing of satisfaction of this performance obligation is considered to be

a significant judgement by management.

vii. Useful fife of internally developed software

The Group reviews the useful life of internally developed software at each reporting date. Performing this review reguires
management to assess the existing use of the software. and make judgements surrounding future usage, taking into account
expected competitor actions, technological innovations and industry developments. The useful life of an asset should reflect
the period over which the Group expects to consume the benefits associated with the capitalised expenditure. A shorter
useful life accelerates this consumption and leads to a greater charge through profit or loss over fewer accounting periods
Conversely, a longer useful life spreads the amorusation expense over a larger number of accounting periods.

The Group's internally developed proprietary software underpins the delivery of Assurance, Optimisation and £5G Services
of the Group, in addition to generating a Saa$s revenue through making this software avaitable to third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the estimate of the useful economic lives of the developed software was increased
up to seven years. In making this assessment, Management noted the following:

+ the Group's core software platform is still in use after five years;

- the cycle for planned replacement of retirement of developed software supports a useful Iife of up to seven years;

« there is a consistent and stable market demand for the product's existing capability,

+ there is relative stability in the industry from a technology innovation perspective, and

+ the Group's investment in propriety software provides a sustained competitive advantage in the market.

The change in estirmate has been accounted for prospectively, by adjusting the amoriisation expense for the current and
future periods. The impact of the change in estimate in 2022 is a £0.2 millon reduction In the amortisation charge in the
period. It is not possible to estimate the impact of the change on future perteds at this time.

Key judgements

L Investments

The carrying value of investments is shown at cost less provision for impairment in value.

2.2 Basis of consolidation and business combinations

The Group’s financial statements consolidate those of the parent company and ail of its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2022.
The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, 10 variabie returns from iis involvement with the subsidiary

and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. All subsidiaries have a reporting date of

31 December. These are adjusted, where appropriate, 1o conform to Group accounting policies. Acquisitions are accounted
for under the acquisition method. The results of companies acquired or disposed of are included in the Group staterent of
comprehensive income after or up 1o the date that control passes, respectively.

The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries between the owners of the non-controlling intgrests
based on their respective ownership interest.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, contingent consideration
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Costs directly attributable to the acquisition are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and lizbilities and contingent Liabilities assumed in a business combination are initially
rmeasured at fair value at the acquisition date.

Provisional fair values are adjusted against goodwill if additional information is obtained within cne year of the acquisition date
about facts ar circurmstances existing at the acquisition date.

Changes in contingent consideration arising from additional information, obtained within one year of the acquisition date,
abour facts or circurmstances that existed at the acquisition date, are recognised as an adjustment to goodwill.

All intra-Group transactions and balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

on cansolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued
2.3 Revenue recognition/cost of sales
Revenue

Revenue is comprised of fees received from customers or commissions received from energy suppliers, net of value-added tax.

To the extent that invoices are raised to a different pattern than the revenue recognition described below, appropriate
adjustments are made through deferred and accrued revenue to account for revenue when performance obligations
have been met.

Revenue is comprised of the following four segments:

Assurance revenue

The assurance Division's core services are the review, analysis and negotiation of gas and electricity contracts and hill
validation on behalf of UK ared hish clienils (Assurance revenue).

Assurance revenue is generated by way of fees received directly from customers or commissions received from energy
suppliers, largely based upon the energy usage of the customer.

Where the Group receives revenue via fees received directly from customers, this revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the contract.

where the Group recefves revenue via commissions received from energy suppliers, the Group is considered ta be the agent
and the consideration received is variable as it is dependent on the energy cansumption of the customer across the life of

the contract.

The Group subcategorises the Assurance Division into the foliowing sectors, and given the differing service offerings provided
by each, the measurement and recognition of procurement revenue should be assessed individually:

1. Industrial and commercial clients.

2. Public sector clients.

3. Mid-market clients.

industrial and commerciat and public sector clients

within these sectors, there are a number of promises made within & contract, including, but not limited to, development

of a risk managerment strategy, budgeting and forecasting, bill validation, ongoing market intelligence and ongoing account
management. The various promises made within each contract are not distinct and each of the promises made are inputs into
the combined output that each customer has contracted for, being a cost-effective energy management solution. Thus, there
is considered to be one performance obligation within each contract.

industrial and commercial and public sector clients are provided with an outsourcing arrangement that requires significant
input over the life of a contract. The customer receives the benefits of the services provided as Inspired performs, and revenue
is recognised evenly over time.

Mid-morket clients

Mid-market clients require fess input from Inspired over the life of the contract than the outsourcing arrangements provided
to industrial and commercial and public sector clients. Mid-market clients are provided with energy reviews, bill validation and
account managernent, which are implied services, over the life of a3 contract, These promises are not distinct from the promise
to provide procurement and therefore are combined into a single performance obligation.

The profile of revenue recognition, using a cost-based input method, should reftect the performance of the cormpany,

with the more labour-intensive contract negotiation being recognised up front.

After assessrment of the costs to serve a mid-market customer, we judged that an element of revenue proporticnal to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation should be recognised upon contract live date.

The revenue recognised is constrained by the proportion of the revenue that is expected to reverse over the life of the contract,
due to consumption variances and contract attrition. This amount is calculated by comparing total amount realised versus
total amount expected across all completed contracts within the portfolio.

The expected value of the contract recognised on the go-live date is 10% of the total contract value. The rermaining 90%
is recognised evenly over the life of the contract.

if the amount recognised on the go-live date changed by 1%, it would have an £83,000 impact on revenue in the current year.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.3 Revenue recognition/cost of sales continued

Optimisation revenue

Opliisalivn reve L CHCOMPBASSCS Separale wor ks corfied out for custemars, including, hur nat limired 1o, peergy aadits
infrastructure and metering services and project work. Each assignment is a separate engagement and each engagement
is a separate performance obligation,

Revenue is generated by way of fees received directly from customers and recognised as the service is provided. Each
engagement requires significant input over the life of a contract. The customer receives the benefits of the services provided
as Inspired performs, and revenue is recognised evenly over time.

Project revenue

Project revenue is generated by way of fees received directly from customers. The contract consideration is the cost of goods
transferred plus a mark-up for installation and consultancy services provided, as well as consideration for benefits to be realised by
the customer. Revenue is recognised on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the custorner of the goods and services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services promised under the contract. Progress is measured via surveys
of work completed. Where expecied revenue is in excess of billed revenue in respect of a given contract, an adjustment is made
10 recognise additional revenue and the difference between expected and billed reverue is recognised as accrued revenue within
current assets. Simikarly, where expected revenue is fess than billed revenue in respect of a given contract, an adjustment is made to
reduce revenue and the difference between expected and billed revenue is recognised as deferred reverwe within current fiabilities.

Software revenue
Software revenue comprises the provision of energy management software 1o third parties.

Revenue is generated by way of fees received directly from customers and recognised as the service is provided.

ESG revenue

ESG revenue comprises the provision of mandatory ESG gisclosures such as Strearmlined Energy end Carbon Reporting (SECR)
and Task-Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure [TCFD} reporting.

Revenue is generated by way of fees received directly from customers and recognised as the service is provided

Cost of sales
Cost of sales represents commissions paid and project cost of sales ang is recognised as follows:

Commissions

Commissions paid are expensed evenly over the life of the contact. The value of capitalised commissions as at 31 December 2022
is £2.0 million {2021 £1.7 million).

Project cost of sales

Cost of sales represents costs of goods transferred, installation and consultancy costs. AL contract inception, expected total project
costs are calculated and, in conjunction with the output method above, these costs are recognised over the life of the project.

2.4 Exceptional costs

Exceplional costs represent those casts/f{items) that are considered by the Directors to be either material in nature or
non-recurring and that require separate identification to give a true and fair view of the Group's profit/{less) for the year.
2.5 investments

fmvestrments are stated at cost, less any provision for impawment.

2.6 Goodwill |
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabiliues of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Upon the acquisition of subsidiaries, goodwill is separately recognised after recognising the fair vaiue of the separately
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually unless an indicator of impairment triggers
a review of impairment; any impairment is recognised immediately in the Group statement of comprehensive incormne and
is not subsequently reversed. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverabie amount
of the cash-generating unit te which goodwill has been allocated. This is calculated as the higher of the value in use and
the fair value less cost to sefl. The value in use calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal,
along with the net book value of assets disposed and costs incurred in the disposal process.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Croup financial statements continued

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Froperty, plant and equiprment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation
of assets is calculated using either the straight-hine or reducing balance method to ailocate their cost over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

+ Fixtures and fittings: 15--25% reducing balance

» Motor vehicles: 25% reducing balance

» Computer equipment: 25% reducing balance

+ Leasehold improvements' ten years straight line

- Office equipment; 25%.reducing balance

Material residual value estirmates are updated as required but are reviewed at least annually. Gains and losses on disposal
are determined by comparing net proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the Group statement of
comprehensive income.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 10 determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. Where an indicator exists, an impairment test is performed and the recoverable amount of the asset
of cash-generating units (CGUs) is calculated.

The recoverable amount of an asset s the higher of its fair value less costs 1o sell and its vaiue in use. Value in use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived fram an asset or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss represents the difference between the recoverable amount and the cairying value and is recognised in
the Group statement of comprehensive income whenever the canyming amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds s

recoverable amount,

2.9 Other intangible assets

Customer relationships, customer contract and databases, computer software and trade names acquired as part of a business
combination are initially measured at fair value and are amortised over their expected lives. Customer relationships and customer
contracts have both been valued using the excess earnings approach, which calculates the value as the sum of the present value
of projected cash fiow in excess of returns on contributory assets. The valuation of technology-based intangible assets is based
on both an income and cost {replacement cost) approach, whilst trade names have been valued by means of the royalty savings
{relief-from-royalty) method of income approach. Separate values are not atributed to internally generated customer and
supplier relationships

Internally developed computer software costs are recognised as intangible assets, during the development phase, provided
that they meet the foltowing criteria:

+ the development costs can be measured reliably,

« the project is technically and commercially feasible;

« the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project;
= the Group has the ability to use or sell the sofiware; and

+ the software will generate probabte future economic benefits.

Development costs not meeting these criteria are expensed as incurred. Directly attributable costs include employee
{other than Directors) costs incurred on software development along with an appropriate portion of relevent overneads.

Amortisation is calcuiated to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over the useful economic life of that
asset as follows:

+ Customer contracts — 2 1o S years straight line

» Computer software - up to 7 years straight line’

- Customer databases - 2 years straight line

« Trade name - 20 years straight line

« Customer relationships — 4 to 7 years straight line
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

210 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit/(loss) for the period. Taxable profit/{loss} differs from profit/{loss) as

repol led u; Lthe Group statement of comprehensive Nncome because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable
or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

21 Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences. Deferred tax is generally provided
on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not provided

on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a
business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax is not recognised on temporary differences associated
with shares in subsidiaries. In addition, tax losses available to be carried forward are assessed for recognition based on

their recaverability. ’

Deferied tax liabilities that are recognised are provided in full, with no discounting. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent thag it is probable that the underlying deductible temporary differences will be able to be offset against future taxable
incormne, Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected 10 apply to their respective
period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

SLINIWILVYLS TIVIONVNIL

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the Group statement of
comprehensive income, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity in which case the
related deferred tax is also charged or credited directly 1o equity.

212 Share-based payments

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payments are measured at their fair values using
a Black-5chales model. Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair vaiues of employees’ services
are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the instrument granted to the employee. This fair value is appraised
at the grant date,

Share options were previously valued by an external expert. This gave a methodology for carrying out future valuations.

If vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period based on

the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is
any indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Any cumulative agjustment
prior to vesting is recognised in the current period. No adjustment is made to any expense recognised in prior periods if share
options ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on vesting.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and
where gppropriate share premium account.

213 Leases

initial and subsequent measurement of the right of use asset

Aright of yse asset is recognised at cornmencement of the lease and initially measured at the amount of the lease liability,
plus any incremental costs obiaining the lease and any lease payments made at or before the lease asset is availabie for use
by the Groyp The right of use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The depreciation policy adopted is as follows:

Leased property - On a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life {years)
Fixtures and fittings - On a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of three to five years
nMotor vehicles - On a straight-line basis over the shorter of the tease term and the useful life of three to five years

Leases - Group as lessee

when the Group enters a contract giving them the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

a right of use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognised unless the lease qualifies as:

. short-term leases - where the lease term is twelve months or less and the Jease does not contain an option to purchase the
leased asset, lease payrnents are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, or

+ leases of |ow-value assets - for leases where the underlying asset is low value, lease payments are recognised as an expense .
on a straight-line basis cver the lease term.

_Initial and subsequent measurement of the iease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments during the lease term discounted using

the interest rate implicit in the lease or the incremental borrowing rate, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be

readily determined.

The incremental borrowing rate of 3% [2021: 3%) is the rate of interest the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar

term to fund the asset.
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FIINANCiAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued -

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

213 Leases continued

Initial and subsequent measurement of the lease liability continued

The lcase term is the non-cancellalle period of the lease plus extension peneds that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise.

Interest on the lease jiability is recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive income.

The lease liability is adjusted for changes that zlter the lease term of the lease payments. The changes in amounts payable
are recognised when the changes take effect and are discounted at the origina! discount rate. The property leases held by the
Group do not contain any variable consideration.

214 Recently issued accounting pronouncements
The foliowing new accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published
and are mandatory for the accounting period beginning on 13anuary 2023 or iater The Group has not early adopted them.

« Amendments 1o 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Fatimares {pffective 1 January 2023).
- Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosures of Accounting Policies {effective 1 January 2023).
« Amendments 1o LAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (effective 1 January 2023).

- Amendments to 1AS } Presentation of Financial Staterments: Classification of Liabilities as Current on Non-Current and
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current [effective 1 January 2024).

~ Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants {(effective from 1 January 2023).

215 Newly applicable accounting standards
The following new accounting standards were adopted for the year ended 31 December 2022, There was no matenial impact
on the financial statements.

+ Amendments to |AS 16; Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use.
« amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the conceptual framewark.
. Amendmenis to IAS 37: Onerous contracts cost of fulfilling a contract.

2.6 Financial assets

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables as well as contract assets and
recards the 10ss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial instrument.

After initial recognition, the Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Deferred contingent consideration receivables are
measured at fair value through the profit or loss as described in note 22. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. Deferred contingent consideration is measured at fair value through the profit or loss.

217 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits tagether with other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Short-term deposits are defined as deposits with an initial maturity of three months or less.

2.18 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all value of raw materials and consumables
purchased. Net reatisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable

selling expenses,

2.18 Financial liabilities

Financiat iiabilities are abligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The Group's financial liabilities comprise bank loans, an interest rate swap,
contingent congideration, trade and other payables and lease liabilities.

Financial iiabilities categorised as at fair value through profit or loss are remeasured at each reporting date at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recognised in the Croup statement of comprehensive income. Itermns within this category relate to
derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) and contingent consideratton. All other financial liabilities are recorded at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an expense in finance costin
the Group statement of comprehensive income. Amortised cost liabilities are also initially recognised at fair value.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation is extinguished, that is. when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Any gain or loss arising froem derivative financial instruments is based on changes in fair value, which is determined by direct
reference 1o agtive market transactions or using 2 valuation technigue where no active market exists.

94 Ingpired bLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 762862B9-3CCE-499B-A95F-E84ACDFB0609 ‘ . }

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.20 Foreign currency

Functional currency and presentation currency

The Individua) nnancial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic envircnment
in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the resuits and
financial position are presented in round thousand CBP (£000).

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of the individual entities {foreign currencies) are recognised at the spot rate at the date of the transactions, or at an average
rate where this rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denommated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

SANIWALYILS IVIDNYNIL

Exchanye diffeiences sre recognised in profit or joss 1n the period in which they arise. However, in the consolidated financial
statements exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the net investment in 2 foreign operation are
recognised in pther comprehensive iIncome and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Translation of Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consclidated financial staterments, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations

are translated from their functional currency to GBP {£] using the ¢losing exchange rate. Income and expenses are translated
using the average rate for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that pericd, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. £xchange differences arising on the translation of Group companies
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
opéeration and translated at the closing rate.

2.21 Employee Benefit Trust

The assets and liabilities of the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) have been included in the Group financial statements. Any sssets held
by the EBT cease to be recognised on the Group balance sheet when the assets vest unconditionally in identified beneficiaries.
The casts of purchasing own shares held by the EBT are shown as a deduction within shareholders’ equity. The proceeds from
the szle of own shares are recognised in shareholders equity. Neither the purchase nor sale of own shares leads to a gain of loss
being recognised in the income staternent.

2.22 Business combinations

Management uses valuation technigques when determining the fair values of certain assets and tiakilities acquired in a business
combination. Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acguisition date. Implied interest cost of
deferred consideration is accounted as finance cost. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

3. Segmental information

Revenue and segmental reporting

The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Group's Executive Directors. Qperating segmenis for the year to 31 December 2022
were determined on the basis of the reporting presented at regular Board meetings of the Group. The segments comprise:

Assurance Division o )
Key services provided are the review, analysis and negotiation of gas and electricity contracts on behalf of clients in the UK
and RQI. To access this market we have a professional bid response team, direct field sales team, and partnership channel.
Cptimisation Division
This division focuses on the optimisation of a client's energy consumption. Services provided include forensic audits, energy
efficiency projects and water sofutions.
Software Division
This division comprises the provision of energy management software to third parties.
ESC Division
within this division the Group manages the data collection and validation of consurmption data to provide the resources
for the creation of mandatory £SG disclosures, such as Strearnlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) and Task Force
on Climate-related Firnancial Disclosures (TCFD} reporiing.
PLC costs
This cormprises the costs of running the PLC, incorperating the cost of the Board, listing costs and other professional service
costs, such as audit, tax, legal and Group insurance.
Any charges between segments are made in ne with the Group's transfer pricing policy. These amounts have been removed,
via consolidation, for the purposes of the information shown below.
Inspired PLC
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

3. Segmental information continued
Revenue and segmental reporting continued
PLC costs continued

" 2022

Assurance Optimisation Software ESC PLC Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 EQOD £000
Revenue 35,972 47710 2,514 2,580 — 88,776
Cost of sales (3,231 {27,427) ns7) (255} — (31,070}
Gross profit 32,74 20,283 2,357 2,325 — 57,706
Administrative expenses {17,410) (10,373) (596) {2,935) {20,'57) (51,477)
EBITDA 15,331 9,910 1,761 (610} {20,157} 6,235
Ansalysed as:
Adjusted EBITDA 16177 9,979 1,768 (872) {6,352) 21,000
Share-based payment cost - — - — (1.732) 0.732)
Exceptional costs (846) (€9) {7) (38) (1137) (2,097)
Change in fair value of contingent ¢consideration —_ — —_ — (10,9386) (10,936)
15,331 9,910 1,761 (610) {20,157) 6,235
Depreciation, impairment and loss on disposal (1.827)
Amortisation and impairment {5.226)
Finance expenditure (3,148)
Other financial temns 2
Loss befare income tax {3,957)
207 .
Assurance Optimisation Software ESG pPLC Total
EQQO £000 E£000 £000 E£000 £000
Revenue 35,521 29,059 2,395 966 — 67941
Cost of sales (2.858)} {14,328} (65) — — (17.249)
Gross profit 32,665 14,731 2,330 966 - 50,692
Administrative expenses 16,407) {9,852) [608) {935) (H,182) (38,284}
EBITDA 16,258 4,879 1722 31 Ms2) n708
Analysed as:
Adjusted EBITDA 17015 4961 1770 31 [3.986) 19,791
Share-based payment cost — —_ — —_ {1,030} (1,030)
Exceptional costs (757) 82) {48) — 0,431 {2.318)
Change in fzir value of contingent consideration — — — — (4.735) {4.735)
16,258 4,879 1722 31 (11,182) n,708
-Depreciation and impairment - {1,870)
Amortisation and impairment {6.969)
Finance expenditure (1.860)
Other financial items 105

Profit befare income tax

N4

Segmental assets and liabilities are not reviewed separately by operating segment.
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4. (Loss)/profit before income tax

(Loss)/brofit before income tax is attributable to the principal activity of the Group, which is carried out entirely in the E

United Kingdom. ;
2022 20 ;_:
£000 EQ0O -

(Loss)/profit before income 1ax is stated after charging: E

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 5.226 6,969 a

Depreciation, impairment and loss on disposal: X

- owned 734 g T

- right of use assets 1,048 1054 a

Interest rate swap credit {9} ~(104)

Auditors’ remuneration:

- fees payable for the audit of the company’s annual Acconts 10 [v]

- fees payable in respect of the audit of the company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 410 33

- other non-audit services 8 2

Exceplional costs:

- fees associsted with acquisitions 523 1,038

- restrycturing costs 1,574 1,280

- change in fair value of contingent consideration 10,936 4735

13,033 7053

Exceptional costs

One-off costs include costs of £1,574 000 [2021: £1, 280,000) relating 1o restructuring prograrmmes associated with the
integration of businesses acquired in 2021 and 2022. These costs are considered by the Directors to be either material in
nature or non-recurring and therefore require separate identification to give a true and fair view of the Group's result for
the year. Fees associated with merger and acquisitions of £523,000 {2021: £1,038,000) have been incurred which would
not normally be seen as costs or income relating to the underlying principal activities of the Group. The change in fair value
of contingent consideration relates to the revaluation of contingent consideration at the balance sheet date.

The change in fair value of contingent consideration includes £7,794,000 {2021 £2960 000 relating to contingent cansideration
payable and £3,142,000 {2021 £17775,000) relating to deferred contingent consideration receivable. Further information 1s
available 1n the Chief Financial Officer’s statement.

The fair value of contingent consideration at the balance sheet date is a judgement of the contingent consideration which will
beccmie payable based on a weighted average range of petformance outcomes of the relevant acquired businesses during
the earn out period, which is subsequently discounted for the time value of money. The size of the change in the fair value

of contingent consideration in the period is representative of the ongoing economic recovery post the significant impact on
trading of COVIDA13; in effect, representing an updated view of perfermance following the improvements noted post COVID-19.

The reduction tn the expecied recovery of the deferred contingent consideration arises from the SME disposal completed
in December 2020. The reduction in expected recovery is reflective of the impact of prolonged under-consumption and site
closuras within the SME portfolio due to firstly COVID-19, and then subsequently the energy crisis.

5. Finance expenditure

2022 2021

£000 £000

Interest payable on bank borrowings 2,268 1,485
interest payable on lease liabilities 83 77
Foreign exchange variance 508 (325)
Other interest . 20 46
Loan facility fees 153 361
Amortisation of debt issue costs 16 1113
3148 1.860
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

6. Revenue

2022 200
£000 £000
Uls ‘ 85,860 64,865
RO 2,916 3076
Rendering of services 88,776 . 67941

The Group has earned revenue from one (202): zero) customer which represented more than 10% of the Group’s revenues in
the current year. The Group earned revenue of £9,720 000 from this customer,

7. Directors' remuneration

2022 2021

£000 £000

Remuneration 1.377 1m2
Pensicn contributions 3 &
1,380 e

Share-based payment 128 221
1,508 1.337

The emoluments of Directors disciosed above include the following:
In respect of the highest paid Director:

- Directors' remuneration . 525 550
- employer’s pension contributions 1 1
526 551

40 141

- share-based payments

In the current year, three Directors (2021 twe Directors) were accruing benefits under a defined contributicn pensicn scheme,

Paul Connor and David Cockshott (2021 Paul Connaer) are the only Directors to have an interest in the share options of the
campany. Bath Paul Connor and Mark Dickingon have been granted interests in an LTIP.

The emoluments of the individua! Directors can be found on page 98.

B. Employee benefit expense

2022 2021
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 28,972 28,192
Social security costs 3,367 3,208
Pension contributions 1,428 1,05
33,767 32,505
No. No.

Average number of persons (including Executive Directors} employed:
Management 48 48
Energy procurement sgrvices 506 479
Administration and finance 87 8i
641 608

The key management personnel disclosure is contained within note 27,
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9. Income tax credit
The income tax credit is based on the {loss)/profit for the year and comprises:

4 &b

2022 2021
£000 £000
Current tax
Current tax expense 2,379 1757
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1,145) 1,739)
’ 1,234 18
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences B {1,563) {542)
(1,563) (542)
Total income tax credit (329) (524)
Recanciliation of tax credit te accounting (loss)/profit:
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation {3,957) IRIEA
Tax at UK income 1ax rate of 19% (2021 19%) {752) 212
Disallowable expenses 2,490 1142
Exchange rate difference (99) m2
Share options {62B) (820)
Effects of current year events on prior yeat balances (1.145) 1.7739)
Movernent in deferred tax asset not recognised (59) 200
Adjust closing deferred tax to reflect change in tax rate —_ 645
Excess of taxation allowances over depreciation on all nan-current assets {320) —
Non-eligibile intangible assets 184 349
Total income tax credit (329} {524}

10. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is based on the net {loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders divided by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2022 2021 |
£000 £000
(Loss}/profit attributable to equity holders of the Group (3,628) 1638
Fees associated with acquisition 523 1,038
Restructuring costs 1,574 3,280
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration 10,936 4,735
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 2,687 4,415
Irnpairment of right of use asset — n3
Foreign exchange variance 508 [339)
Deferred tax in respect of amortisation of intangible assets {673) (783}
Share-based payment ¢ost 1,732 1,030
Adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Gioup 13,652 13127
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {000) 975,07 970,589
Dilutive effect of share opticns (000) 70,999 40,870
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {000) 1046070 1,011,459
Basic {loss)/earnings per share {pence) [0.37) 017
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share {pence) (0.37) 016
Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 1.40Q 135
131 1.30

Adjusted diluted earnings per share [pence)

The weighted average nurmber of shares in issue for the adjusted diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of the

share options in issue to senior staff of the Group.

Inspired PLC
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

10. Earnings per share continued .

Adjusted earnings per share represents the earnings per share, as adjusted to remove the effect of fees associated with acquisitions,
restructuring costs, the amortisation of intangible assets {excluding internally generated amortisation related to computer software
and cyvstarmer databases), deferred tax in respect of ammortisation of inLangible assers, exceptional tems and share-based payment
costs which have been expensed to the Group statement of comprehensive income in the year, the unwinding of contingent
consideration and foreign exchange variances. The adjustments to earnings per share have been disclosed to give a clear
understanding of the Group's underlying trading performance.

Adjusted profit before tax on continuing operations is calculated as follows:

2022 202

£000 E00C

[Loss)/forofit before income tax (3,957) 4
Share-based payment cost 1732 1.03C
Armartisation of arquired intangible assets 2,687 4,415
Impairment of right of use asset — n3
Foreign exchange variance 508 (339)
Exceptional costs: :
- fees associated with acquisition 523 1,038
— restructuring costs 1,574 1,280
-change in fair value of contingent consideration 10,936 4735
14,003 13,386

Acquisitional activity can significantly distort underlying financial performance from IFRS measures and therefore the Board deerns
it appropriate to report adjusted metrics as wel as IFRS measures for the benefit of primary users of the Group financial staternents.

1. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures and Motor Computer Leasehold Office
fittings vehicles equipment improvements  equipment Totat
E£0QD £000 £000C £000 E000 £000

Cost
At January 2021 937 158 2412 592 — 4,099
Acquisitions through business
combinations (note 26) — — — 222 — 222
Foreign exchange variances {4) (5) m (5) — 25)
Additions 15 — 981 2 — 998
Disposals {228) (46) {378) 3) - (657}
At 31 Decernper 2021 720 107 3,004 806 — 4637
Transfer between ciasses {368) 42 92 386 415 567
Foreign exchange variances 5 — % — — 9
Additions 8 32 1,094 - 3 1137
Disposals (3] (66) (60) — — 156}
At 31 Decernber 2022 335 ns 4334 1,192 418 6,194
Depreciation
At 1January 2021 743 70 638 326 — 1777
Charge for the year 88 4 604 120 — 816
Disposals 167} {36} (200) (5) — {408)
At 31 December 2021 664 38 1,042 441 — 2185
Transfer between classes [450) 38 281 70 293 232
Charge for the year 37 22 496 123 56 734
Foreign exchange variances 3 — 4 — {33) (28)
Disposals (30) (3) {60} (29) (25) 147)
At 3t December 2022 224 a5 1,763 605 29 2,978
Neti book value
At 31 December 2022 m 20 2,37 587 127 3,216
At 31 December 2021 13 69 1962 365 — 2,452
At 31 December 2020 194 88 1774 266 — 2,322

-loo Insprred PLC
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12. Right of use assets

Fixtures Mator %
and fittings wvehicles Property Intangibles Total >
ECOO £000 EQOO £000 £000 %
Cost r,-:
A1 3anuary 2021 450 314 3,326 — 4130 W
Acquisitions through business combinations — 4 44 — 48 g
Rermeasurement of finance lease — — (17) — 17) m
Additions 133 106 386 — 625 =
Disposals — {70 {50} _— 021 _z.
7]
At 31 December 2021 623 - 353 3689 —_ 4,665
Transfer between classes . —_ 14} [277) — [297)
Forgign exchange variances . — 1 {S) — {4
Additions — 86 360 301 747
Disposals (368) (5) 1433) — (806)
At 31 December 2022 255 421 3,334 30 4,31
Depreciation .
AL 1 January 2021 138 BG 1313 — 1,537
Charge for the year 144 ne 681 — 94)
Disposals — {56) (50) — {108)
At 31 Decemnber 2021 287 146 1944 — 2,372
Transfer between classes — 12 25 — 44
Charge for the year 87 169 742 50 1,048
Foreign exchange variances — 2) 14 — 12
Disposals (21) (22) (473) — {706}
At 31 December 2022 158 310 2,252 50 2770
Impairment
AU January 2022 — —_ n3 — 3
impairment for the year — — — -— —
At 31 December 2022 — — n3 — n3
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 Q7 w 969 25 1,428
AL 31 December 2021 341 207 1,632 — 280
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to-the Croup financial statements continued

13. Intangible assets and goodwill

Computer Customer Customer Tolak other
software Trade name contracts relationships intangibles Goodwill TFotal
EQQO £000 £000 EODO £000 £000 £000

Cost
Ar) January 2021 16,315 na 18,076 751N 42,017 863776 105793
Additions 5821 45 —— — 5,866 — 5,866
Acquisitions through
business combinations — — 3,491 - 3,49 12,494 15,285
Adjustments 10 previous
business combinations — —_ 8 — 8 - B
Disposals ] {(819) — - — 819) — (819)
Foreign exchange variances — — — — — {159) {159}
At 31 December 2021 21,377 160 21,575 7.511 50,563 76 M 126,674
Additions 4 651 — — — 4,651 — 4,651
Acquisitions through business
cembinations (note 25! — — — -— — 730 730
Foreign exchange variances —_ — — — — ns na
At 31 December 2022 25,968 160 21,575 7.51 55,214 76,960 132174
Amortisation
At1January 2021 8,829 30 13.582 3,225 25,666 — 25,666
Charge for the year 2933 7 3,214 815 6969 — 65,969
Disposaly {363) — — _ (363) —_ (363}
At 31 Decermnber 2021 1,399 37 16,796 4,040 32272 — 32272
Charge for the year 2,920 8 1,531 . 787 5226 — 5,226
Foreign exchange variances — — —_ — — - —
At 31 December 2022 14,319 45 18,327 4,807 37,498 —_ 37,498
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 1,649 ns 3,248 2,704 17,716 76,960 94,676
AL 31 December 2021 9918 123 4779 - 347 18,29 76,1M 94,402
At 31 Decermnber 2020 7486 B85 4 494 4,286 16,351 563,776 80127

Computer software is 3 combination of assets internally generated and assets acquired through busingss cembinations.
The armortisation charge in the year te 31 December 2022 associated with computer software acquired through business
combinations is £381,000 (2027: £381.000). The additional £2,533,000 (2021 £2,552,000) charged in the year relates to the
amortisation of internally generated computer software, The total amortisation charged in the year to 31 December 2022
associated with intangible assets acguired through business combinations is £2,687,000 (2021 £4,415,000). Amortisation

is charged to administrative expenses for both financial years.

The Croup's internally developed proprietary sofiware underpins the aelivery of Assurance, Optimisation and ESG Services

of the Group, in adgition to generating a Saas revenue through rnaking this software available to third partes.

During the year ended 31 Decermnber 2022, the estirmate of useful life the developed software was increased up tc seven years.
In mzking this assessment, Management noted (he following:

+ the Group's core software ptatform is still in use after five years,
. the cycle for ptanned replacement or retirement of developed software supports a useful life of up 1o seven years;

there is a consistent and stable market demand for the product's existing capability;

there is relative stability in the industry from a technology innovation perspective; and
« the Croup's investrment in proprietary software provides a sustained competitive advantage in the market.

The change in estimate has been accounted for prospectively, by adjusting the amortisation expense for the current and future
periods. The impact of the change in estimate in 2022 is a £0.9 million reduction in the amortisation charge in the pericd. It is
not possible 1o estimate the impact of the change on future periods at this time. .
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13. Intangible assets and goodwill continued

Annual test for impairment

The Group has seven CGUSs, being the Assurance Division, the Optimisation Division, the Software Division, the ESG Division,
Horizon Fnergy Cron L imited, Ignite Bnorgy LTD and Businesswise Sulutiuns L.

The goodwili resulting from the acquisitions of Direct Energy Purchasing Limited, Wholesale Power UK Limited, Flexible Energy
Management Limited, Churchcom Limited, Bluebell Energy Supply Limited, Squarecne Enterprises Limited, LS Independent
Utility Brokers Limited and General Energy Managernent Limited has been wholly allocated to the Assurance Division CGLUL
The goodwill resulting from the acquisitions of Professional Cost Management Group Limited, Waterwatch UK Limited and
Independent WUtilities Limited has been wholly allocated to the Cptimisation Division CGU.

The goodwill resulting from the acquisitions of SystemsLink 2000 Limited and Energy Broker Solutions Limited has been
wholly allocated to the Software Division CGU.

The goodwill resulting from the acquisitions of STC Energy and Carbon Holdings Limited, Energy Cost Management Limited,
Infoermed Business Solutions Limited and Inprova Finance timited has been split between the Assurance Division CGU and
the Optimisation Division CGU according to the expected revenue to be generated by these divisions in FY23.

The goodwill resulting frem the acquisitions of Digital Energy Limited and |-Prophets Compliahce Limited has been spiit
between the Assurance Division CGU and the Software Division CGU according to the expected revenue to be generated

by these divisions in FY23.

The goodwill resulting from the acquisitions of Horizon Energy Group Limited, ignite Energy LTD and Businesswise Solutions
Ltd has not been allocated as the CGU performance is monitored separately.

For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combinations in which the goodwill arises, as follows.

2022

£000

Assurance Division 25,839
Cptimisation Division 17,488
Software Division 2,851
Horizon Energy Group Limited 5,580
ighite Energy LTD 14,481
Businesswise Solutions Ltd 10,72
76,960

2021

EOOO

Assurance Division 33133
Optimisation Division 9,829
Software Division . . 2,486
Horizon Energy Group Limited 5.461
Ignite Energy LTD 14,481
Businesswise Solutions Ltd ) 1071
- : 76

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment in accordance with |AS 36 Impairment of Assets, or more frequenily if there is
indication that the goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on a vatue in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering the next five-year period. The key assumptions in the value in use
calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate and expected changes to the seiling prices, volumes and direct cests.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of each CGU's carrying value by comparing to the CGU's
value in use. With all other variables being equal, the discount rate would have 1o increase to in excess of 20% for goodwill to

be impaired. Based on the results of the current year impairment review, no impairment charges have been recognised by the
Group in the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil),

Discount rates :

The discount rate has been calculated using the capital asset pricing model {CAPM), which takes into account the required

rate of return of the asset and market risk as well as the expected return of the market. The pre-tax discount rate range of
5.0-20.0% {2021: 5.0-20.0%) is consistent with the rate of return expected by the market considering the CGU forecast cash
flow amounts, timing and risk profile
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

13. Intangible assets and goodwill continued

Cash flow assumptions

Cash flows for the six-year period to 2028 have been extrapolated assuming no further growth aside from Horizon Energy
Group Limited which assumed 7% revenue growth from 2025 to 2028. The Group considers that this is a conservative growth
rate based upeon current rates of inflation, the Group's targeted growth rates and the rate of growth that the Directors believe
to be achievable from the market. Despite adopting a conservative approach there is no indication of impairment.

The Directors do not believe that any reasonably possible changes in the value of the key assumptions noted above would
cause the CGU carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

14, Investments

Investmenis
£000

Cost/valuation
At January 2021 38
Additions 563
Ar 31 December 2021 1,461
Additions 600
Disposals . {324)
At 31 December 2022 1.737
The Group had an interest in the following entities as at 31 December 2022:
Narme of undertaking Country of registration Description of investment held
Information Prophets Limited United Kingdom Convertible lpan
Switchd Lid United Kingdom Shareholding (4.7%)
Industrial and Commercial Operations Network Ltd United Kingdom Convertible toan
Deer Technology Ltd United Kingdom Convertible ioan

The Group holds a convertible loan to acquire 25% equity value in Information Prophets Limited. The balance of the outstanding
loan at 31 December 2021 was £600.000. Furthermore, the Group holds an exclusive calt option to acquire the entire share
capital of Information Prophets Limited on a fair value measure at an agreed multiple of adjusted EBITDA. The call option period
commences in January 2022 and ends on 31 December 2025. As the option period is three years from completion of the initial
investment, the Group is deemed not to have substantive control over the investee prior to the option period commencing.
The Group holds a sharehalding in Switchd Ltd of 87790 ordinary shares of £0.000001 within the company for an aggregate
subscription price of £368,000 providing a 4.7% shareholding.

The Group holds a convertible ioan 1o acquire 25% equity value in Industrial and Cornmercial Operations Network Ltd. The balance of
the outstanding loan at 31 December 2022 was £48,000. Furthermore, the Group holds an exclusive call option to acquire the entire
share capital of Industrial and Cormmercial Operations Network Ltd on a fair value measure at an agreed mutiple of adjusted EBITDA.
The call option period commences in April 2022 and ends in April 2024, As the option period is three years from completion of the
initial investment, the Group is deemed not to have substantive control over the investee prior to the option penod cormmencing.
The Group holds a convertible loan. The balance of the outstanding loan at 31 December 2022 was £250,000. The convertible
loan note will convert into preferred ordinary shares with a 30% discount on the lower of the agreed price per share at the time or
capped at the proposed £4 7 million current pre-money valuation; either at maturity, in the event of 2 qualifying financing event
or any other event at the holder's discretion.

On 31 January 2022 the Group sold its investment in Zestec Asset Management Limited for £324,000.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 12,270 12944
12,270 12944
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16. Inventories

m
Inventories cansist of the following: z
2022 2021 ;
£000 EF000 fs’
Raw materials and consumables m 300 ;
== =
1
2 300 5
m
17. Trade and other receivables ,E.
Group Company 5
2022 2023 2022 202 w
... €000 £000 -.. ECOC £000
Trade receivables 12,298 16,492 5,296 —
Uther recervables 1,078 1,472 456 B48
Deferred contingent consideration ’ 1,077 4,529 1,077 4,529
Prepayments 5,524 3,802 820 305
Accrued income 18,620 11,682 — —
38,597 37977 7649 5682

Trade and other receivables increased 2% in The period 1o £38,597,000 (2021: £37,877.000), with invoiced trade receivables
reducing 25% to £12,228 000 {2021 £16,422,000) as a result of strong cash collection within the Optimisation Division in

H2 2022 Conversely, accrued income increased in the period 58% to £18,620,000 (2021 £11,682,000) primarily as a result of
product mix and increased activity 1@vels within the Optimisation Division in H2 2022, and the balance is unwinding in 2023
as expected.

Deferred contingent consideration relates to the coltection and run-off of the SME Division's accrued income batance

at disposal.

Contract assets within prepayments and accrued income total £4,.976,000 (2023: £1,224,000).

The Group does not hold any collatera) as security {2021: none). Group debtor days were 42 days (31 Decermnber 2021: 74 days].

The ageing of trade receivables was as follows {£000):

Q-30 31«60 61-30

days days days Oider Total
31 December 2022 4,262 2,840 1,432 3764 12,298
31 December 2021 ‘ 10951 2,169 1,592 1,780 16,492

As at 3 December 2022, £5196,000 (31 December 2021 £3,372,000) of the trade receivables had gone beyond their terms

of 60 days.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognising lifetime expected credit losses for ali trade receivables ang
accrued income as these itermns do not have a significant financing component. in measuring the expected credit losses,

the trade receivables and accrued income have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics. They have been grouped based on the days past due.

The expected credit loss is considered immaterial in the current year; therefore, no impairment loss has been recognised
{2021: £nil). The trade and other receivables are stated at armortised cost which approximates to fair value. Deferred contingent
consideration receivable is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Inspired PLC 105
Annuat Report & Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 762B6289-3CCE-499B-A85F-E84ACDFBOS0S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

18. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Current
Trade payables 5,952 4154 577 kiel}
Social security and other taxes s5N7 3,504 636 750
Accruzls 304 1,502 1,298 756
Oeferred income 1.861 1,268 —_ —
Other payables 1,008 1.887 7 138
- 17,079 12,315 2,518 1945

Trade payables are paid undsr normal commercial terms.
The trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost which approximates to fair value.
Contract hiabilities within accruals and deferred income total £2,366,000 (2021: £1,770,000).

Revenue totalling £1,268,000 has been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022 relating to amaounts included
in deferred income at the beginning of the penod {2021 £745,000).

The table below analyses the Group's financial habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period

from the staterment of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows. .
Current Non-current Total

within
&months  6~12 months 1-Syears

£000 £000 E£000 £000

31 December 2022
Trade payables 5,952 — — 5,952
Other payables 1,008 —_— — 1,008
Accruals . 3141 — —_ 3,141
Bank borrowings 1,242 1,242 51,538 54,022
Lease liabilities 497 442 608 1,547
Derivative financial liability — — 17 .17
Contingent consideration ) 11,843 1,557 6,645 20,045
23,683 3,241 58,808 85732

31 December 2021

Trade payables 4154 — — 4,154
Other payables 1,887 — — 1.887
Accruals 1,502 — — 1,502
Bank borrowings 802 802 49,058 50,662
Lease liabilities 435 504 1006 1945
Derivative financial liability — - 25 25
Contingent consideration 13,081 1959 8,269 23,309
21,861 3,265 58,358 83,484
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19. Lease liabilities

i
Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows, 7
Sroup Company ; )

2022 207 2022 2021 o

E00O £000 £000 E£000 ,-’-'

Non-current fiabilities 3

Lease liability - motor vehicies 29 95 9 34 ﬁ'

Lease liability - property 342 763 — 364 4

Lease liability - fixtures and fittings 30 135 30 s 3

Lease liability - intangibles 151 — 151 — a
552 993 200 - 533

Current liabilities

Lease liability — motor vehicies a3 n2 47 41
Lease liability - property 619 667 424 435
Lease liability — fixtures and fittings 66 81 66 73
Lease liability - intangibles 10 — 100 —
869 860 637 548

The iease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets.

The lease liability for motor vehicles covers 13 vehicles at 31 December 2022 and leases are typically two years, when they will
then terminate.

Total cash outfiaws from lease arrangements are £1,047000 {2021: £1,3392.000).
The undiscounted lease liability figure at 31 December 2022 is £1,547,000 (2021: £1945,000).

20. Deferred tax liability
Deferred taxation is calculaied at a tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) and is set out below:

Group Company
2022 202 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 E£000
Liability brought forward 1,522 1,278 — —
Credited to income for the year (240} (542} — —_
Deferred tax liability acquired through business combinations — 122 — —
Movement arising from busingss combinations — 664 — —
Liability carried forward 1,282 1522 —_ —
Group Company
2022 202 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Excess of taxation allowances over depreciation on all non-current assets 347 267 — —
Share options (592) 1.286) — —
Temporary difterences on intangible assets 1,527 2,141 —_ —
1,282 1522 — -

Corporation tax for the year ended 31 Decermber 2022 was calculated at 19% of profits for the year.

Deferred taxation at the period end is analysed as follows:

2022 2021

£000 EODOC

Deferred tax liability 1,282 1,522
’ 1,282 1,522

In the prior year the deferred tax asset periaining to unexercised share options was valued at the share price as at 31 Cecember 2021
As the share price decreased substantially in 2022 the deferred tax asset also Gegreased. As the recognition was not in the current
year, the movernent on the deferred tax asset was reversed through other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2). Bank borrowings
Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
within one year . me) ne) me) M6)
One to two years Mmej} - {116) (Me} me)
Two to five years 49,71 46104 497N 46104
49,479 45872 49,479 45,872

The figures above include debt issue.costs being amortised over the life of the borrowings, and alsc include an interest rate
swap of £17,000 (2021: £25000). In the current year borrowings total £49,694.000 with total debt issue costs being £232.000.

Ihe above facility is for the principal sum of £60,000,000 {2021 £60,000,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a cash batance of £12.3 million and cutstanding baiances on its senict term debt
facilities of £49.5 miflion.

Per the facility agreement enterad in October 2019, in calculating adjusted net leverage, net debt eguates to bank debt less
cash and cash eguivalents, plus deferred consideration of crystallised contingent consideration tiability at the test date,

As at 31 December 2022, reported net debt, being bank debt less cash and cash eguivalents, stood at £37.2 million, which
is an increase of £4.3 million in comparison to 31 December 2021,

In October 2019, the Greup entered into a new facility agreement with Santander and the Bank of Ireland m order to
refinance its borrowings and to provide further headroom to support the continued acceleration of the Group's growth and
acquisition strategy.

The facility consists of a £60.0 million revolving credit facibity, of which £49.5 million was drawn at 31 December 2022

{2021: £45.9 million), running to Cctober 2023, with the Group having an option to extend the term for a further year to
Qctober 2024, The Group exercised the option to extend the term of the faciiity in September 202), taking the term of the
existing facility to Qctober 2024. Furthermore, the facility is supplemented by a £25.0 million accordion option enatling a total
commitment of up to £85.0 million.

The facility has an interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 3.25% over SONIA, with the applicable interest rate dependent on the
adjusted net leverage of the facility in the prior guarter.

The covenants attached to the facility are interest cover, which is not to be less than 4.00:1.00 during the terrm of the facility,
and adjusted net leverage of the Group, which on entering the facility was limited to not exceed 2.751.00 and then tapers to
2.001.00 across the term of the facility. The Group has agreed with the lenders to defer the tapering of the adjusted net leverage
covenant frem 2.501 00 te 2 00:1.00, which was due to commence in the quarter ending 31 December 2022 for twelve months
to 31 December 2023 te align with the extension of the facility.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group agreed with its banking partners in March 2023 a resetting of the adjusted leverage
covenant for quarters ending 31 March 2023 through to 30 June 2024, significantly increasing the headroom available to the
Croup from a covenant perspective through a period in which the Group expects to make material contingent consideration
payments, while facilitating the acceleration of growth within the Optimisation Division.

The increase in net debt reflects a year in which the cash generation of the Group was offset by the payment of £10.8 million
of contingent cash consideration to the vendors of Ignite, BWS, LSI, ECM and GEM. As at 31 December 2022, £21.3 million of
contingent consideration is held payable to the vendors of Ignite, PCMG, LSI, GEM and BWS.
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21. Bank borrowings continued

Long-term Lease I
borrowings labilities Total §
£EQOO £000 £000 %
At January 2021 45 860 267 48,531 >
Cash flows , "
Repayment — (1.443) 443 @
Non-cash =
Additions 1o right of use asseis — 625 625 r%
Interest rate swWap revaluation [104) — {104) 3
Debt issue costs releases 16 - N6 tn
At 31 December 2021 45872 1853 47725
Cash flows
Drawdown 3,500 —_ 3,500
Interest paid {1,648) {83) 1.,731)
Repayment — (1,048) {1.048)
Non-cash
Additions to right of use assets e 615 615
Interest rate swap revaluation €3] — 9
Interest charge 1648 83 173
Debt issue costs releases e —— ne
At 3t December 2022 49,479 1,420 50,899

22. Financial instruments
The Group helds or issues financial instruments in order to achieve two main cbjectives, being:

(3} to finance its operations; and
{b} to manage its expogure to interest risk arising from its operations and from its sources of finance.

Transactions in financial instruments result in the Group assuming or transferring toc another party one or more of the financial
risks described helow.

Credit risk

The Group monitors credit risk closely and considers that its current policies of credit checks meet its objectives of managing
exposure to credit risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash eguivalents and deposits with banks, as well as ¢credit exposures
to custormers and energy suppliers, iIncluding outstanding receivables and commitied transactions. For banks, only independently
rated parties with a minimurm rating of A4 are accepted. Credit assessments are carried out when accepting new custormers.
Amounts shown in the statement of financial position best represent the maximum credit risk exposure in the event other
parties fail to perform their obligations under financial instrurnents.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its available cash resources and aims 1o keep credit funds available for operational strategic goais,
Currency risk .

The Group Monitors any foreign exchange rate risks through regular Euro trades as and when degmed necessary.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The book value of financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations is not materially different from the fair
value of those instruments

22 Capital risk management

The Group's main obkjective when managing capital is to generate returns to shareholders by investing in line with its approved
investment strategy whilst safeguarding the Group's ability to continue as a gaing concern. The Group 3iMs to Maintain a strong
credit rating and headroom whilst optimising return 1o shareholders through an appropriate balance of debt and equity funding.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it with regard to the risks inherentin the business and in
light of changes to economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Croup may in the future issue new shares, raise additional debt finance, sell assets to reduce debt, adjust the
amount of dividencs paid to shareholders or return capital to shareholders.

Capital is managed by maximising retained profits. Working capital is rmanaged in order te generate maximum conversion
of these profits into cash and cash equivalents. '

Capital includes share capital, share premiurm, merger relief reserve and retained earnings. There were no changes to the
Group's approach to capital management during the year.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

22. Financial instruments continued
22.2 Categories of financial instrument
Financial assets

Ameortised Non-financial
cost assets Yotal
£000 £000 £000
31 Decernber 2022
Inventories — n m
Trade receivables 12,298 — 12,298
Other receivables 1,078 - 1,078
Deferred contingent censideration 1,077 — 1,077
Prepayments - 7" — 5,524 5.524
Accrued income 18,620 - 18,620
Cash and cash equivalents - Sterling 11,097 — n,097
Cash and cash equivalents - Euros 1173 — 1173
Current assets 45,343 5735 51,078
N Amortised Non-financial
cost assets Total
£0Q00 £000 £000
31 December 2021
Inventories — 300 300
Trade receivables 16,492 -— 16,422
Other receivables 1472 — 1,472
Deferred contingant consideration 4,529 — 4,529
Prepayments _ 3,802 3,802
Accrued income .e82 — 1,682
Cash and cash equivalents - Sterling 9,224 — 9224
Cash and cash equivalents - Euras 3720 — 3720
Current assets 4719 4102 51,221
Financial liabilities
Cther
liabilities Fairvalue Liabilities not
{amortised through profit  within scope
cost) or loss of IFRS 9 Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2022
Trade payables 5,952 — — 5,852
Social security and other taxes — — sn7 517
Accruals 3,341 _ —_ 314
Other payables 1,008 — — 1,008
Lease liabilities 1421 - 1,421
Bank berrowings ~ Sterling 49 462 —_ —_ 49,462
Current tax liability —_ — 3,091 3,091
Contingent consideration — 18,755 — 18,755
Derivative financiatl liability — 17 — 17
60,984 18,772 8,208 87,964
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22, Finangcial instruments continued
22.2 Categories of financial instrument continued
Financial liabilities continued

Other
liabilties Fair value Liabilities not
{amortised through profit  within scope
[olel 3] or loss of IFRS 9 - Total
£000 EOQC £000 EODO
31 December 2021
Trade payables 4,154 — — 4,154
Social security and other taxes — — 3,504 3,504
Accruals ’ 1.502 — — 1,502
Other payables 1,887 — — 1.887
Lease liabilities 1,853 —_ —_ 1,853
Bank borrowings - Sterling 45,847 — — 45,847
Current tax liabifity - — 1823 1823
Contingent consideration -— 21751 -— A7
Derivative financial hability — 25 — 25
Deferred tax liability — — 1,522 1522
55,243 21776 6,849 83,868

22.3 Interest rate sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the period and equity te a reasonably possible change in intarest
rates of 3% (2021.1%) with effect from the beginning of the pericd, These changes are considered 1o be reasonably possible
based on pbservation of current market canditions. The calculations are based on the Group's borrowings and the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents held at the statement of financial position date. All other variahles are held constant.

Year ended Year ended
31 Decermber 2022 31 December 2021
+3% -3% +1% -1%
{Loss)profit for the year 108 (109) 329 (329}
Equity 109 (109} 329 (329)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities rmeasured at fair value in the staterment of financial position are grouped intc three

tevels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement,

as follows:

+ Level T quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
ar indirectly.

« Level 3 uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability. .

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at

31 December 2022 and 31 December 202):

Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Deferred contingent consideration — — 1,077 1,077
Total asgets — — 1,077 1,077
iLevell Level 2 tevel 3 Total
31 Decernbar 2021 £000 EOQD £000 £000
Financial assets
Deferred contingent consideration — — 4,529 4,529
Total assets — — 4,529 4,529
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22. Financial instruments continued

22.3 Interest rate sensitivity continued

Fair value measurement of financial instruments continued

The follnwing tatle shows the tevels wilhin Ui hierarchy of financial habihties measured at fair value on a recurnng basis at
31 Decemnber 2022 and 31 December 2021

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
interest rate swaps — 17 — 17
Contingent consideration — — 18,755 18,755
Total liabilities — 17 18,755 18,772
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 202 E00O £000 EOQO EODO
Financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps — 25 — 25
Contingent consideration e —_ 21751 2751
Tatal liabifities — 25 21751 21776

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 in 2022 or 2021,

Measurement of fair value of financial instruments

The Group's finance team per fuiins valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values,
in consultation with third party valuation specialists for complex valuations. Valuation techniques are selected based on the
characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximising the use of market-based information,

The valuation techniques used for instruments categorised in Levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Interest rote swaps (Level 2}
The Group's interest rate swap contracis are not traded in active markets. These have been fair valued using observable
interest rates correspending to the maturity of the contract, through direct confirmation from the provider of the contract.

Contingent consideration (Level 3)

The fair value of contingent considerations at 31 Decernber 2022 refated to the acquisitions of Professional Cost Management
Group Limited, Ignite Energy LTD, LS! Independent Utility Brokers Limited, General Energy Management Limited and Businesswise
Solutions Ltd and is estimated using a present value technigue. The £20,035,000 fair value is reasured by reference to the future
cash outflows. The cash outflows reflect what will become payable based on a weighted average range of performance outcomes
of the relevant acquired businesses during the earn out period, which is subsequentty discounted for the time value of meney.

The contingent consideration for Energy Cost Management Limited of £300,000 was settled in January 2022

The contingent event for Professional Cost Management Group Limited covers the pericd ending 31 December 2028. The
consideration will be an amount egual to £0.30 for every £1.00 of adjusted EBITDA in each relevant financial year and is subject
to an aggregate cap of £550,000.

The contingent event for Ignite Energy LTD comprised four earn out tranches as follows. The First Earn Out Consideration of
£2,400,000 was paid in January 2022. The Second Earn Out Consideration of up to £5,200,000 is payable as £1.50 consideration
for every £1.00 growth in EBITDA before deduction of centratl overheads from FY21 over FY18, acknowledging FY20 trading was
disrupted due to COVID-19. The Third Earn Out Consideration of up to £5,200,000 is payable as £1.50 consideration for every
£1.00 growth in EBITDA before deduction of central overheads from FY22 over FY21. The Fourth Earn Out Congideration of up
to £5,200,000 is payable as £1.50 consideration for every £1.00 growth in EBITDA before deduction of central overheads from
FY23 over FY22 Any payments due under the Second, Third and Fourth Earn Cut Consideration payments are payable in 50%
cash and 50% ordinary shares of Inspired PLC. ) )

The cantingent event for LS| Independent Utility Brokers Limited comprises three earn out tranches as follows, Of the
aggregate contingent consideration of £6,000,000, up to £1,750,000 is payable based on conversion of the order book of LS| at
completion to cash, up 10 £2,250,000 is payable as twelve months’ value of contract renewals completed within three years of
completion, and up to £2,000,000 is payable as twelve months' value of contracted new business generated within three years
of completion. .
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22. Financial instruments continued

22.3 Interest rate sensitivity continuved

Measurement of fair value of financial instruments continued

Contingent consirleration (Leve! 3) continucd

The contingent event for Ceneral Energy Management Limited comprises two tranches as follows. Of the aggregate contingent
censideratian of £500,000, the first tranche of £250,000 was settled in January 2022. The second tranche of up te £250,000 is
payable in Fv23

The contingent event for Businesswise Solutions Ltd (BWS) comprises several tranches as follows. Of the aggregate £23,000,000,
contingent consideration could become payable in cash, subject to the achievement of challenging EBITDA and order book
growth targets for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, The Group paid £5,200,000 of a maximum possible
£8,500,000 in relation to FY21 performance in April 2022. At 31 December 2022, maximum contingent consideration of up
1o £16,000,000 could be paid for performance in relation to EBITDA and order book growih targets for FY22 and Fy23.

The contingent consideration liability is included within Lhe Inspired PLC single entity and Group accounts.

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of financial instruments classified within Level 3 is as follows:
Contingent consideration

2022 2021

£000 £000
Balance as at 1January 21,751 1,939
Arising on business combinations —_ 6,279
Consideration paid (10,790) 1,086)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration (included within administrative expenses) 7,794 4619
Balance at 31 December 18,755 21751
Analysed as:
- current lizbility 13,056 14,586
- non-current liability 5,699 7165

Deferred contingent consideration (Level 3)

The deferred contingent consideration is receivable in respect of the disposal of the SME segment of the business and is
measured 2t fair value through the profit or toss. The consideration is contingent upon coltection of accrued income at the
disposal date. The fair value is estimated using a present value technique. The £1,077,000 fair value is measured by reference
to the future cash inflows. The cash inflows reflect management’s best estimate of the amount receivable and are discounted

at an appropriate rate.

23. Share capital and reserves
Group and company

Share Share Merger relief
Number of capital premium reserve
shares £000 £000 ECQO

issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 0.125p each as at 1January 2021 961,244,047 1,202 67,000 20,995
Ordinary shares of 0.125p each as at 31 December 2021 974,942,194 1,219 60,923 20,595
Ordinary shares of 0.125p each as at 31 December 2022 976,256,769 1,220 60,930 20,995

On 12 April 2022, the company issued 64,575 new ordinary shares of 10.84 pence and 16.52 pence to satisfy the exercise
of options granted under the Save As You Earn share scheme at 0.125 pence each.

On 7 Decemnber 2022, the company issued 1,250,000 new ordinary shares of 775 perice. The shares were issued to satisfy
the exercise of options granted under the Group's 201 Share Option Scheme at 0.125 pence each.

Inspired PLC 113
Annwal Report § Accounts 2022

SLN3WILYLS IVIONVYNIL



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 762B6289-3CCE-499B-A95F-ES4ACDFBO60S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

24, Share-based payments

Approved share aptions

The company has granted equity-settled share options to selected employees. The exercise price is the market value of the
shares at the dste of grant. The vesting peiiods aie between 18 months and three years. If the options remain unexercised after
a period of ten years frorn the date of grant the options expire.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2022 200
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of share price of share price
options p options p
Cutstanding at the beginning of the period 45,373,453 4.57 59,874,643 4.53
Granted during the period 33,416,250 0313 2,392,294 j[oxe]]
Expired during the period {7.649,566) 2.98 {3,895.337) 620
Exercised during the period (1,314,575} 0.93 (12298,147) 482
OCutstanding at the end of the period 69,825,562 269 45,373,453 4.57
Exercisable at the end of the period 23,859,738 524 17,217,439 6.40

The options outstanding at 3! Decermnber 2022 had a weighted average exercise price of 2.69 pence (2021 4.57 pence)] and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of one year (202): one year).
The following summarises the approved share options

Total number
of shares for

Number which rights
of shares for are exercisable
Subscription which rights at the end of
Date of grant pricad Expiry date ale exercisable the period
Approved share options
1 December 2012 4.25p 1 December 2022 n,000.000 —
15 January 2014 8.75p 1S January 2024 5,050,000 -—
18 March 2014 10.00p 18 March 2024 5,000,000 _—
16 April 2015 N.25p 16 April 2025 7100,000 1,175,000
31 July 2015 10.75p 31 July 2025 6,000,000 2,500,000
22 December 2015 13.38p 22 December 2025 3.000,000 3,000,000
7 April 2016 12.50p 7 April 2026 1,750,000 1,750,000
15 February 2018 19.85p 15 February 2028 600,000 150,000
Unapproved share options
17 July 2077 O13p 17 July 2027 8,700,000 1,210,000
1January 2019 013p 1January 2029 19,440,255 12,554,755
1July 2019 013p 1July 2029 1,640,000 7.280,000
15 August 2019 013p 15 August 2029 300,000 300,000
22 October 2019 Q12p 22 October 2049 100,000 100,000
31 December 2020 013p 31 December 20320 4,000,000 —
30 June 2021 Olip 30 June 2031 21,160,600 21,180,000
30 September 202 Q13p 30 September 2031 300,000 300,000
1January 2022 013p 1January 2032 11,756,250 11,756,250

On 26 May 2018 a grant of awards under the LTIP was made to the 13 members of the senior management team [SMT).

A combined 23,400,000 LTiP share options were granted on 24 May 20i8. These ordinary shares were issued to Inspired
Energy EBT Limited as trustee of the Inspired Energy PLC Employvee Benefit Trust (EBT). These shares {Joint Share Ownership
Plan (1SOP) Award) wiil be held by the trustee for the joint benefit of itself and the Executives. The JSOP Award vests in three
separate tranches which are individually governed by achievement of adjusted EPS performance targets over a three-year
period, as set out in the table on the next page. Should there be a change in control of the company, by way of an offer for
the entire issued share capital of the company. during the award period the JSOP Award will automatically vest in full.
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24, Share-based payments continued

Approved share gptions continued
EPS target set F¥18 FV'IQ Y20 Fy2l Fy22 FY23 Total
Tranche 1 Target for three years 1950,000 1,950,000 1950.000 — — — 5,850,000

ended December 2020,
set at1lan 2018
Tranche 2 Target for three years — 1850000 1850000 1,550,000 — — 5,850,000
ended December 2021,
set at1Jan 2019
Tranche3 Target for three years — — 1,950,000 19350000 1,950,000 — 5,850,000
ended December 2022,
set at] Jan 2020 .
Tranche & Target for three years — — -— 1950000 1,950,000 1950,000 5850000
ended Decernber 2023,
setat] Jan 2021

SLINIWILVLS TVIONVNIA

1950000 33900,000 5850000 5850000 3,900,000 1850,000 23,400,000

The SMT will benefit from the growth in value of its respective 15OP Award from the date of grant. The SMT alse holds a nit-cost
option over the EBT's interest in the JSOP Award which may be exercised in certain circumstances. The subscription monies
for these ordinary shares have been satisfied in cash advanced by the company to the EBT. :
Adjusted earnings per share ("adjusted EPS”)

The JSOP Award vests subject to the achievement of adjusted EPS performance targets. Adjusted EPS will be cafculated

by taking the net attributable profit and adjusting by:

- adding back acguisition-related amortisation items,

» adding back exceprtional items;

« adding back share-based payments charge; and

- removing any impact {positive or negative) of any deferred tax.

The resultant figure is then divided by the number of ardinary shares in issue on a fully diluted basis.

Vesting performance conditions

Tranches 2, 3and 4

The Rermuneration Committee will, on 1 January 2019, 1 January 2020 and 1 January 2021 respectively, determine the adjusted EPS
targets for Tranches 2 to 4 respectively. The adjusied ERS targets will be set by the Remuneration Commitiee on 1January
each year, with Tranche 2 covering the three financial years ended 31 December 2021, Tranche 3 covering the three financial
years ended 31 December 2022 and Tranche 4 covering the three financial years ending 31 December 2023. The targets set by
the Remuneration Committee for all tranches represent a target below which none of the award will vest to the SMT for that
financial peried (the "threshold targets”).

For all tranches, the criteria for full vesting of awards will be set at 110% of the threshold targets (the "maximurn targets”) for
each financial year within each tranche, with the amount vesting rising on a straight-line basis between the threshotd targets
and the maximum targets.

Exercise and hold period

The SMT will only become fully entitled to the JSOP Award in respect of each ranche at the end of the three-year period
relating to that tranche. The SMT will be empowered to sell up to 50% of the ISOP Award at the end of the three-year period
with the balance being subject tc an undertaking that the members will not dispose of any further ordinary shares subject

to that award for 3 period of twelve months, except in very limited circumstances. Accordingly, 50% of Tranche 1 awards could
be sold in FY21 and a further 50% in FY22 or beyond. Similarly, the earliest sale date of the Tranche 4 JSOP Award would be in
FY24 in respect of S0% of the award and FY25 or later in respect of the remaining 50% of the award.

Unapproved Options were granted on 1 January 2019 at thelr nominal value of 013 pence per share to 123 employees over

a total of 22,695,255 shares in aggregate.

These options becarne exercisable in four unequal tranches on the following cates:

{iy the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019;

(i) the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020,

(iii) the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, and

(W) the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 Decermber 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

24, Share-based payments continued

Approved share options continued

Exercise and hold period continued

Unapproved Options were granted oo 30 June 2019 at their nominal value of 013 pence per share to 65 employees over a total
of 1,320,000 shares in aggregate.

These options becarne exercisable in six unequal tranches on the following dates:

{iy the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019,

{ii) the date on which the company published its unaudited interim accounts for the period ended 30 June 2020:

{iii) the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020,

{iv) the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021; -

{v) the date on which the company published its unaudited interim accounts for the period ended 30 June 2022; and
(vi) the date on which the company published its audited-accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022

Unapproved Options were granted en 1July 2019 at their nominal value of 0.13 pence per share tc one employee over a total
of 250,000 shares in aggregate.

These options became exercisable in one tranche on the following date:
{i} the date on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 Decembrer 2022,

Unapproved Options were granted on 15 August 2019 at their nominal value of 013 pence per share to twao employees over
a total of 300,000 shares in aggregate.

These options became exercisable in cne tranche on the following date:
(i) thedate on which the company published its audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022

Unapproved Qpuions were granted on 22 October 2019 at their nominal value of 013 pence pe&r share to one employee over
a total of 100,000 shares in aggregate.

These oplions became exercisable in ocne tranche on the following date:
[} the date on which the company published its auditec accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Unapproved Opticns were granted on 31 December 2020 at their nominal value of 033 pence per share to four employees over
a total of 4,000,000 shares in aggregate.

These options became/will become exercisable in two unequal tranches on the following dates:

(i} the date on which the company published its unaudited interim accounts for the period ended 30 June 2021, and
{i) the date on which the company publishes its unaudited interim accounts for the period ending 30 June 2023

In addition to the options listed sbove, interests granted undes an LTIP are discussed in note 7.

T;'\e fair value of options granted under the scheme is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model. The inputs into the
Black-Scholes model are as follows:

2022 2021
Share price {pence) 13.21-20.80 1570-18.50
Exercise price (pence) 0125 0125
Expected voiatility (9%) 29.3-41.4 296-39.7
Risk-free rate (%) 0.02-1.24 028-119
Dividend yield {%) 1.2-4.9 2.4-37

Expected volatility was based upon the historicat volatility over the expected life of the schemes. The vesting period is based
upon vesting restrictions, as detailed above.

The Group recognised total expenses of £1,732,000 (2021: £1,030.000) in the statement of comprehensive income relating to
equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the period in respect of the options disclosed in this note and note 7.

In 2017, the Group launched a Save As You Earn share schemne for all eligible employees. Share options were issued in 2017, 2018,
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 and, at the balance sheet date, the number of outstanding opuons was 6,589,557 The share option
charge pertaining to the Save As You Earn share scheme was deemed to be immaterial and was not posted.
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26. Business combinat
Busimesswise Solutions |
As disclosed in the 31 Dece
woting rights of WS

The provisional fair value ol
the completion of the twel
intangibote assets of £2,992,
included are trade and oth

General Energy Manage
As disclosed in the 31 Dece
voting rights of GEM,

The provisional fair value of
completion of the twelve-r
receivables of £234,000 an
a current tax liability of £59

27. Contingent liabilitic
The Group has been notifie
is contesting hiabifity under

Given the nature of the pot
contractual remedies, it is ¢

28. Rejated party trans
The Directors consider that

Transactions between the ¢
on consolidation and are n¢

Details of the transactions |

Information Prophets Limit
subsidiaries of Information
to Inspired PLC. As at 31 De

Deer Technology Ltd is 2 cc
invoiced £34 000 (2021: £nii
balance outsranding was £

Switchd Limited is a compz
{2021: £nil) for services provi
£nil (31 December 2021: £nil
Vervantis Inc is 3 company i
for services provided, and €
{31 Decernber 2021 £2,000)
Core Energy Services Kft.is

invoiced £445 000 (202Y: ££
the balance outstanding wi
tn 2020, the Group complet
Energisave Online Limited,
The Group has provided a Ic
(2021 £284 00Q) for service:
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25. Business cambinations

Digital Energy Limited/I-Prophets Compliance Limited {DE/IPC)

On 28 February 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital and voting rights of DE/IPC, a company based
Ih the United Kingdom. bE/IPC provides sottware enabled services.

The acquisition of DE/IPC was completed for a total consideration of up to £655,000. The initial £695,000 was satisfied in cash.
The details of the business combination are as follows: ’
Recognised amounts of identifiable net assets

Provisional
Book fair value Provisional
value adjustment fair value
£000 £000 £000
Praperty, plant and equipment 2 {2) —
Trade and owher receivables 183 {19) 144
Cash and cash equivalents 62 . — 62
Total assets 227 {21} 206
Trade and other payables 191 50 241
Total Liabilities 191 50 241
Provisional fair value of identifiable net habilities 35)
Provisional goodwill 720
Fair value of consideration transferred 695
Satisfied by:
- cash consideration paid @95
695
Net cash outflow arising frorn business combinations:
- cash consideration paid 695
- cash and cash equivalents acquired 62)
633

Net cash outflow

Trade and other receivables inchuded £106,000 of gross trade receivables {£96,000 of net trade receivables).

Since acquisition DEAPC has contributed £340,000 to revenue and £107,000 to profit before income tax. If the acquisition
had taken place at the start of the financial period, DEAIPC would have contributed £454,000 to revenue and £65.000 to profil
before income tax

Coodwill

The goodwill arising on this acquisition is attributabie to niche market expertise enabling cross-selling opportunities achieved
from combining the acquired customer bases and trade with the existing Croup.

identifiable net assets

A provisional fair value exercise to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in relabon to DE/IPC has been
carried out. Fair values are provisional as they are still within the twelve-month hindsight period to adiust fair values.

The Group estimates costs incusred in relation to the transaction to be £28,000. These costs are included within exceptional costs in
the Group statement of comprehensive income and included within operating activities in the Group statement of cash flows.

A reconciliabion of acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired, is as folfows:

£000
Digital Energy Limited/I-Prophets Compliance Limited - net cash outflow 633
investment in Deer Technelogy Ltd 250
Investment in Switchd Ltd 350
1,233

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
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28. Related party transactions continued

n

The below shows the amounts of dividends paid to Directors {and spouse/children) or companies in which a Director has z
an interesg; ;
2022 207 g

E000 £000 -

Mark Dickinson - 7 6 b
Paui Connar 2 2 a
Richard Logan 1 1 z
Sangita Shah 1 1 g
n 10 ;

Key management personnel remuneration
The remuneration of the key management personnel, the Directors, in the year ended 31 December 202215 set out below:

2022 200
£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits
Employee emoluments 1177 950
Social security costs 17 125
Post-employment benefits - 4 3
Share-based paymenits 128 22
1,480 1299

The aggregate dividends paid to Directors in the year were £11,000. The shareholdings of the Directors are disclosed within the
Directors’ remuneration repert on pages 56 to 60

Mark Dickinson, Paul Connor and David Cockshott are the only Directors of the Croup accruing benefit in respect of the Group's
defined contribution pension scheme.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Company statement of financial position

At 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note £000 EQCO
Non-current gssets
Investrments 30 127,927 125,225
Intangible assets 31 41 43
Right of use assets 32 836 1,082
Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings 44799 —
Non-current assets 173.603 126,350
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 6,572 1153
Deferred contingent consideration 17 1,077 4,529
Arncunts owed from subsidiary undertakings — 39,036
Cash and cash equivalents 58O 2.035
Current assets 8,229 = 46753
Total assets 181,832 173,03
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 2,518 1945
Lease liahilities 19 837 549
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 12,915 n180
Contingemnt consigeration 22 13,056 14,586
Currgnt 1ax liability 89 364
Current liabilities 29,415 28,624
Nan-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 21 49,462 45,847
Contingent consideration 22 5,699 7165
Lease liabitities 10 —_ 533
Derwative financial liability 21 17 25
Non-current liabilities 55178 53,570
Total liabilities 84,593 82194
Net assets 97,239 90,909
Share capital 23 1,220 1,219
Share premium account 23 60,930 50,923
Merger relief reserve 23 20,995 20995
Share-based payment reéserve 7,883 6,151
Retained profit 6,211 1.621
Equity attributable to shareholders 97,239 90,909

The company generated a profit of £7N2,000 during the financial year (2021; £1.336,000). As permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not 1o present its own statement of comprehensive income. Inspired PLC
reported a profit for the financial year.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and were signed
on its behaif by

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
Mark Dickinson &:& Paul Connor
Director 0B4B$1094DT1445... Girector 4458FF{54CABEC. .

Company registration number: 07639760.

The notes on pages 122 to 126 formn part of these campany financial statements.
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Company statement of changes in equity S X
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Share Merger Share-based

Share premium relief payment Retained Total E

capitat account reserve reserve |arnings equity P

B £000 EOCO £000 £000 £000 £000 %

Balance at 1 January 2021 1,202 67.000 20995 5121 2,541 96,859 IE

Profit and total comprehensive income ﬂ

for the period — — — — 1,336 1,336 ?.

m

Share-based payment cost — — — 1,030 — 1,030 ;

Shares issued (8 Apni 2021) 13 276 — — —_ 389 _Z_|

Shares issued (22 June 2021) 1 N4 — - — ns "
Shares issued (28 July 2021) 1 62 — . — — 63
Shares issued (15 September 2021} ] 53 — — — 54
Shares issued (21 December 2041) | 12 — — — 12
Shares issued to EBT* — (6,624) — — — [6,694)
Dividends paid — — — — {2,256) (2,256)
Total transactions with owners 17 6.077) —_ 1,030 {920} (5950)
Balance at 31 December 2021 1,219 60,923 20995 6,151 1621 90,209

Profit and total comprehensive intome

for the period —_ - _ — 7.050 7050
Share-based payment cost — — — 1732 — 1732
Shares issued (12 April 2022) — 7 — — — 7
Shares issued {7 December 2022) 1 — —_ - I 1
Dividends paid — — — — {2,460) {2,4B80)
Total transactions with owners 1 7 — 1732 4,590 6,330
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,220 60,930 20,995 7,883 6,21 97,239

© During 202), the valuation of the investments in own shares was reassessed and revised to the nominal value of the shares held. This resulted
in 2 transfer of £6,684,000 from share premium,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the company financial statements

29. Accounting policies (parent company)

Basis of preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Companies

At 2006 and Minancial Neperting Standard 101 Redvurerd Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. The company's financial statements are presented in round thousand GBP {£000), which is the
functional currency.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the company are set out below.
Accounting policies :
The accounting policies which foliow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101
(a) the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative information in
respect of:
0] paragraph 79(a)(iv} of LAS 1;
(i) paragraph 118{e) of 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, and
fiiiy paragraph 73{e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Eguipment,
(b} the requirements of paragraphs 10(d) and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statermnents and the requirernents
of IAS 7 Staterment of Cash Flows;
{c] the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of |AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
[d) the requirernents of paragraph 17 of 1AS 24 Related Party Disciosures;

{e) the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose refated party transactions entered into between two
or more members of a Group, provided that any sulbsidiary which is a party 1o the transaction is wholly owned by such
a member; and

(f) the requirernents of IFRS 7 to disclose financial instruments.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to present its own profit and loss
account. Inspired PLC reported a profit for the financial period of £5,832,000 (2021: £1,336,000).

A summary of the material sccounting policies is set out below.

Investments

Investrnents are stated at cost, less any provision for impairment. Where partial consideration for the acquisition of shares in
subsidiaries is settled thiough an issue of the company's own shares then that cost is determined as the fair value of shares
issued. Cost is determined as the fair value of shares issued and the consideration paid.

intercompany balances

Amounts due from Group companies are initially recognised at fair value, being the present value of future interest and capital
receipts discounted at the market rate of interest for a similar financial asset. When the face value of the loan exceeds the fair
value of the loan on initial recognition this difference is treated as follows:

- ifthe loan is to a parent company the difference is shown as a deduction from equity;
- ifthe loan is 1o a fellow subsidiary the difference is shown as a deduction from equity; and
« ifthe loan is due from a subsidiary the difference is added 1o the investment in that subsidiary.

The company assesses the expected credit 10ss in respect of Group receivables based on its ability to repay and recover the
balance. In the absence of agreed terms this consideration is given over the expected period of repayment and any expected
credit loss. The expected credit loss ks considered immaterial in the current year; therefore, no impairment loss has been
recagnised (2021 £nil).

Intercompany balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from Group undertakings are repayable on demand; however, having reviewed the ccmpany's intentions
with respect 1o the expected request for repayment of amounts due from subsidiary companies the company has determined
they should be classified as due after more than one year.
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29, Accounting policies {(parent company) continued

Accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified and accounted for, according to the substance of the contractual arrangements, as either
financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments. An equity iNstrument is any Contract that evidences 3 residual
interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its labilities.

Share-based paymernts

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payrment are measured at their fair values.
Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair values of employees’ services are determined indirectly
by reference to the fair value of the instrument granted to the employee. This fair value is appraised at the grant date.

SINIWILVYLS TVIDNVYNI4

Share options are valued at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. In accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment, the resulting cost is charged 10 the profit and loss account over the vesting period of the plans. .

If vesting periods or other non-rmarket vesting conditions apply, the expense is aliocated over the vesting period based on
the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is
any indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estumates. Any curmnulative adjustment
prior to vesting is recognised in the current period. No adjustment is made 1o any expense recognised in prior periods if share
options uitimately exercised are different to that estimated cn vesting.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and,
where appropriate, share premium account,

Equity-settled share-based payments issued to employees of subsidiary undertakings are treated in the financial statements
of the company as an increase in investment in subsidiary companies, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over,
the vesting period based on the Group's estirmate of shares which will eventually vest.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

i. investments

The ¢company assesses whether investments held in subsidiaries are impaired on at least an annual basis This requires

an estimation of the Tecoverable amount’ - the higher of 'value in use’ and fair value less costs to sell - of the investrent.

The value of investments in subsidiaries on 31 Decernber 2022 is £127827 000 [2021: £125,225.000).

Merger relief reserve

Merger relief reserve represents the premium arising on shares issued as part or full consideration for acquisitions
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the company financial statements continued

30. Investments

£0090
Cost and net book value .
AL 3 Decenber 2021 125,225 7
Additions — acquisition of subsidiaries {note 25) ) 1,297
Digposals (note 25) (327)
Share-based payments charge 1732
At 31 Decemnber 2022 - 127,927

The principal investment comprises shares at cost in the following companies, all of which are registered in England and Wales,
except where stated below. The registered address of the following companies is the same as the Group except where stated
below. The principat activity of all companies is energy procurement and management.

Percentage Normninai Number of

held value shares

Inspired Group Holdings Limited* 100% £1 484
inspired Energy Solutions Limited** 100% £1 142
Inspired 44U Limited® 100% £l 2
STC Energy and Carban Holdings Limited® 100% £1 1,000
STC Energy Management Limited** 100% £1 103
Flexiple Energy Management Limited* 100% £ 1
Bluebelt Energy Supply Limited* 100% £1 1
Horizon Energy CGroup Limited* (registered in the Republic of Ireland)*** 100% €1 245
Inspired Energy EBT Limited” 100% £1 1
SystemsLink 2000 Limited* 100% £1 1,229
Energy Cost Management Limited* 100% £1 2
Squarecne Enterprises Limited* 100% £1 100
Professional Cost Management Group Limited*® 100% £1 10,804,202
Inprova Finance Limited* 100% £1 1,000
Energy and Carbon Management Holdings Limited** 100% £0.23 637640
Utitity Management Holdings Limited=* 100% £1 636,364
Energy and Carbon Management Limited** 100% £ 300,001
Energy Tearn {UK) Limited™* ' 100% £0.00 115,840
Energy Team (Midilands) Limited** 100% £1 100
Inprova Energy Limited** 100% £1 50,100
UES Energy Group Limijted™ 100% £1 478,085
UES Holdings Limited** 100% £0.01 38,240
waterwatch UK Limited® 100% £1 100
Amer Holdings (SW) Limited™* 100% £l 2
Amer (UK) Limited** 100% £l 2
Independent Utilities Limited* 100% £0.001 1,200,000
LSt Energy Holdings Limited* 100% £ 4790833
LS| independent Utility Brokers Limited** 100% £1 Ls]]
Information Prophets Limited Convertible loan (25%) N/A N/A
Switchd Ltd 47% E£0.000001 87790
Industrial and Commercial Operations Network ttd Convertible loan (25%) N/A N/A
Energy Broker Solutions Limited* 100% £1 100
ignite Energy LTD* 100% . £1 760
BWS Holdco Lid® 100%  £0.00000 208,800
Businesswise Solutions Limited™ 100%  £0.00001 200,000
General Energy Management Limited* 100% £1 1002
1-Prophets Compliance Limited* 100% £1 2
Digitat Energy Limited* 100% £1 2
Deer Technology Ltd Convertible loan N/A N/A

* Directly held subsidiary.
** Ingirectly held subsiciary.

***Haorizon Energy Group Limited is registered in the Republic of Ireland and has & registered address of 4400 Airport Business Park, Cork,
Republic of Ireland T12 NS4F.
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31. Intangible assets

Trade name n
£000 §
nst rzv,
AL January 2022 45 rE
Additions . - 0
' ] — B
At 31 December 2022 45 -
- m
Amortisation ;
-+ At1January 2022 T 2 z
Charge for the year 2 wn
At 31 December 2022 ' 4
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 ) 41
At 31 December 2021 43
32. Right of use assets
Motor Fixtures
vehicles and fittings Property Intangibles Total
£000 EO0O EOQO £000 £000
Cost . i
At llanuary 2022 103 278 2m — 2,492
Additiaons 56 — — 30 357
Disposals — (23) — — S {23)
At 31 Decernber 2022 159 255 2m 301 2,826
Oepreciation
ALl Janyary 2022 35 e 1,267 — 1,410
Charge for the year 58 74 421 | 50 603
Disposals A — (23) — - (23)
At 31 December 2022 93 159 1,688 50 1,990
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 66 96 423 251 836
At 31 December 2021 68 170 Ba4 — 1,082
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the company financial statements continued

33. Employee benefit expense

2022 2021
£000 £000
vvages and salaries 4,962 4,531
Social security costs 589 569
5,551 5100
Na. No.

Average number of persons employed:
Management . 3 2
Administration and finance . a8 65
AN 67

34, Dividends paid

2022 2021
£000 £Q00
2,460 2,256

Dividends paid on equity capital - 013p per share (2021: 012p)

During 2022, the Group paid divitdends of £2,460,000 (2021: £2,256,000) 1o its equity shareholders. This represents g payment
of 013 pence per share {2021 012 pence per share). Also, during 2022, the Directors proposed the payrment of a final dividend

of Q.14 pence per share (2021 0.13 pence per shate). As the distribution of dividends by the Group reguires approval at the

shareholders' meeting, no liability in this respect is recognised in the 2022 consolidated financial statements.

35. Related party transactions

The ¢company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 101 and has not disclosed transactions with whelly owned

Group undertakings.
Refer to note 27 for details of other related party transactions entered into in the year.
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